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Ladies and Gentlemen,

In connection with Rule 12g3-2(b) exemption of China Strategic Holdings Limited
(“CSH”), CSH hereby furnishes the Securities and Exchange Commission with the
following documents:-

1. Announcement dated 7™ August, 2002 in relation the Results of EGM, Despatch of
Prospectus Documents for the Rights Issue and Adjustment to the Exercise Prices of
the Share Options;

2. Joint announcement dated 15™ August, 2002 in relation to the Proposed Subscription
of New shares Proposed Placing of New Shares, Application for the Granting of
Whitewash Waiver, Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital and Proposed
Change of Company Name and Results of Special General Meeting;

3. Joint announcement dated 16" August, 2002 in relation to the Discloseable

Transaction, Connected Transactlon and Major Transaction;

Announcement dated 23" August, 2002 in relation to the Results of Rights Issue;

Joint announcement dated 29 August, 2002 in relation to the Proposed Subscription

of New shares, Proposed Placing of New Shares, Application for the Granting of

Whitewash Waiver, Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital and Proposed

Change of Compan 1y Name and Extension of Longstop Date; and

6. Prospectus dated 7 August, 2002.

i

The CSH file number (82-3596) appears on the upper right hand corner of the first page of

each document. PR@GEQ{}M

Yours sincerely, j> SEP 20 2002
For, and on behalf of THOMSON
China Strategic Holdings Limited FINANCIAL
Jennfy/Chan ¥ 9&’3 q ‘

Secrétary

Encl.

JC/DT/CSHO2

c.c. Ms. Irene Cheng of Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
(w/o enclosures)
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¢ Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limiied liability)

OF EGM,

DESPATCH OF PROSPECTUS DOCUMENTS
FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE
AND

ADJUSTMENT TO THE

EXERCISE PRICES OF

THE SHARE OPTIONS

The Directors are pleased to announce that at the'EGM held,on 7 Ay,
(ii) the General Mandate, and (iii) the Repurchase Mandate.

The Rights [ssue prospectus (“Prospectus™), provisional allotment letier and a
on 7 August, 2002 to the Qualifying Shareholders and the Pr

As a result of the issue of the fully-paid Rights Shares and pursuant to-the terms of the §

gust, 2002, the Shareh.

pplication fo
as been d hed

olders approved the resolutions in respect of the (i) the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue,

rm for excess Rights Shares (collectively “Prospectus Documents™) have been despatched
to the Overseas Shareholders and holders of the Share Options, for their information only,

hare Option Scheme, the exercise prices of the Share Options will be adjusted.

Reference is made to the announcement dated 15 July, 2002, and the circular dated
22 July, 2002 of the Company in relation to a proposed rights issuc and the Prospectus.
Capitalised terms used herein have the same meanings as used in the Prospectus unless the
_ context otherwise requires. :

~ RESULTS OF EGM ~

The Directors are pleased to announce that at the EGM held on 7 August, 2002, the
Sharcholders approved the resolutions in respect of the (i) the Rights Issue with the Bonus
Issue, (ii) the General Mandate, and (iii) the Repurchase ‘Mandate. As at 7 August, 2002,
being the Record Date for the Rights Issuc, there are a total of 552,978,942 Shares in issue.
Subject to the fulfillment of the outstanding conditions of the Rights Issue dnd the
Underwriters not 1erminate the underwriting obligations pursuant to the Underwriting
Agréement and on the basis of the issue of one Rights Share for every two Shares held on
the Record Date, a total of 276,489,471 Rights Shares and a total of 165,893,682 Bonus
Warrants (on the basis of three Bonus Warrants for every five Rights Shares subseribed) will
be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue,

DESPATCH OF THE PROSPECTUS DOCUMENTS

The Directors are pleased to announce that the Prospectus Documents have been
despaiched to the Qualifying Shareholders on 7 August, 2002. The Prospectus has been
despatched. to the Overseas Sharcholders and holders of the Share Options for their
information only on the same day. |

A‘DJUSTMENTS IN RELATION TO EXERCISE PRICES OF THE SHARE
OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 20 July, 1992 (the
“Share Option Scheme™), as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has outstanding
Share Options to subscribe for up to an aggregate of 340,000 Shares, at exercise prices of
HK$3.44 or HK$4.05 per Share. .

Accarding to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise prices of ‘the
outstanding Share Options as at the Latest Practicable Date will be adjusted as a result of
the issue of the fully-paid Rights Shares. The number and the exercise prices of the Share
Options will be adjusted as follows: . -

Subscription Adjusted  Adjusted

Number of . price per subscription pumber of -
Date of Share Share before price per hare
graat Options  adjustment Share Options Exercise period

HKS HKS
12 Janvary, 2000 50,000 3.44 3.145 75,000 -18 January, 2000
“t0 7 January,
) 2005

i4 February, 2000 250,000 4.05 3.702 435,000 16 February, 2000

to 135 February,
2005

Allotment and- issue. of new Shares pursuant to the exercise of the Share Options
granted under the Shace Option Scheme upoa- notice of exercise submitted by holders of the
Share Options from 7 August, 2002 to 26 August, 2002 will only be mude after the. Rights
Issue becomes unconditianal or lapses. The Company will hold the monies remitied upon
the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the existing Share -Options pending the
allotment of such new, Shares. If the Rights Issue becomes unconditional, the number of new
Shares to be aliotted will be calculated on the basis-of the adjusted exercise prices of the
Share Options. If the Rights Issue does not become unconditional or lapses, the aumber of
new Shares will be catculated on the basis of the original exercise prices.

The calculation of such adjustments has been in accordance with the terms of the
Share. Option Scheme and relevant requirements of the Listing Rules. The Directors
consider such adjustments have been carried out fairly and reasonsbly in sccordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the auditors of the Company have issucd a
comfort Jetter on such adjustments.’

PRO FORMA NET TANGIBLE ASSETS OF THE GROUP

The following is an unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted net tangible assets
of the Group after taking into account the Rights Issue, placement of new shares and
acquisition of a 34.6% interest in Ananda Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Ananda™)
by a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in April 2002, It is based on the audited
(inancial statements of the 'Company as at 31 December, 2061 adjusted to reflect the Rights
1ssuc and certain adjustments since- 31 December, 2001.

HK$'000
Audited consolidated net assets value of thé Group as
at 31 December, 2001 2,220,790
Less: intangible asset
— Goodwilt (32.708)
Audited consolidated net 1angible assets value of the R
Group as at 3| December, 200! 2,188,082
Add: Negative goodwill arising from acquisition of
interest in an associate (Note 1) 116,791
Net proceeds of placement ia June 2002 17,400
Unaudited adjusted consolidaled net tangible assets ’
value of the Group before the Rights 1ssue 2,282.273
Estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue 40,000
Unaudited profofma consolidated net tangible assets .
value of the Group upon completion of the Rights Issue 2,322,273
Estimated proceeds from exercise of the Bonut :
Warrants 26,543
Unaudited proforma consolidated net tangible asscts .
value of the Group upon completion of the Rights
Issue and the Bonus Warrants 2.348.816
E———1]

Unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible assets

value per Share befoce the Rights Issue HKS$4.13

HK$'000

Unaudited proforma consolidated net tangible assets of
- the Group per Share bascd on 829,468,413 Shares
" in issue upon completion of the Rights Issue HKS$2.80

di 1id

d proforma d net tangible assets of
the Group per Share based on 995,362,095 Shares
in issue upon completion of the Rights'lssue and

full exercise of the Bonus, Warrants HK$2.36
. . P X Shares
"No. of Issued Shares before the Rights Issue $52,978,942

No. of Issued Shares upon completion of the Rights lssue 829.468.413

No. of Issued Shares upon complétion of the Rights.

Issue and fult exercise of the Bonus Warrants 995,362,095
Note I: Negetive goodwill represents the excess of (he'Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiadle
assels and liabilities of Ananda at 31 March, 2002 plus proceeds of approzimatcly HK$129.6
miflion arising from the subscription of 4,800,000,000 new shares by a mon-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in Aprif 2002 over Lhe cost of acquisilion.
_NnrtIZ:

Assumed that undeswriting agreement becomes unconditional at the Record Date. -
DEALINGS AND LATEST TIME FOR AbCEﬂANCE

Dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares are expected to commence on Friday, 9 August,
2002 and cease at the close of trading on Friday, 16 August, 2002, The stock code for the
trading of nil-paid Rights Shares is “2958". The latest time for acceptance of, and payment
for, the Rights Shares is 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August, 2002.

TERMINATION OF THE UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

The Underwriters reserve the right to terminate the arrangements set oat tn
the Underwriting Agreement which shal! be exercisabie by BNP Paribas Peregrine
Securlties Limited (“BNP”) (for itself and on behalf of Kingston Securities Limited
(“Kingston™)) by giving a notlce in writing to the Company at any time prior to 9:00
a.m., on Monday, 26 August, 2002, being the third Business Day following the last day .
for acceptance of the Rights Issue If:

(n) the occurrence of the following events would, in the reasonable opinion of BNP (for
itself and on behall of Kingston), maierially and adversely affect the business,
financial'or trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole or the success of
the Rights Issue or otherwise makes it inexpedient or inadvisable for the Company’
or the Underwriters to proceed with the Rights Issue: L

{i) the introduction of any new law or regulation or any change in existing law or
reguiation (or the judicial interpretation thereoD) or other occurrence of any
nature whatsoever; -

the occurrence of any local, national or International event or change {(whether
or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring or continuing
betore, and/or after the date of the Underwriting Agreement) of 2 political,
military, financizl, regulatory, economie, currency or other nature (whether or
not of its own kind or class with any of the foregolog or in the nature of any
local, national or International outbreak or escaiation of hostilities or armed
conflict); or . .

Q)]

conditions, taxalion or exchange
in Hong Kong {including without
n oa tradlng lu securltles); or

(ill) the occurrence of any change in ‘mnrket
control or binati :
limltation suspension or mate

ri
rlal restrictiol

the Underwriters shall receive notification by the Company when become aware of,
the fact that any of the representations or warranties contained in the
Underwriting Agreement was, when given, untrue or inaccurate or would be untrue
or inaccurate If repeated; or !

(b)

(c

any change occurs in the cir of the Company or any member of the
Group which would materially and adveérsely affect the busiaess, financial or
trading position or prospects of the Group as 3 whole; or

(d

the Company commits any breach of or omits to observe any of the obligations or
undertakings expressed to be assumed by it under the Underwriting Agreement; or

the occurrence of any event, or series of events, beyond the reasonable coitrol of
the Underwriters (including, without limitation, acts of government, strike,
lock-outs, fire, explosion, flooding, civil commotion, acts of war, scts of God or
interruption or delay in transportation) which In the reasonable opinion of BNP
(for itself and on behaif of Kingston) has or would have the effect of making any
part of the Underwriting Agreement (including underwriting) incapable of
performance in accordance with Its terms or which prevents the processing of
applications and/or payments pursuant to the Rights Issue or pursuant to the
undecwriting thereof, .

{e]

It BNP (for Itself and on behalf of ‘Klngston) termlnates the Und:rvﬁ‘lllng
Agreement, then the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue will not proceed.

Existing Shares have been dealt in on an ex-rights basis from Friday., 2 August,
2002, Dealings in the Rights Shares in the nil-paid form will take place from Friday, ¢
August, 2002 to Friday, 16 August, 2002 (both dates inclusive). If the conditions of the
Rights Issue are not fulfilled, the Rights Issue will not proceed.

Any Sharcholders or other persons contemplating setling or purchasing Shares
and/or Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the period from Friday, 9 August, 2002
to Friday, 16 August, 2002 who arc in any doubt about their position are recommended to
consult their professional advisers. Any Sharcholders or other persons dealing in Shares up
to the date on which ali the conditions to which the Rights Issue is subject are fulfilled (and
the date on which the Underwriters' right of termination pursvans 1o ‘the Underwriting
Agreement ceases) and any persons dealing in the nil-paid Rights Shares during the period
from Friday, 9 August, 2002 to Friday, 16 August, 2002 will accordingly bear the risk that
the Rights Issue may not become unconditional or may_ not proceed.

By order of the Board
China Strategic Holdings Limited
Lien Kait Long
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 7 August, 2002
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The Standard Friday, August 16, 2002

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as 1o its accuracy or camplclene:x and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents. of this announcement.

This announcement appéars for information purposes only and does not constitute an invitation or a[/'er to acquire, purchase or .rub:cnbe Jfor the xecurmz: of Campanmn Building

Material International Holdings L«mued
”\\
</

COMPANION BUILDING MATERIAL . ' ' “CHI'.NA STRATEGIC

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ' HOLDINGS LIMITED
. " {Incorporated in Bermuda with limited qubility) . ' {Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

" PROPOSED SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES,
PROPOSED PLACING OF NEW SHARES, ;
APPLICATION FOR THE GRANTING OF WHITEWASH WAIVER, .
PROPOSED INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL i
AND
PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

RESULTS OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING .

l The Board is pleased to announce that the resolutions approving the Subscription Agreement, the Whitewash Waiver, the increase in the au\honscd share capnal of the Company, J i

the Placing Agreement, and the change of name of the Company have been passed at the SGM held on 15th August, 2002.

Reference is made to the joint announcement (the “Announcement™) issued by the Company and China Strategic Holdings Limited dated 7th June, 2002, the announcements of the
Company dated 17th June, 2002, 26th Jiné, 2002 and 19th July, 2002 and the circular issued by the Company dated 22nd July, 2002 (the “Clrcular ) Terms uscd in this announcemcnl
shall have the same meanings as defined in the Announcement and the Circular unless defined otherwise herem

RESULTS OF THE SGM . . . : o h .

The Board is pleased to announce that the resolutions approvmg the Subscnpuon Agreemcnt the Whnewash Waiver, the increase in the authorised. share capual of the Company, the
Placing Agreement, and the change of name of the Company have been passed at the SGM: held on 15th August, 2002. The resolution in relation to the Whitewash Waiver was taken by
way of poll and was approved by the lndcpcndcm Shaseholders present and voting in person (or in the case of a Shareholder béing a corporation by its duly authorised representative)
or by proxy with 96,034,895 Shares (representing appronmately 6.62% of the existing issued share capitat of the Company) held by 15 Shareholders voting in favour, and 429 600
Shares (representing approximately 0.03% of the existing issued share capital of the Company) held by 2 Sharcholders voting against at the SGM. .

COMPLETION OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AND THE PLACING

Under the Subscription Agreement, subject to (inter alia) the Listing Commitice of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to déal in |he Subscnphon Shares,
Subscription Completion shall take place on the third Business Day next following the last unfulfilted condmon precedent of the Subscription Agreement is satisfied.”

Under the Placing Agreement, subject to (inter alia) (i) the Listing Committee of the Stock.Exchange granting lhe'lisling of and permission to deal in the Placing Shares; and (ii) the
Subscription Agreement becoming unconditional in all respects and having been compleled in accordance with its terms, Placing Comipletion shall take place on the third Business Day
next following the last unfulfilled condition precedent of the Placing Agreement is satisfied {or such other time as the parties to the Placing Agreement may agree).

Immediately upon Subscription Completion and assurning that there will be no change in the number of Shares in issue from the date hereof up to Subscription-Completion save for the

_issue of Shares pursuant {o the Subscription, the Subscriber will be interested in approximately 93.24% of the share capital of the Company then in issue. lmmediatcly upon Placing
Completion and assuming that all the 25,000,000,000 Placing Shares are successfully placed pursuant to the Placing Agreement and that there will be po change in the number of
Shares in issue from the date hereof up lo completion of both the Subscription and the Placmg save for the issue of Shares pursuant to the Suhscnplmn and the Placmg, the Suhscnbcr
will be-interested in approxlma(ely 43.06% of the share capital of the Company then in issue. .

After Subscription Completion bui before Placing Completion, the public float of the Shares will fall below the required minimum of 25% of all the Shares in issue.

For the purpose of avoiding the occurrence of insufficiency in public float, the Company has agreed. with the Subscriber to amend the terms of the Subscription Agrecmem so that
Subseription Completion and Placing Completion will take place on the same date. Pursuant to 2 supplemental agreement dated 15th August, 2002 enteréd into between the Subscriber
and the Company, completion of the Subscription Agrezmcnt will take place upon all conditions precedent under the Placing Agreement are fulfilled (other than the condition requiring
the Subscription Agreement to become unconditional in all respects and the Subscription Agreement to have been completed in accordance with its terms) or such other time as the
parties to the Subscnpnon Agreement may agree, being not later than 31st August, 2002. Save as disclosed in the foregoing, no other changes have been made to the Subscription
Agreement. It is €xpected that completion of both the Subscription and the Placing will take place on or before 31st August, 2002. Further announcement will be made in this regard.

The existing shareholding structure: of the Company as at the date hereof is, and the sharehoiding structure of the Company immediately upon-completion of both the Subscnpuon and
the Placing shall be as follows (assuming that all the 25,000,000,000 Placing Shares are successfully placed pursuant to the Placing Agreement and that there will be no change in the

number of Shares in issue save for the issue of Shares pursuant to the Subscription and the Placing and no acqmsmon or d\sposa! by Manful of any Shares from the date hereof up'to
complellon of both the Subscription and the Placing):

Existing shareboldmg 1 diat ly upon pletion of bolh
8s at the date hereof o the Subscriphon and the Placing
T No. of Shares held % (approximately) No. of Shares held . % (approximately) -
Manful B : : 155,360,133 10.71 155,360,133 0.33
Public : : I 1,295,256,102 89.29 1,295,256,102 - . 2.79
Subscriber .- : o 20,000,000,000 43.06
Placees . ' ) . - : - < 25,000,000,000 . 53.82
“Totat. - : ’ . 1,450.616235 100.00 | 46,450,616.235 : ___100.00

I Snbscnp\mn Completion and Placing Completion occur on the same date, the minimum public float of 25% will be maintained.

CHANGE OF NAME OF THE COMPANY

A special resolution has been passed by the Shareholders at lhc SGM lo change the name of the Compaay to Dong Fang Gas Holdings Limited. As at the date hereof, the proposed
change of name is subject to (i) the Subscription Agreement being completed in accordance with its terms; and (ii) the approval by the Registraf of Compames in Bermuda,

-Following Subscription Completion, the Company will carry out the necessary filing procedures with the retevant Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and Hong Kong in relation to its
change of name. Further announcement will be made in refation to the change of name of the Company.-

By Order of the Board of ; By Order of the Board of
Compamon Building Material International Holdings Limited - China Strategic Holdings Limited
Leung Kwok Wa Lien Kait Long

) Executive Director ) Executive Directar
Hong Kong, 15th August, 2002

The Directors jom!ly and severally uccept full re:ponslbxluy for the accuracy of information contained in this announcement and confirm, having made all reasonable inquiries, that to
the best of their knowledge opinions expressed in this announcement have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are no other facts not contained in this
A announcement, the omission of which would make any statement in this announcement misleading,

The directors of China Strategic Holdings Limited jointly and severally acceps full VCSPOHSlblll{)' for the accuracy of information contained in this announcement {o the extent thal it
relate to China Strategic Holdings Limited and confirm, havirig made all reasonable inguiries, that to the bést of their knowledge, opinions expressed in this announcement to the
extens *hat they relate to China Strategic Holdings Limited have been arrived at after due und careful consideration and there are no osher facts relating to China Strategic Holdings
Limited not contained in this announcement, the omission of which would make any. siatement in this announcement misleading.




The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contenis of this announcement, makes ng representaiion as tg its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the conients of this announcément,

CHINA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED

{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
4
-
A\

CHINA LAND GROUP LIMITED  ANANDA WING ON TRAVEL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermida with limited liability) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION FOR CHINA STRATEGIC
Deemed disposal of China Land

CONNECTED TRANSACTION FOR CHINA STRATEGIC

Proposed acquisition of Rosedale Hotel Group Limited by China Land

MAJOR TRANSACTIONS FOR CHINA STRATEGIC
Proposed acquisition of Ananda Wing On’s entire interest in Shropshire Property Limited by China Land
Proposed acquisition of Rosedale Hotel Group Limited by China Land
Proposed acquisition of Makerston Limited by China Land

MAJOR TRANSACTIONS FOR CHINA LAND DISCLOSEABLE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Proposed acquisition of Ananda Wing On’s entire interest FOR ANANDA WING ON

in Shropshire Property Limited . Proposed subscription of new shares in China Land
Proposed acquisition of Rosedale Hotel Group Limited Proposed acquisition of Ananda Wing On’s entire interest
Proposed acquisition of Makerston Limited in Shropshire Property Limited by China Land and

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FOR CHINA LAND issue of new shares in China Land

Proposed subscription of new shares by Ananda Wing On
Proposed acquisition of Ananda Wing On’s entire interest.
in Shropshire Property Limited and
issue of new shares

Proposed placing of new shares in China Land
Proposed increase in authorised share capital of China Land
and general mandates to issue and repurchase shares
Proposed change of name of China Land

Financial adviser

AncLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FIN ANCE, LIMITED

An application has been made to the Stock Exchange for an extension of time limit until 9th September, 2002 for the despatch of the circulars. 1

Reference is made to the first joint announcement dated 26th July, 2002 in relation to. amongst other things, the propbsed extensive group reorganisation of China
Strategic Holdings Limited and the entering into of the subscription agreement, the placing agreement, the first, second and third sale and purchase agreements.
Terms used in the first joint announcement shall have the same'meaning when used herein unless the context requires otherwise.

The subscription of shares in China Land Group Limited by Ananda Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited and the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of,
and thé shareholder’s loan to, Shropshire Property Limited by China Land from Ananda Wing On constitute connected transactions for China Land under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since Ananda Wing On is an associate of the controlling shareholder of China
Land. The acquisition of the entire issued share capital of, and the sharcholder’s loan to, Shropshire together with the acquisitions of Beijing Harbour Plaza Hotel
through the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of, and the shareholder’s loan to, Makerston Limited by China Land from Hutchison Hotels Holdings
(International) Limited and Best Western Rosedale on the Park through the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of, and the shareholder’s loan to Rosedale
Hote} Group Limited by China Land from Pavw] Y. - ITC Construction Holdings Limited constitute major transactions for China Land under the Listing Rules.

The disposal of Ananda Wing On's entire interest in Shropshire and the subscription of shares in China Land under the first sale and purchase agreement and the
subscription agreement constitute discloseable and connected transactions for Ananda Wing On under the Listing Rules since China Land ts a subsidiary of an
indirect controlling shareholder of Ananda Wing Oa.

The acquisition of Best Western Rosedale on the Park through the acquisition of Rosedale Hotel Group by China Land from Paul Y. - ITC constitutes a connecled
transaction for China Strategic under the Listing Rules since Pau! Y. - ITC is a substantial shareholder of China Strategic and China Land.is a subsidiary of China
Strategic. The deemed disposal of China Land as a result of the subscription agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction for China Strategic under the Listing
Rules. The first, second and third sale and purchase agreements constitute major transactions for China Strategic under the Listing Rules.

Platinum Securities Company Limited, Dao Heng Securities Limited and Altus Capital Limited have been appointed as the independent financial advisers to advise
the independent board committees' of China Strategic, China Land and Ananda Wing On respectively.

Circulars are required to be despatched to the respective shareholders of China Strategic, China Land and Ananda Wing On within 21 days from the date of the
first joint announcement, being not later than 19th August, 2002, under the Listing Rules. The respective boards of China Strategic, China Land and Anranda Wing
On wish to announce that given the complexity of the proposals and in particular the financial information to be contained in the circulars, the circulars cannot
be completed within the time limit as stipulated under the Listing Rules. Application has been made to the Stock Exchange for an extension of time limit for the
despatch of the circulars and it is currently anticipated that the circulars will be despatched to the respective shareholders of China Strategic, China Land and Ananda
Wing On on or before 9th September, 2002,

By Order of the Board
CHINA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
Lien Kait Long
Executive director

By Order of the Board By Order of the Board
CHINA LAND GROUP LIMITED ’ ANANDA WING ON TRAVEL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Chan Kwok Hung : Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
Chairman Executive director

Hong Kong, 16th August, 2002

The directors of China Strategic jointly and severatly acceprfull responsibility for the accuracy of the mformmlon contained in this announcement except as it relates t0 China Land and Ananda
Wing Qn and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and beliejf, opinions expressed in this announcement except as it relates to China Land and Ananda
Wing On have been arrived at afier due and careful consideration and ihere are no other facts not contained in this announcement, the omission of which would make any siatement in this
announcement misieading.

The directors of China Land jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this announcement except as it relates to China Sirategic and Ananda
Wing On and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, opinions expressed in this announcement exceplt as it relates to China Strategic and
Ananda Wing On have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are no other facts not comiained in this announcement, the omission of which would make any statement in
this announcement misleading.

The direciors of Ananda Wing On joinily and severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this announcement except as it relates 1o China Strategic and
China Land and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, opinions expressed in this announcement except as it relates to China Strategic and
Ching Land have been arrived at afier due and careful considerarion and there are no other facts nor contained in this announcement, the omission of which would make any Statement in this
announcement misleading,




The Standard Monday, August 26, 2002

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy

or completeness and expressly disclaims any liabitity whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part ‘of
the contents of this announcement.

CHINA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED

([ncorparcued in Hong Kong with limited liability)
RESULT OF RIGHTS ISSUE OF 276,489,471 RIGHTS SHARES
OF HK$0.10 EACH AT HK$0.15 PER RIGHTS SHARE

ON THE BASIS OF ONE RIGHTS SHARE FOR

EVERY TWO EXISTING SHARES HELD
WITH BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS
ON THE BASIS OF THREE BONUS WARRANTS
FOR EVERY FIVE RIGHTS SHARES TAKEN UP

The Direclors announce that the Rights Issue has closed and should have become unconditional at 9:00 a.m. on Monday,
26 August 2002. The Directors also announce that valid acceptances have been recéived for 126,391,454 Rights Shares
provisionally allotted under the Rights Issue and valid applications have been received for 9,571,311 excess Rights Shares.
Accordingly, the Rights Issue was approximately 49.2% subscribed. Such acceptances include 80,440,316 Rights Shares
accepted and paid for by the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long. 140,526,706 Rights Shares are expected to
be taken up and paid for by the Underwriters.

The Substantial Shareholders and Mr: Lien Kait Long will hold 241,320,948 Shares upon completmn of the Rights Issue,
representing approximately 29.1% of the issued capital of the Compdny ‘as enlarged by the nghts Issue. This is the same
as its shareholding percentage in the Company before the Rights Issue.

Terms used in this announcement shall have the same meanings as those set out in the prospectus in relation to the Rights Issue
issued by the Company on 7 August 2002 unless otherwise defined herein.

RESULTS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

The Directors announce that all the conditions set out in the Underwriting Agreement have been fulfilled. The Rights Issue has
closed and is expected to become uriconditional at 9:00 a.m. on Monda), 26 August 2002. As at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21
August-2002, being the latest time for acceptance of, and payment for; the Rights Shares, 30 valid acceptances of Rights Shares
provisionally allotted under the Rights Issue have been received for a total of 126,391.454 Rights Shares and 27 valid

applications for excess Rights Shares have been received for a total of 9,571,311 excess nghls ‘Shares. Such acceptances
include:

—_— 55,522,449 Rights Shares accepted and paid for.by Shareholders other than the Subslanual Shareholders and Mr. Lien
Kait Long (including 45,951,138 Rights Shares and 9,571,311 excess Rights Shares); and

— 80,440,316 Rights Shares accepted and paid for by the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long

The balance of 140,526,706 Rights Shares are expected to be taken up and pald for by the Underwrners pursuant to the terms
~of the Underwriting Agreement.

Set out below are the shareholding structures immediately before completion of the nghls Issue and upon completion of (he
Rights Issue:

Immediately before

. completion of the Upon completion of
~ Rights Issue . - the Rights Issue '
Shares . % Shares . %
Calisan or its nominees : : 80,440,000 14.5 120,660,000 14.5
Well Orient or its nominees - 80,440,000 14.5 120,660,000 14.5
Sub-total ' 160,880,000 29.1 241 1320, 000 29.1
Lien Kait Long (Nete 1) 632 - Negligible 948 Negligible
Underwriters (Note 2) ; — —_ 140,526,706 .« - 169
Public : 392,098,310 70.9 447,620,759 54.0
" Total . 552,978,942 100.0 829,468,413 100.0

Note | Mr. Lien Kait Long is an executive Dlreclar

Note 2 Share: are underwritten by the Underwriters severally in the proportion of 50% by BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Limited and 50% by
Kingston Securities Limited. Accordingly, each of the Underwriters holds 70,263,353 Shares, representing appmxunalely 8.45% of the issued

capital of the Company as enlarged by the Rights Issue. ,
The Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long have not applied for any excess Rights Shares. Accordingly, the
Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long will hold 241,320,948 Shares. upon completion of the Rights [ssue,

representing approximatély 29.1% of the issued capital of the Company as enlarged by the Rights Issue. This is the same as their
shareholding percentage in the Company before the Rights Issue.

Based on the subscription results of the Rights Issue as referred to above, the aggregate number of Rights Shares accepted and
applied for represents approximately 49.2% of the total number of Rights Shares available under the Rights Issue. The aggregate

number of Rights Shares accepted and applied for by the Substantial Sharcholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long represent
approximately 29.1% of the total Rights Shares subscribed.

In accordance with the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the Underwriters have severally agreed 1o subscribe for the Rights
Shares not taken up or applied for as excess Rights Shares, amounting to 140,526,706 nghls Shares, which represent

approximately 50.8% of the total number of Rights Shares and approxlmately 16.9% of the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company.

Bonus Warrants will be issued by the Company in the proportion of three Bonus Warrants for every five Rights Shares at an
initial Subscription price of HK$0.16 subscribed. Out of the total number of Bonus Warrants to be issued, approximately 29.1%,
will be issued to the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long.

GENERAL

It is expected that certificales in respect of the Rights Shares and the Bonus Warrants will be desi)alcﬁed Lo those entitled thereto
on Tuesday, 27 August 2002. Dealings in the fully-paid Rights Shares and the Bonus Warrants are expecled to commence on
Thursday, 29 August 2002.

By order of the Board
China Strategic Holdings Limited
Lien Kait Long

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 August, 2002 ’
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The Standard Friday, August 30, 2002

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of rhis announcement, makes no representation
as 1o its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsvever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement,

This announcement appears for information purposes only and does not constitute an invitation or offer to ucquire, purchase or
subscribe for the securities of Companion Building Material International Holdings Limited.

(=2

COMPANION BUILDING MATERIAL CHINA TRTEGIC

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HOLDINGS LIMITED
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liabiliry) (Incorporated in Hong Korg with limited liabilitv)

PROPOSED SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES,
PROPOSED PLACING OF NEW SHARES,
APPLICATION FOR THE GRANTING OF WHITEWASH WAIVER,
PROPOSED INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
AND
PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

EXTENSION OF LONGSTOP DATE

The longstop date for both the Subscription Agreement and the Placing Agreement will be extended from 31st August, 2002
to 30th September, 2002.

Reference is made to the joint announcements issued by the Company and the Subscriber dated 7th June, 2002 and 15th August,
2002, the announcements of the Company dated 17th June, 2002, 26th June, 2002 and 19th July, 2002 and the circular issued by the
Company dated 22nd July, 2002 (the “Circular”). Terms used in this announcement shall have the same meanings as defined in the
Circular unless defined otherwise herein.

In view of the existing market conditions, more time is required by the Placing Agent to procure placees for the Placing Shares.
Accordingly, the Company and the Placing Agent agreed to extend the longstop date for the Placing Agreement from 31st August,
2002 to 30th September, 2002. For the purpose of avoiding the occurrence of insufficiency in public float, the Company and the
Subscriber entered into a second supplemental agreement on 29th August, 2002 so thal completion of the Subscription and the
Placing will take place on the same date.

The Subscription

A second supplemental agreement dated 29th August, 2002 was entered into between the Company and Lhe Subscriber to extend the
longstop date ffom 3ist August, 2002 to 30th September, 2002. It has also been agreed between the Company and the Subscriber
that completion of the Subscription shall take placc on the date on which all conditions precedent of the Placmg Agreement (other
than condition under clause 2.6(3) thereof requiring the Subscription Agreement to become unconditional in all respects and the
Subscription Agreement to have been completed in accordance with its terms) have been fulfilled or waived in accordance with the
terms thereof or 30th September, 2002, whichever i is the earlier, or such o(her date as the parties to the Subscription Agreement
shall agree.

The Placing

A supplemental agreement dated 29th August, 2002 was entered into between the Company and the Placing Agent to extend the
longstop date from 31st August, 2002 to 30th September, 2002. 1t has also been agreed tetween the Company and the Placing Agent
that completion of the Placing shall take place on the date on which the last unfulfilled condition precedent under the Placing
Agreement is satisfied or waived and if such date shall not be a Business Day the next following Business Day, or such other date
as the parties to the Placing Agreement shall agree.

Further announcement will be issued by the Company in this regard.

By order of the board of directors of By order of the board of directors of '
Companion Building Material International Holdings Limited China Strategic Holdings Limited
Leung Kwok Wa Lien Kait Long
Executive Director Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29th August, 2002
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THIS PROSPECTUS IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMN

I1f you are in any doubt about this prospectus or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager,
solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in the Company, you should at ance hand this prospectus with the enclosed provisicnal allotment letter and form of
application for excess Right Shares (as defined herein) to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was
effected for transmission to the purchaser or the transferee.

A copy of this prospectus, together with copies of the provisional allotment letter and the form of application for excess Rights Shares have been registered by the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as required by Section 38D of the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong {(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong and the Securities and Futures Commission take no responsibility as to the contents of any of these documents.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this prospectus, the provisional
allotment letter or the form of application for excess Right Shares, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from ar in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this prospectus, the provisional allotment letter or the form
of application for excess Right Shares.

Dealings in the shares and warrants of the Company may be settled through the Central Clearing and Settlement System (“CCASS") and you should consult your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securties, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser for details of those settlement
arrangements and how such arrangements may affect your rights and interests,

CHINA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREEBEFRA T
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
RIGHTS ISSUE OF 276,489,471 RIGHTS SHARES
OF HK$0.10 EACH AT HK$0.15 PER RIGHTS SHARE
ON THE BASIS OF ONE RIGHTS SHARE FOR
EVERY TWO EXISTING SHARES HELD
WITH BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS
ON THE BASIS OF THREE BONUS WARRANTS
FOR EVERY FIVE RIGHTS SHARES TAKEN UP

Underwriters

BNP PARIBAS PEREGRINE ]m[ Kingston Securities Limited

The latest time for acceptance of and payment for the Rights Shares is 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August, 2002. The procedure for acceptance and payment of
the Rights Shares is set out on pages 14 and 15 of this prospectus and in the provisional allotment letter.

The Underwriters reserve the right to terminate the arrangements set out in the Underwriting Agreement which shall be exercisable by BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities
Limited (“BNP") (for itself and on behalf of Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingsten"}) by giving a notice in writing to the Company at any time prior to 9:00 a.m., on Monday,
26 August, 2002, the third Business Day following the last day for acceptance of the Rights Issue if:

{a) the occurrence of the following events would, in the reasonable opinion of BNP (for itself and on behalf of Kingston), materiaily and adversely affect
the business, financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole or the success of the Rights Issue or otherwise makes it inexpedient
or inadvisable for the Company or the Underwriters to proceed with the Rights Issue:

(i) the introduction of any new taw or regulation or any change in existing law or regulation {or the judicial interpretation thereof) or other
occurrence of any nature whatsoever;

{ii) the occurrence of any local, national or international event or change (whether or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring
or continuing before, and/or after the date of the Underwriting Agreement) of a political, military, financial, regulatory, economic, currency or
other nature (whether or not of its own kind or class with any of the foregoing or in the nature of any local, national or international outbreak
or escalation of hostilities or armed conflict); or

(iii) the occurrence of any change in market conditions, taxation or exchange control or combination of circumstances in Hong Kong (including
without limitation suspension or material restriction on trading in securities); or

(b) the Underwriters shall receive notification by the Company when become aware of, the fact that any of the representations or warranties contained in
the Underwriting Agreement was, when given, untrue or inaccurate or would be untrue or inaccurate if repeated; or

(c) any change occurs in the circumstances of the Company or any member of the Group which would materially and adversely affect the business,
financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole; or

(d) the Company commits any breach of or omits to observe any of the obligations or undertakings expressed to be assumed by it under the Underwriting
Agreement; or

(e) the occurrence of any event, or series of events, beyond the reasonable control of the Underwriters (including, without limitation, acts of government,
strike, lock-outs, fire, explosion, flooding, civil commotion, acts of war, acts of God or interruption or delay in transportation) which in the reasonable
apinion of BNP (for itself and on behalf of Kingston) has or would have the effect of making any part of the Underwriting Agreement (including
underwriting) incapabie of performance in accordance with its terms or which prevents the processing of applications and/or payments pursuant to the
Rights Issue or pursuant to the underwriting thereof.

If BNP (for itself and on behalf of Kingston) terminates the Underwriting Agreement, then the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue will not proceed.

It should be noted that existing Shares have been dealt with on an ex-rights basis from Friday, 2 August, 2002. Rights Shares will be dealt with in their nil-paid form from
Friday, 9 August, 2002 to Friday, 16 August, 2002 (both dates inclusive). if BNP (for itself and on behalf of Kingston) terminates the Underwriting Agreement (see “Force
majeure and termination of the Underwriting Agreement” on page 4 of this prospectus) or any of the conditions of the Rights Issue (see “Conditions of the Rights Issue”
on page 13 of this prospectus) cannot be fulfilled, the Rights Issue will not proceed. Any dealing in the Shares or the Rights Shares in their nil-paid form is accordingly
at the investors' own risk. If in any doubt, investors should consider obtaining professional advice on this.

Subject to the granting of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in bath their nil-paid and fully-paid forms and the Bonus Warrants on the Stock
Exchange as well as compliance with the stock admission requirements of HKSCC, the Rights Shares in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms and the Bonus Warrants
will be accepted as eligible securities by HKSCC far deposit, clearance and settlement in gCASS with effect from the respective commencement dates of dealings in the
Rights Shares, or such cother dates as determined by HKSCC. Settlement of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading days is required to
;akeﬂp!acfe in CCASS on the second trading day thereafter. All activities under CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures
in effect from time to time.

7 August, 2002
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SUMMARY OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

The following information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the full

text of this prospectus.

Basis of the Rights Issue:

Number of existing Shares
in issue:

Number of Rights Shares:
Amount to be raised:

Subscription price and
acceptance date:

Status of the Rights Shares
and the Bonus Warrants:

Overseas Shareholders:

Excess applications:

One Rights Share for every two existing Shares held on
the Record Date with three Bonus Warrants with initial
subscription price of HK$0.16 each for every five Rights
Shares taken up

552,978,942 Shares (as at the Latest Practicable Date)

276,489,471 Rights Shares
Approximately HK$40 million

HK$0.15 per Rights Share payable in full on acceptance
at or prior to 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August, 2002

The Rights Shares and the Shares to be issued upon the
exercise of the Bonus Warrants (when allotted and
fully-paid) will rank pari passu with the then existing
Shares in all respects. Holders of fully-paid Rights
Shares and the Shares to be issued upon the exercise of
the Bonus Warrants will be entitled to receive all future
dividends and distributions which are declared, made or
paid after the respective dates of issue and allotment

The Rights Shares which represent entitliements of the
Overseas Shareholders will be sold in the market in their
nil-paid form as soon as practicable after dealings in the
nil-paid Rights Shares commence, if a premium (net of
expenses) can be obtained. The proceeds of such sale
less expenses, of HK$100 or more will be paid pro rata to
the Overseas Shareholders. The Company will retain
individual amounts of less than HK$100. Any such
entitlements not sold in the market will be made available
for application by the Qualifying Shareholders using the
EAFs

Qualifying Shareholders may apply for Rights Shares in
excess of their provisional allotment




SUMMARY OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

Undertaking from the
Substantial Shareholders
and Mr. Lien Kait Long:

Basis of Bonus Warrants:

Amount of the Bonus
Warrants:

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Substantial
Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long were beneficially
interested in an aggregate of 160,880,000 Shares and
632 Shares respectively, representing approximately
29.1% and 0.0001% respectively of the total issued share
capital of the Company. Each of the Substantial
Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long has given an
irrevocable undertaking in favour of the Company and the
Underwriters to accept and subscribe in full their
entitlements to 40,220,000 Rights Shares, 40,220,000
Rights Shares and 316 Rights Shares respectively,
representing approximately 14.5%, 14.5% and 0.0001%
respectively of the total Rights Shares and which have
been provisionally allotted to them pursuant to the Rights
Issue.

Three Bonus Warrants for every five Rights Shares taken
up

165,893,682 Bonus Warrants in units of subscription
rights of HK$0.16 to be issued to the first registered
holders of fully-paid Rights Shares in the proportion of
three Bonus Warrants for every five Rights Shares taken
up, which will entitle the hotders thereof to subscribe in
cash in aggregate up to HK$26,542,989.12 for Shares at
an initial subscription price of HK$0.16 per Share,
subject to adjustment, exercisable of any time from the
date on which the listing of the Bonus Warrants
commences on the Stock Exchange to 4:00 p.m. on 31
December, 2003, both dates inclusive




EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Year 2002

Register of members closed

(both dates inclusive) ........... e Tuesday, 6 August to Wednesday, 7 August
Expected date of the EGM . ....................... 10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 7 August
Record Date for the Rights lssue ............ .. ... ... ... ... .. Wednesday, 7 August
Register of members re-open ... ... .. . . . Thursday, 8 August
First day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares ....................... Friday, 9 August
Latest time for splitting nil-paid Rights Shares . .................... Tuesday, 13 August
Last day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares ....................... Friday, 16 August
Latest time for payment and acceptance

of the Rights Shares (and to qualify

forthe Bonus Issue) ............... ... .. ...... 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August
Underwriting Agreement becomes unconditional ......... 9:00 a.m. on Monday, 26 August
Announcement of result of acceptance

and excess application appear on newspapers ............. . ... .. Monday, 26 August
Despatch of refund cheques in respect of unsuccessful

or partially unsuccessful excess applications .................... Tuesday, 27 August
Despatch of certificates for Rights Shares and Bonus Warrants ... .. .. Tuesday, 27 August

Dealing in fully-paid Rights Shares and Bonus Warrants commence .. Thursday, 29 August

— v —




RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
prospectus, and confirm having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, opinions expressed in this prospectus have been arrived at after due
and careful consideration and there are no other facts, the omission of which would make any
statement contained herein misleading.




DEFINITIONS

In this prospectus, the following expressions have the following meanings unless the

context otherwise requires:

“Announcement”

“associate”

“Board”

“Bonus Issue”

“Bonus Warrants”

“Business Day”

“Calisan”

“CCASS”

“Company”

the announcement dated 15 July, 2002 made by the
Company in relation to the Rights Issue with the Bonus
lssue

shall have the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules

the board of Directors

the issue of Bonus Warrants to the first registered
holders of the Rights Shares on the basis of three units
of subscription rights for every five Rights Shares taken

up

warrants with subscription rights in units of HK$0.16
each in the aggregate amount of HK$26,542,989.12
which entitle the hoider thereof to subscribe Shares at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.16 per Share, subject to
adjustment, exercisable at any time from the first day of
dealing in the Bonus Warrants on the Stock Exchange
and ending at 4:00 p.m. on 31 December, 2003 (both
dates inclusive)

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open
for business (other than a Saturday and any day on which
a tropical cyclone warning No. 8 or above is hoisted or
remains hoisted between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon and
is not lowered at or before 12:00 noon or on which a
“black” rainstorm warning signal is hoisted or remains in
effect between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon and is not
discontinued at or before 12:00 noon)

Calisan Developments Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability which is
wholly-owned by Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings
Limited, a company of which the securities are listed on
the Stock Exchange and Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company,
is deemed to be interested in approximately 42.6% of its
interest

The Central Clearing and Settlement System established
and operated by HKSCC

China Strategic Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability of which
the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange



DEFINITIONS

“Directors”
“EAF(s)”

HEGMH

“Group”

“HKSCC”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Overseas Shareholder(s)”

“PAL(s)”

‘:PRCU

“Prospectus”

“Prospectus Documents”

“Qualifying Shareholder(s)”

“Record Date”

“Rights Issue”

“Rights Share(s)”

the directors of the Company
form(s) of application for excess Rights Shares

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be
convened at 10:30 a.m. on 7 August, 2002

the Company and its subsidiaries
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

5 August, 2002, being the latest practicable date prior to
the printing of this prospectus for ascertaining certain
information contained in this prospectus

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

the Shareholder(s) whose name(s) appear(s) on the
register of members of the Company on the Record Date
and whose registered address(es) on that date is/are
outside Hong Kong

provisional allotment letter(s) in respect of the Rights
Shares

the People’s Republic of China

this prospectus in relation to the Rights Issue with the
Bonus Issue

the Prospectus, the PALs and the EAFs

the Shareholder(s), other than the Overseas
Shareholder(s), whose name(s) appear(s) on the register
of members of the Company on the Record Date

7 August, 2002, 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) for the
determination of the entitlements for the provisional
allotment of the nil-paid Rights Share under the Rights
Issue

the rights issue of one Rights Share for every two
existing Shares held on Record Date as described in this
prospectus

new Share(s) to be issued under the Rights Issue




DEFINITIONS

“SDI Ordinance”

“Share(s)”

“Share Option(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“Substantial Shareholders”

“Takeovers Code”

“Underwriters”

“Underwriting Agreement”

“Warrantholder(s)

“Well Orient”

Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance, Chapter
396 of the Laws of Hong Kong

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company

option(s) to subscribe for Share(s) granted by the
Company under its share option scheme adopted on 20
July, 1992

holder(s) of the Share(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Well Orient and Calisan

the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Limited and Kingston
Securities Limited

the underwriting agreement dated 15 July, 2002 entered
into between the Company, the Underwriters, the
Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long

holder(s) of the Bonus Warrani(s)

Well Orient Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability which is wholly owned by
Hanny Holdings Limited, a company of which the shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange and its substantial
shareholder (as defined in the SDI Ordinance)} is Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (holding approximately
27.73% interest in Hanny Holdings Limited), who is the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company




FORCE MAJEURE AND TERMINATION OF THE UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

The Underwriters reserve the right to terminate the arrangements set out in the
Underwriting Agreement which shall be exercisable by BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities
Limited (“BNP”) (for itself and on behalf of Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”)) by
giving a notice in writing to the Company at any time prior to 9:00 a.m. on, Monday, 26
August, 2002, the third Business Day following the last day for acceptance of the Rights
Issue if:

(a) the occurrence of the following events would, in the reasonable opinion of BNP
(for itself and on behalf of Kingston), materially and adversely affect the
business, financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole or
the success of the Rights Issue or otherwise makes it inexpedient or
inadvisable for the Company or the Underwriters to proceed with the Rights
Issue:

(i) the introduction of any new law or regulation or any change in existing law
or regulation (or the judicial interpretation thereof) or other occurrence of
any nature whatsoever;

(ii) the occurrence of any local, national or international event or change
(whether or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring or
continuing before, and/or after the date of the Underwriting Agreement) of
a political, military, financial, regulatory, economic, currency or other
nature (whether or not of its own kind or class with any of the foregoing
or in the nature of any local, national or international outbreak or
escalation of hostilities or armed conflict); or

(iii) the occurrence of any change in market conditions, taxation or exchange
control or combination of circumstances in Hong Kong (including without
limitation suspension or material restriction on trading in securities); or

(b) the Underwriters shall receive notification by the Company when become
aware of, the fact that any of the representations or warranties contained in the
Underwriting Agreement was, when given, untrue or inaccurate or would be
untrue or inaccurate if repeated; or

(¢} any change occurs in the circumstances of the Company or any member of the
Group which would materially and adversely affect the business, financial or
trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole; or

(d) the Company commits any breach of or omits to observe any of the obligations
or undertakings expressed to be assumed by it under the Underwriting
Agreement; or




FORCE MAJEURE AND TERMINATION OF THE UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

(e) the occurrence of any event, or series of events, beyond the reasonable control
of the Underwriters (inciuding, without limitation, acts of government, strike,
lock-outs, fire, explosion, flooding, civil commotion, acts of war, acts of God or
interruption or delay in transportation) which in the reasonable opinion of BNP
(for itself and on behalf of Kingston) has or would have the effect of making
any part of the Underwriting Agreement (including underwriting) incapable of
performance in accordance with its terms or which prevents the processing of
applications and/or payments pursuant to the Rights Issue or pursuant to the
underwriting thereof.

if BNP (for itself and on behalf of Kingston) terminates the Underwriting Agreement,
then the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue will not proceed.

It should be noted that existing Shares have been dealt with on an ex-rights basis
from Friday, 2 August, 2002. Rights Shares will be dealt with in their nil-paid form from
Friday, 9 August, 2002 to Friday, 16 August, 2002 (both dates inclusive). If BNP (for itself
and on behalf of Kingston) terminates the Underwriting Agreement or any of the
conditions of the Rights Issue (see “Conditions of the Rights Issue” on page 13 of this
prospectus) cannot be fulfilled, the Rights Issue wiil not proceed. Any dealing in the
Shares or the Rights Shares in their nil-paid form is accordingly at the investors’ own
risk. If in any doubt, investors should consider obtaining professional advice on this.
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CHINA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBBRAF

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Executive Directors: Registered Office:

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre
(Chairman and chief executive officer) 51 Hung To Road

Yap, Allan (Vice chairman) Kwun Tong

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna Kowloon

Lien Kait Long Hong Kong

Li Wa Kin

Chan Ling, Eva

Alternate Directors:
Chan Kwok Hung
(Alternate to Chan Kwok Keung, Charles)
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
(Alternate to Yap, Allan)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
(Alternate to Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna)

Independent non-executive Directors:
David Edwin Bussmann
Choy Hok Man, Constance

7 August, 2002

To the Qualifying Shareholders
(and for information only, to the Overseas Shareholders
and holders of the Share Options)

Dear Sir or Madam,

RIGHTS ISSUE OF 276,489,471 RIGHTS SHARES
OF HK$0.10 EACH AT HK$0.15 PER RIGHTS SHARE
ON THE BASIS OF ONE RIGHTS SHARE FOR
EVERY TWO EXISTING SHARES HELD
WITH BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS
ON THE BASIS OF THREE BONUS WARRANTS
FOR EVERY FIVE RIGHTS SHARES TAKEN UP

INTRODUCTION
It was announced on 15 July, 2002 that the Company proposed to raise net proceeds of
approximately HK$40 million by issuing not less than 276,489,471 Rights Shares (but not more

than 276,677,846 Rights Shares assuming full exercise of the outstanding Share Options) at
a price of HK$0.15 per Rights Share with the Bonus Issue.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were a total of 552,978,942 Shares in issue.
Subject to the fulfilment of the outstanding conditions of the Rights Issue and on the basis of
the issue of one Rights Share for every two Shares held on the Record Date, a total of
276,489,471 Rights Shares and a total of 165,893,682 Bonus Warrants (on the basis of three
Bonus Warrants for every five Rights Shares subscribed) will be issued pursuant to the Rights
Issue.

The purpose of this prospectus is to give you further information on, inter alia, the Rights
Issue with the Bonus Issue, including information in dealings, transfer, acceptance and

payment, and certain financial and other information relating to the Company.

BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Limited and Kingston Securities Limited are the
underwriters in connection with the Rights Issue.

RIGHTS ISSUE
Basis of the Rights Issue

Subject to the fulfilment of the outstanding conditions of the Rights Issue as described in
the section headed “Conditions of the Rights Issue” below, Shareholders with a registered
address in Hong Kong will be provisionally allotted Rights Shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.15 per Rights Share in the proportion of one Rights Share for every two Shares held by
them on the Record Date (rounded down to the nearest whole number) payable in full on
acceptance.

No provisional allotment of Rights Shares will be made to Overseas Shareholders. The
Rights Shares representing entitlements of Overseas Shareholders will be sold as set out in
the sub-section headed “Rights of Overseas Shareholders” below.

Qualifying Shareholders
To qualify for the Rights Issue, a Shareholder must:
1. be registered as a member of the Company on the Record Date; and

2. have an address in Hong Kong on the register of members of the Company on the
Record Date.

Subscription price

HK$0.15 per Rights Share, payable in full upon acceptance of the assured entitlements
and (where applicable) application for excess Rights Shares under the Rights Issue.
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The subscription price represents:

1. a discount of approximately 25.7% to the closing price of HK$0.202 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 15 July, 2002, being the last trading day before the
release of the Announcement;

2. a discount of approximately 30.6% to the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.216 per Share for the ten trading days up to and including 15 July, 2002, being
the last trading day before the release of the Announcement;

3. a discount of approximately 18.5% to the theoretical ex-right price of the Shares of
approximately HK$0.184 on 15 July, 2002, being the last trading day before the
release of the Announcement;

4. the closing price of HK$0.15 per Share quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Latest
Practicable Date; and

5. a discount of approximately 6.3% to the average closing price of approximately
HK$0.16 per Share quoted on the Stock Exchange for the ten trading days up to and
including the Latest Practicable Date.

Status of the Rights Shares

When allotted and fully paid, the Rights Shares will rank pari passu with the then existing
Shares in all respects. Holders of fully-paid Rights Shares will be entitled to receive all future
dividends and distributions which are declared, made or paid after the date of allotment and
issue of the Rights Shares in their fully-paid form. ’

Nil-paid Rights Shares are expected to be traded in board lots of 2,500 Rights Shares.
Dealings in nil-paid and fully-paid Rights Shares will be subject to the payment of stamp duty
in Hong Kong.

Rights of Overseas Shareholders

The Prospectus Documents have not been and will not be registered under the securities
legislation of any jurisdiction other than Hong Kong. The Company will send the Prospectus to
Overseas Shareholders for their information only and will not send PALs and EAFs to the
Overseas Sharehoiders.

If a premium, net of expenses, can be obtained, the Company will sell the provisional
allotment of Rights Shares which would otherwise have been allotted to Overseas
Shareholders once dealings in the nil-paid Rights Shares commence. The proceeds of the sale
of the Overseas Shareholders’ nil-paid Rights Shares, less expenses, of HK$100 or more will
be paid to the Overseas Shareholders in Hong Kong dollars. The Company will retain
individual sale proceeds of less than HK$100 for its own benefit.
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Fractional entitlements

Fractions of Rights Shares in the nil-paid form have not been allotted. The Company will
sell any Rights Shares created from the aggregation of fractions of Rights Shares in the
nil-paid form (if a premium, net of expenses, can be obtained), and will retain the proceeds.

Application for excess Rights Shares

Qualifying Shareholders are entitled to apply for any unsold entitlements of Overseas
Shareholders, any unsold Rights Shares created by adding together fractions of Rights Shares
and any Rights Shares provisionally allotted but not accepted.

Application for excess Rights Shares may be made by completing the EAFs. The Board
will allocate the excess Rights Shares at its discretion on a fair and equitable basis but
preference shall be given to topping-up odd lots to whole board lots.

The Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long have no intentions to apply for any
excess Rights Shares.

Bonus Warrants

Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions of the Rights Issue, Bonus Warrants will be
issued to the first registered holders of the Rights Shares on the basis of three units of
subscription rights with initial subscription price of HK$0.16 each of the subscription rights for
every five Rights Shares taken up under the Rights Issue. The issue of Bonus Warrants will be
subject to (a) the approval of the Rights Issue by Shareholders at the EGM and (b) the
approval of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Bonus Warrants and the Shares which may fall to be issued pursuant
to the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the Bonus Warrants.

Dealing in the Bonus Warrants will be subject to the payment of stamp duty in Hong Kong.
Subscription price of Bonus Warrants

The initial subscription price of Bonus Warrants of HK$0.16 per Share represents a
discount of approximately 20.8% to the closing price of HK$0.202 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 15 July, 2002, being the last trading day before the release of the
Announcement and a discount of approximately 25.9% to the average closing price per Share
of approximately HK$0.216 for the ten trading days up to and including 15 July, 2002, being
the last trading day before the release of the Announcement, a premium of approximately 6.7%
to the closing price of HK$0.15 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Latest
Practicable Date and the average closing price of approximately HK$0.16 per Share for the ten
trading days up to and including the Latest Practicable Date. The Board considers that the
initial subscription price of the Bonus Warrants gives an attractive opportunity to the Qualifying
Shareholders who take up the Rights Shares to participate in the future growth of the Group.
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Subscription period of Bonus Warrants

The subscription period is expected to be from the date on which the listing of the Bonus
Warrants commences on the Stock Exchange and ending at 4:00 p.m. on 31 December, 2003
(both dates inclusive).

Board lot of Bonus Warrants

The board lot for trading in the Bonus Warrants is proposed to be 35,000 units of
subscription rights. However, depending on the entitiement to and acceptance of Rights
Shares by those entitled, odd lots of Bonus Warrants may be issued. There is no arrangement
for the trading of odd lots of the Bonus Warrants.

Amount of Bonus Warrants

Based on 276,489,471 Rights Shares to be issued under the Rights Issue, 165,893,682
Bonus Warrants in units of HK$0.16 each of subscription rights of HK$26,542,989.12 will be
issued. The exercise in full of the subscription rights attaching to the Bonus Warrants will result
in the issue of 165,893,682 Shares (assuming no adjustment to the subscription price} and,
represents approximately 20.0% of issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
Rights Issue and approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the Rights Issue and upecn the issue of 165,893,682 Shares by the exercise in full of the
subscription rights attaching to the Bonus Warrants. The Bonus Warrants will be issued in
registered form and will be traded on the Stock Exchange.

Fractional entitlements to Bonus Warrants have not been issued but will be aggregated
and sold for the benefit of the Company. No Bonus Warrants will be issued to Overseas
Shareholders.

The Shares to be issued upon exercise of the subscription rights under the Bonus
Warrants will rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing Shares on the relevant
subscription date other than any dividend or other distributions previously declared or
recommended or resolved to be paid or made if the Record Date therefore shall be on or before
the relevant subscription date.
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UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENT
Underwriting Agreement date: 15 July, 2002

Underwriters: BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Limited and Kingston
Securities Limited

the Underwriters are independent third parties not
connected with the Company, directors, chief executives
or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules)

Number of Rights Shares 196,049,155 Rights Shares (excluded 80,440,316 Rights
underwritten: Shares undertaken to be subscribed by the Substantial
Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long) have been fully
underwritten by the Underwriters severally in the
proportion of 50% by BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities

Limited and 50% by Kingston Securities Limited

Commission: 2.5% of the total issue price of the Rights Shares
underwritten by the Underwriters

In the event that none of the provisional ailotment of the Rights Shares is accepted by
those entitled thereto (other than the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long), the
Underwriters will be called upon to subscribe for or procure the subscription for all of the
Rights Shares underwritten, which will be 196,049,155 Rights Shares.

Undertakings from the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long
were beneficially interested in an aggregate of 160,880,000 Shares and 632 Shares
respectively, representing approximately 29.1% and 0.0001% respectively of the total issued
share capital of the Company. Each of the Substantial Shareholders and Mr. Lien Kait Long
has given an irrevocable undertaking in favour of the Company and the Underwriters to accept
and subscribe in full their entitiements to 40,220,000 Rights Shares, 40,220,000 Rights Shares
and 316 Rights Shares respectively, representing approximately 14.5%, 14.5% and 0.0001%
respectively of the total Rights Shares and which will be provisionally allotted to them pursuant
to the Rights Issue.
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Immediately after
completion of the
Rights Issue (assuming Upon completion of the

Immediately after no shareholders, other Rights Issue (assuming
completion of the than the Substantial all shareholders have
Rights Issue (assuming Shareholders and fully subscribed for
all shareholders Mr. Lien Kalit Long, their entitiements of
Immediately before have fully subscribed have subscribed Rights Shares) and
completion of the for their entitlements of  their entitiements of after the Bonus Warrants
Rights Issue Rights Shares) Rights Shares) are exercised in full
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares %
Callisan or its ‘
nominees 80,440,000 14.5 120,660,000 14,5 120,660,000 14.5 144,792,000 14.5
Well Orient or

its nominees 80,440,000 14.5 120,660,000 145 120,660,000 145 144,792,000 14.5

Sub-total 160,880,000 29.1 241,320,000 29.1 241,320,000 29.1 289,584,000 291

Lien Kalt Long

{Note) 632 Negligible 948 Negligible 948 Negligible 1,137 Negligible
Underwriters - - — — 196,049,155 23.6 - —
Public 392,098,310 70.9 588,147,465 70.9 392,098,310 47.3 705,776,958 70.9
Total 552,978,942 100.0 829,468,413 100.0 829,468,413 100.0 995,362,095 100.0

Note: Mr. Lien Kalt Long is an executive Director.
Force majeure and termination of the Underwriting Agreement

The Underwriters reserve the right to terminate the arrangements set out in the
Underwriting Agreement which shall be exercisable by BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities
Limited (“BNP”) (for itself and on behalf of Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”)) by
giving a notice in writing to the Company at any time prior to 9:00 a.m. on the third
Business Day following the last day for acceptance of the Rights Issue if:

(a) the occurrence of the following events would, in the reasonable opinion of BNP
(for itself and on behalf of Kingston), materially and adversely affect the
business, financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole or
the success of the Rights Issue or otherwise makes it inexpedient or
inadvisable for the Company or the Underwriters to proceed with the Rights
Issue:

(i) the introduction of any new law or regulation or any change in existing law
or regulation (or the judicial interpretation thereof) or other occurrence of
any nature whatsoever;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii) the occurrence of any local, national or international event or change
(whether or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring or
continuing before, and/or after the date of the Underwriting Agreement) of
a political, military, financial, regulatory, economic, currency or other
nature (whether or not of its own kind or class with any of the foregoing
or in the nature of any local, national or international outbreak or
escalation of hostilities or armed conflict); or

{(iii}) the occurrence of any change in market conditions, taxation or exchange
control or combination of circumstances in Hong Kong (including without
limitation suspension or material restriction on trading in securities); or

the Underwriters shall receive notification by the Company when become
aware of, the fact that any of the representations or warranties contained in the
Underwriting Agreement was, when given, untrue or inaccurate or would be
untrue or inaccurate if repeated; or

any change occurs in the circumstances of the Company or any member of the
Group which would materially and adversely affect the business, financial or
trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole; or

the Company commits any breach of or omits to observe any of the obligations
or undertakings expressed to be assumed by it under the Underwriting
Agreement; or

the occurrence of any event, or series of events, beyond the reasonable control
of the Underwriters (including, without limitation, acts of government, strike,
lock-outs, fire, explosion, flooding, civil commotion, acts of war, acts of God or
interruption or delay in transportation) which in the reasonable opinion of BNP
(for itself and on behalf of Kingston) has or would have the effect of making
any part of the Underwriting Agreement (including underwriting) incapable of
performance in accordance with its terms or which prevents the processing of
applications and/or payments pursuant to the Rights Issue or pursuant to the
underwriting thereof.

If BNP (for itself and on behalf of Kingston) terminates the Underwriting Agreement,

then the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue will not proceed.

CONDITIONS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

The Rights Issue is conditional upon, amongst other things, (a) the approval of the Rights

Issue by Shareholders at the EGM and (b) the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in both nil-paid and
fully-paid forms, the Bonus Warrants and the Shares that may fall to be issued upon the
exercise of the Bonus Warrants.
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REASONS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Rights Issue of approximately HK$40
million for partial payment of compensation fees to be paid by the Company for levying the land
which is adjacent to the eastern side of Beijing Capital Airport. The Company is the developer
to develop the site under a cooperative development agreement dated 18 August, 2001
entered into between the Company and the People’s Government of Ligiac Township. The
Company currently intends to develop an industrial park which includes warehouses and light
industrial buildings on part of the site.

Following the previously proposed rights issue of the Company as announced on 14
March, 2002 which did not proceed, the Directors continue to believe that it is in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders to enlarge the capital base of the Company
through the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue. The Directors believe that the Rights Issue
remains a good means by which the Company can raise funds in the market and enlarge the
capital base of the Company. The enlarged capital base will support the continuing
development of the Company’s existing business activities so as to enhance the Group’s
income stream and earnings base. After considering different forms of fund raising
alternatives, the Directors believe that the Rights Issue will allow all Qualifying Shareholders
to participate in the growth of the Company.

PROCEDURE FOR ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT OR TRANSFER

For each Qualifying Shareholder, a PAL is enclosed with this prospectus which entitles
the Qualifying Shareholder to subscribe for the number of Rights Shares provisionally allotted
to that Qualifying Shareholder specified thereon.

If any Qualifying Shareholder wishes to exercise his/her/its right to subscribe for all
the Rights Shares provisionally allotted to him/her/it as specified in the PAL, the
Qualifying Shareholder must lodge the PAL in accordance with the instructions printed
thereon, together with a remittance for the full amount payable on acceptance, with the
Company’s share registrar, Standard Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21
August, 2002. All remittances must be made in Hong Kong dollars and cheques or
banker’s cashier orders must be drawn on a bank account in Hong Kong, crossed
“Account Payee Only” and made payable to “China Strategic Holdings Limited — Rights
‘Issue Account”. All enquiries in connection with the PALs should be addressed to
Standard Registrars Limited at the above address.

Unless the PAL, duly completed, together with the appropriate remittance, has been
lodged by 4:00 p.m. on Wedesday, 21 August, 2002, whether by the original allottee or
any person in whose favour the rights have been validly transferred, the relevant
provisional allotment and all rights to subscribe for Rights Shares thereunder will be
deemed to have been declined and will be cancelled. The Company may (at its sole
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discretion) treat a PAL (lodged as mentioned above) as valid and binding on the
person(s) by whom or on whose behalf it is lodged even if not completed in accordance
with the relevant instructions. The Company may require such incomplete PALs to be
completed by the relevant applicants at a later stage.

If a Qualifying Shareholder wishes to accept only part of his/her/its rights to
subscribe for the Rights Shares provisionally allotted, or if a Qualifying Shareholder
wishes to transfer all or part of such rights, the entire PAL must be surrendered no later
than Tuesday, 13 August, 2002 with Standard Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On
Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for cancellation and new PALs will be
issued in the denominations required.

All cheques and banker’s cashier orders will be presented for payment immediately upon
receipt and all interest earned on such monies will be retained for the benefit of the Company.
Completion and return of a PAL with a cheque or a banker’s cashier order will constitute a
warranty that the cheque or the banker’s cashier order will be honoured on first presentation.
Without prejudice to any other rights of the Company in respect thereof, the Company reserves
the right to reject any PAL in respect of which the accompanying cheque or banker’s cashier
order is dishonored on first presentation, and, in such event, the relevant provisional allotment
and all rights given pursuant to which will be deemed to have been declined and will be
cancelled at the discretion of the Company. All documents, including cheques for the amounts
due, will be sent by ordinary post at the risk of the relevant applicants or other persons entitled
thereto, to their registered addresses.

If the Underwriters exercise their right to terminate their obligations under the
Underwriting Agreement at any time prior to 9:00 a.m. on Monday, 26 August, 2002 that is the
third Business Day following the last day of acceptance of the Rights Shares, the monies
received in respect of the Rights Shares provisionally allotted and applications for excess
Rights Shares will be returned to the applicants, without interest, by means of cheques
despatched by ordinary post at the risk of such applicants as soon a practicable thereafter.

APPLICATION FOR EXCESS RIGHTS SHARES

For each Qualifying Shareholder, an EAF is enclosed with this prospectus which entitles
the Qualifying Shareholder to apply for excess Rights Shares.

iIf any Qualifying Shareholder wishes to apply for any Rights Shares in addition to
his/her/its provisional allotment under the Rights Issue, he/she/it must complete and
sign the EAF in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and lodge it, together
with a separate remittance for the amount payable on application in respect of the
excess Right Shares applied for, with the Company’s share registrar, Standard
Registrars Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 August, 2002. All remittances must
be made in Hong Kong dollars and cheques or banker’s cashier orders must be drawn
on a bank account in Hong Kong, crossed “Account Payee Only” and made payable to
“China Strategic Holdings Limited — Excess Application Account”. All enquiries in
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connection with the EAFs should be addressed to Standard Registrars Limited at the
above address. The Qualifying Shareholder will be notified of any allotment of excess
Rights Shares made to that Qualifying Shareholder, which allocation will be made at the
discretion of the Directors on a fair and reasonable basis but preference shall be given
to topping-up odd lots to whole board lots.

All cheques and banker’s cashier orders will be presented for payment immediately upon
receipt and all interest earned on such monies will be retained for the benefit of the Company.
Completion and return of an EAF with a cheque of banker’s cashier order will constitute a
warranty that the cheque or the banker’s cashier order will be honoured on first presentation.
Without prejudice to the other rights of the Company in respect thereof, the Company reserves
the right to reject any EAF in respect of which the accompanying cheque or banker’s cashier
order is dishonoured on first presentation.

If no excess Rights Shares are allotted to the relevant applicants, a refund cheque for the
full amount tendered on application, without interest, will be posted to the relevant applicants
by ordinary post at their own risk. if the number of excess Rights Share allotted to the relevant
applicants is less than that applied for, a cheque for the surplus application monies, without
interest, will be posted to the relevant applicants by ordinary post at their own risk. Such
posting is expected to take place on or before Tuesday, 27 August, 2002.

EAFs will only be issued to the Qualifying Shareholders and are for use only by the
persons to whom they are addressed and are not transferable. All documents, including
cheques for the amounts due, will be sent by ordinary post at the risk of the relevant applicants
or other persons entitled thereto, to their registered addresses. The Company may (at its sole
discretion) treat an EAF as valid and binding on the person(s) by whom or on whose behalf it
is lodged even if not completed in accordance with the relevant instructions. The Company
may require such incomplete EAFs to be completed by the relevant Qualifying Shareholder at
a later stage.

JURISDICTIONS OUTSIDE HONG KONG

The Prospectus Documents issued in connection with the Rights Issue have not been and
will not be registered or filed under any applicable securities legislation of any jurisdiction
other than Hong Kong. No action has been taken in any territory other than Hong Kong to
permit the offering of the Rights Shares or the distribution of any documents issued in
connection with the Rights Issue (save that copies of this propectus have been sent to the
Overseas Shareholders and holders of the Share Options for their information only).
Accordingly, no provisional allotment of the Rights Shares will be made to any Overseas
Shareholders. No person receiving a copy of this prospectus or a PAL or an EAF in any territory
or jurisdiction outside Hong Kong may treat it as an offer or invitation to apply for Rights
Shares or excess Right Shares. No application for Rights Shares will be accepted from any
person whose address is outside Hong Kong. The Company reserves the right to refuse to
accept any application for Rights Shares or excess Rights Shares where it believes that
acceptance would violate the applicable securities or other laws or regulations of any territory.

— 16 —




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

LISTING AND DEALINGS

The shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. There is no other stock
exchange on which any part of the securities of the Company is listed or dealt in or which
listing or permission to deal is being or proposed to be sought.

The Company has applied to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in both nil-paid and fully-paid forms, the Bonus
Warrants and the Shares which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the Bonus Warrants.

Subject to the approval of the Rights Issue by Shareholders at the EGM and the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights
Shares in both nil-paid and fully-paid forms, the Bonus Warrants, and the new Shares which
may fall to be issued upon the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the Bonus
Warrants on the Stock Exchange as well as compliance with the stock admission requirements
of HKSCC, the Rights Shares in both nil-paid and fully-paid forms, the Bonus Warrants, and
the new Shares which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to the Bonus Warrants will be accepted as eligible securities by HKSCC for deposit,
clearance and settlement in CCASS with effect from the commencement dates of dealings in
the Rights Shares in both nil-paid and fully-paid forms, the Bonus Warrants, and the new
Shares which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the
Bonus Warrants on the Stock Exchange or such other dates as determined by HKSCC.
Settlement of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading day is
required to take place in CCASS on the second trading day thereafter. All activities under
CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures in
effect from time to time.

There is no arrangement under which future dividends are waived or agreed to be waived.
SHARE CERTIFICATES

Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions of the Rights Issue, share certificates for all
fully-paid Rights Shares and Bonus Warrants are expected to be posted on or before, Tuesday,
27 August, 2002 to the persons who have accepted and paid for the Rights Shares and those

successful applicants for the excess Rights Shares.

All documents, including cheques for the amounts due, will be sent by ordinary post at the
risk of the persons entitled thereto to their registered addresses.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Having achieved a gross domestic productivity of approximately 7.3% in 2001, the PRC
is expected to continue to maintain the same economic growth momentum. At the same time,

PRC’s accession into the World Trade Organisation, Beijing’s success in winning the bid for
the 2008 Olympic Games and the recent reduction in the domestic interest rate should be
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highly beneficial to the Company’s existing business operations in the PRC. The Group will
continue to solidify and focus on expanding its strategic lead in PRC’s tire manufacturing,
property and infrastructure operations. With PRC’s high growth potential and an expected
recovery of the economies of Southeast Asian countries in the near term, the Group is actively
looking for new investment opportunities in the region especially in the PRC, to diversify
operations into new markets and industries and continue to provide long term value to
Shareholders. The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December, 2001 totalled
approximately HK$3.234 billion, representing an increase of approximately 2.4% from
approximately HK$3.158 billion over the previous year. The revenue generated from
newspaper publication and from the trading of Chinese and western pharmaceutical products
had become new sources of income for the Group during year 2001.

The Company’s audited consolidated loss attributable to Shareholders for the year ended
31 December, 2001 amounted to approximately HK$598.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 18% from approximately HK$730.7 million recorded in the previous year. The
losses incurred was mainly attributable to the impairment loss made for revaluation deficits of
the toll highway, investment properties and diminution in value of properties and investment
securities totalling approximately HK$520 million by the Group. Operating losses suffered by
the Group’s tire operations, newspaper publication as well as provisions made for the
diminution in the value of investments aiso contributed to the losses.

ADJUSTMENTS IN RELATION TO EXERCISE PRICES OF THE SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 20 July, 1992, as at the
Latest Practicable Date, the Company has outstanding Share Options to subscribe for up to an
aggregate of 340,000 Shares, at exercise prices of HK$3.44 or HK$4.05 per Share.

According to the terms of the share option scheme, the exercise prices of the outstanding
Share Options as at the Latest Practicable Date will be adjusted as a result of the issue of the
fully-paid Rights Shares. The number and the exercise prices of the Share Options will be
adjusted as follows:

Subscription Adjusted  Adjusted
Number of price per subscription number of
Share Share before price per share
Date of grant Options adjustment Share options Exercise period
HK$ HK$
12 January, 2000 50,000 3.44 3.145 75,000 18 January, 2000 to
17 January, 2005
14 February, 2000 290,000 4.05 3.702 435,000 16 February, 2000 to

15 February, 2005

Allotment and issue of new Shares pursuant to the exercise of the Share Options granted
under the share option scheme upon notice of exercise submitted by holders of the Share
Options from 7 August, 2002 to 26 August, 2002 will only be made after the Rights Issue
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becomes unconditional or lapses. The Company will hold the monies remitted upon the
exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the existing Share Options pending the
allotment of such new Shares. If the Rights Issue becomes unconditional, the number of new
Shares to be allotted will be calculated on the basis of the adjusted exercise prices of the
Share Options. If the Rights Issue does not become unconditional or lapses, the number of
new Shares will be calculated on the basis of the original exercise prices.

The calculation of such adjustments has been in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

FURTHER INFORMATION
Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the appendices to this

prospectus.

By Order of the Board
China Strategic Holdings Limited
Lien Kait Long
Executive Director
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The following information are extracted from the audited financial statements of the
Company in its annual report for each of the three financial years ended 31st December, 2001.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st December, 2001

2001 2000 1999
NOTES HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Turnover 4 3,234,404 3,158,058 3,750,224

Cost of sales

(2,971,785) (2,766,813) (3,162,390)

Gross profit 262,619 391,245 587,834
Other revenue 6 168,178 210,373 1,617,395
Distribution costs (179,879) (161,656) (187,377)
Administrative expenses (242,744) (282,226) (389,183)
Other expenses 7 (909,862) (869,985) (370,619)
Restructuring costs — — (41,855)
(Loss) profit from operations 8 (901,688) (712,249) 1,216,195
Finance costs 10 (81,462) (88,487) (96,938)
Share of results of associates (17,997) (12,147) (12,993)
Share of results of a subsidiary not

consolidated — — (12,623)
(Loss) profit before taxation (1,001,147) (812,883) 1,093,641
Taxation 11 (5,982) (6,608) (5,396)
(Loss) profit before minority interests (1,007,129) (819,491) 1,088,245
Minority interests 408,399 88,809 (40,649)
Net (loss) profit for the year (598,730) (730,682) 1,047,596
Dividend 12 — 46,098 —
(Loss) earnings per share

Basic 13 HK$(1.30) HK$(1.59) HK$2.34

Diluted N/A N/A HK$2.33
Dividend per share 12 NIL  HKS$0.01 NIL

Dividend per share of HK$0.01 in financial year ended 31st December, 2000 represents
final dividend in 1999 at HK$0.01 per ordinary share before taking into account the “Share
Consolidation” stated in Notes 30 of notes to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31st December, 2001

Non-Current Assets
investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Properties under/held for development

Payment for acquisition of land development right

Intangible asset

Goodwill

Interest in associates

Receivables — due after one year
Investments in securities

Loans to minority shareholders

Current Assets
Properties held for sale
Inventories
Trade debtors
Receivables — due within one year
Receivables due from associates

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Advances to contractors

Income and other tax recoverable
Investments in securities

Bank balances and cash

Pledged bank deposits

Current Liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges
Other payables
Payables due to related companies
Payables due to associates
income and other taxes payable
Bank loans and other borrowings

Net Current Assets

— 21 —

NOTES

14
15
16
17
18
19
21
22
23
24

25
26
27
22
21

23

28

29
21

34

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$°000
49,341 71,818
2,452,199 2,734,587
137,000 157,401
2,727 —

—_ 107,208

32,708 —
176,268 115,752
302,439 18,995
473,408 757,197
26,765 28,074
3,652,855 3,991,032
32,881 31,081
790,288 869,333
481,024 667,817
107,195 50,217
13,517 5,323

. 298,722 367,624
9,439 184,443
208 85
40,000 67,800
744,927 885,228
83,520 612,351
2,601,721 3,741,302
431,885 674,566
563,821 415,130
36,492 —
9,625 —
32,871 43,531
922,272 1,351,545
1,996,966 2,484,772
604,755 1,256,530
4,257,610 5,247,562
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Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Minority Interests

Non-Current Liabilities
Bank loans and other borrowings
— due after one year
Deposits received
Loans from minority shareholders
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NOTES

30
32

34
35
24

2001 2000
HK$°000 HK$°000
46,098 460,979
2,174,692 2,388,875
2,220,790 2,849,854
1,323,582 1,699,376
593,121 595,213
76,638 76,638
43,479 26,481
713,238 698,332
4,257,610 5,247,562
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BALANCE SHEET
At 31st December, 2001

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Payment for acquisition of land development right
Investments in subsidiaries
Receivables due from subsidiaries
Interest in associates
Receivables — due after one year
Investments in securities

Current Assets
Receivables due from associates
Receivables — due within one year
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges
Payables due to related companies
Bank loans and other borrowings

Net Current Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Non-Current Liabilities
Bank loans and other borrowings
Payables due to subsidiaries
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NOTES

15
17
20
20
21
22
23

21
22

29
34

30

32

34
20

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$°000
8,722 8,660
2,727 —
329,186 328,189
1,615,455 2,179,911
2 2

25,246 26,480
19,517 19,5617
1,900,855 2,562,759
473 1,083
16,239 4,673
2,687 6,595
106,491 217,237
125,890 229,588
2,674 3,101
1,073 —
20,011 8,798
23,758 11,899
102,132 217,689
2,002,987 2,780,448
46,098 460,979
1,246,936 1,453,360
1,293,034 1,914,339
35 —
709,918 866,109
2,002,987 2,780,448
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
For the year ended 31st December, 2001

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Exchange differences arising on translation of operations
outside Hong Keng (7,277) (1,223)
Share of reserves of associates
Goodwill reserve — (12,097)
Exchange reserve (72) (7,317)
Non-distributable reserve —_ 2,204
(7,349) {18,433)
Net loss for the year (598,730) (730,682)
Total recognised losses (606,079) (749,115)
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition
of interests in subsidiaries and associates — 157,581

(606,079) (591,534)

Effect of change in accounting policy on adoption of the
revised Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 9 —
“Events after the Balance Sheet Date” — Increase in
retained profits as at 1st January, 2000 — 46,098
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st December, 2001

2001 2000
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 36 85,876 157,342
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING
OF FINANCE
Interest paid (121,235) (116,488)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries (4,124) (23,140)
Dividend paid — (46,098)
Interest received 71,725 114,714
Dividends received from investments 5,509 6,509
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS ON
INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE (48,125) (64,503)
TAXATION
Tax paid in other jurisdictions (8,953) (7,213)
Refund of tax received in other jurisdictions 6 1,213
NET CASH OUTFLOW FOR TAXATION (8,947) (6,000)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits 528,831 (612,351)
Proceeds from disposal of investments in securities 400,960 1,084,136
Repayment from receivables 389,990 69,067
Proceeds from disposal/dilution of subsidiaries/
business (net of cash and cash equivaients
disposed of) 37 283,806 46,496
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 14,450 —
Capital repatriation from an associate 9,366 —
Repayment from associates — 177
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 5,818 25,873
Repayment from minority shareholders 1,309 —
Advance to receivables (670,140) (50,000)
Purchase of subsidiaries/business (net of cash and
cash equivalents acquired) 38 (354,450) (526,312)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {279,977) (211,517)
Purchase of investments in securities (282,802) (1,430,640)
Investment in associates (44,100) (48,541)
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Advance to associates

Costs incurred for properties under/held for
development

Payment for acquisition of land development right

Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) BEFORE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans and other borrowings raised

Advance from related companies

Contribution from minority shareholders

Advance from associates

Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings

Repayment to related companies

Repayment of obligations under hire purchase
contracts

Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) INFLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdrafts

2001 2000
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(17,560) —
(8,392) (26,541)
(2,727) —

— (6,667)
(25,618)  (1,686,820)
3,186  (1,599,981)

39

1,183,688 1,509,767
53,409 —
42,602 15,348
9,625 —
(1,393,529)  (1,243,438)
(16,917) —
(9) —

— 45,530
(121,131) 327,207
(117,945)  (1,272,774)
873,326 2,146,420
(10,454) (320)
744,927 873,326
744,927 885,228
— (11,902)
744,927 873,326
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in note 20 and 21.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

During the year, the Group has adopted for the first time a number of new and revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Adoption of these new and revised
SSAPs had no significant effect on the financial statements for the current or prior year except that in accordance with
SSAP 9 (Revised) “Events after the Balance Sheet Date”, dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date
are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date, but are disclosed as a separate component in the notes
to the financial statements. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively, resuliting in a prior
period adjustment which increased the retained profits of the Group and the Company respectively, as at 1st January,
2000 by HK$46,098,000. The revised accounting policies are set out in note 3. In addition, the new and revised SSAPs
have introduced additional and revised disclosure requirements which have been adopted in these financial
statements. Comparative amounts for the prior year have been restated in order to achieve a consistent presentation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the valuation
of investment properties, hotel property and investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principals generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates which are acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consoclidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation -represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an assocciate at the date of
acquisition.

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 30 “Business Combinations” and has elected not to
restate goodwill previously eliminated against reserves. Accordingly, goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1st
January, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged to the income statement at the time of
disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate or at such time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired.
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Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1st January, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis
over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is included within the carrying
amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the
balance sheet.

On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill/goodwill
previously eliminated against reserve is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 30 “Business Combinations” and has elected not to
restate negative goodwill previously credited to reserves. Accordingly, negative goodwill arising on acquisition
prior to 1st January, 2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be credited to income at the time of disposal
of the relevant subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition after 1st January, 2001 is presented as deduction from assets
and will be released to income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted.

To the extent that the negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses anticipated at the date of
acquisition, it is released to income in the period in which those losses or expenses arise. The remaining
negative goodwill is recognised as income on a straight line basis over the remaining average usefuli life of the
identifiable acquired depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair
value of the acquired identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income immediately.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is deducted from the carrying value of that
associate. Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance
sheet as a deduction from assets.

Iinvestments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interest in associates is stated at the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associates less any identified impairment loss.

The results of the associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year. Investments in associates are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost as
reduced by any identified impairment loss.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset is stated at cost less amortisation and any identified impairment loss. The cost of the
intangible asset is amortised over the estimated useful life on a straight line basis.
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Recognition of revenue
Revenue of the Group for the year is recognised on the following bases:
Sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title has been passed to the customers.
Hotel revenue from rooms and other ancillary services are recognised when the services are rendered.

Income from sale of completed properties is recognised on the execution of a binding sale and purchase
agreement.

Dividend income from investments in securities is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.

Income from sale of newspaper is recognised when the newspapers are delivered.

Income from advertisement in newspaper is recognised when the relevant advertisement is published.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties under operating leases, is recognised
on a straight line basis over the period of the respective leases.

impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as expenses immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Investment properties

investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at open market value based on professional valuation at the balance
sheet date. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment properties is credited
or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this reserve is insufficient to
cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a decrease has previously
been charged to the income statement and a revaluation increase subsequently arises, this increase is credited
to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve
attributable to the disposed property is transferred to the income statement.
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No depreciation or amortisation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term,
including the renewal period, of the relevant lease is twenty years or less.

Property, plant and equipment

Properties under construction, toll highway and construction in progress

Properties under construction, toll highway and construction in progress are stated at cost, which includes
land cost and the related construction cost and borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies, less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation or amortisation is provided on
properties under construction, toll highway and construction in progress until the construction is completed and
the properties, assets or toll highway are ready for use.

Hotel property .

Hotel property (including interests in land and building and its integral fixed plant) is stated at their open
market value based on professional valuation at the balance sheet date. Any surplus or deficit arising from the
same asset on the revaluation of the hotel property is credited or charged to the revaluation reserve of the same
asset unless the balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, in which case the excess of the deficit
over the balance on the asset revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a deficit has
previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation surplus subsequently arises, this surplus
is credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.

No depreciation is provided on hotel property or on its integral fixed plant. It is the Group’s policy to
maintain these asset in a continual state of sound repair and maintenance and to extend and make
improvements thereto from time to time, and accordingly the directors consider that given the estimated life of
this asset and its high residual value, any depreciation would be insignificant.

Other property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties under construction, toll highway, construction in
progress and hotel property, is stated at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the other items of the property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and land use rights Over the term of the lease or land use rights

Buildings 2% or the term of the lease or land use rights, if shorter
Furniture and fixtures 10%-25%

Machinery and equipment 10%-20%

Motor vehicles 12.5%-25%

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on the same
basis as assets owned by the Group.
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Properties under/held for development

Properties under/held for development where no decision has yet been taken to re-sell or hold for long
term purposes are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation and amortisation is
provided on properties under/held for development until the construction is completed and the properties are
ready for their intended use.

Costs comprise land cost, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy and other direct costs attributable to the properties under/held for development.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs
of purchase. Net realisable value is calculated at the actual or estimated selling price less related costs of
marketing and selling.

Operating leases

Rentals payable in respect of operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line
basis over the relevant lease term.

Investments in securities

investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose, are
measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is other than
temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or
loss for the period.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset,
which are assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are capitalised at their fair value at the date of acquisition. The
corresponding liability to the hirer, net of interest charges, is included in the balance sheet as a hire purchase
obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total commitments and the outstanding
principal amount at the inception of the hire purchase contracts, are charged to the income statement over the
period of the relevant contracts so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balances
of the obligation for each accounting period.
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inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on the
balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates which are denominated in
currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. All
exchange differences arising on consoclidation are dealt with in reserves.

Pension/Retirement benefit scheme

The pension costs/retirement benefit scheme contributions relating to the defined contribution
scheme/mandatory provident fund scheme charged to the income statement represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The amount of contributions payable
to previous schemes in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong are charged to the income statement.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are
non-assessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of
income and expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial
statements. The tax effect of timing differences, computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred
taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise in
the foreseeable future.

4. TURNOVER

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$§'000

Sales of goods, net of returns and sales taxes 2,986,793 3,091,851
Publication of newspaper 132,311 9,818
Sales of properties 58,800 12,500
Hotel operation 50,518 38,469
Rental income 5,982 5,420
3,234,404 3,158,058

The Group carries out its activities primarily in the People’s Republic of China (“*PRC") including Hong Kong,
details of the analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to results from operations by principal business
segment and geographical market are set out in note 5.
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into the following divisions. These divisions
are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution 1o operating results and segmental assets and
liabilities by business segments is as follows:

Investment
n
Toll Pharma- securities
highway Heavy Consumer Electronic  ceutical Property Hotel Newspaper and
aperation Tires industry goods products products investment operation publication receivables Others Elimination Consolidated
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$O000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
{Note}
For the year
ended
31st December, 2001
REVENUE
External sales — 2,608,862 115,036 189,706 24,310 62,071 65,662 50,518 132,311 — 78,872 — 3,325,348
Inter-segment
sales - -— - - — — 1,685 — — - 2,193 (3.878) -
Total revenus — 2,608,862 115,036 189,706 24,310 62,071 67,347 50,518 132,311 — 79,065 (3.878) 3,325,348
RESULT
Segment result  (360,272) (128,124) 2,583 7,180 (6.998) 8,591 (138,553)  (18,125) {31,683) (206,741} (2,782) (874,904)
Unallocated
corporate
expenses (104,018}
Finance costs (81,462)
Interest income 71,725
Dividend
income 5,509
Share of
results of
associates — — — — — (6,995) — — (8,998) — (2.004) (17,897}
Loss before
taxation (1,001,147)
Taxation (5,982)
Loss before
minority
interests (1,007.129)
Minority
intgrests 408,399
Net loss tor
the year {598,730)
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Tell
highway
operation
HKE'000

Assets and
liabilities at
31st December, 2001

ASSETS

Segment

Tires
HK§'000

assels 841,836 2,704,852

interest in

associates —
Unallocated

{otat

assets

Consolidated
total

assets

LIABILITIES
Segmant

liabilities (721,246)
Unallocated

corporats

liabilities

Consolidated
total

liabilities

Other
information
for the
year ended
31st December, 2001

Capital
expenditure
— Property,
plant
and
equipment 273,565
— Properties
undar/held
for
development  —
— Investment
properties —
Depreciation
and
amortisation —
Impairment
and
revaluation
loss 360,272
Other non-cash
oxpsenses —

88,133

(637,412)

118,185

110,796

90,524

84,972

Investment

in

Pharma- securities

Heavy Consumer Electronic  ceutical  Property Hotel Newspaper and
industry goods products products investment operation publication receivables  Others Elimination Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS§ 000 HK$'000

(Note)}

124177 111,669 20,933 185,625 602,285 208,102 — 1.037,962 96,889 5,934,330
— — — — 17,592 — 64,899 — 5,644 176,268
143,978
6,254,576
(44,244) (40.2B1}  {10,723) (B4,061) (121,401) (8,693) — — (2,191) (1.670.252)
{1,039,852)
(2,710,204)
4,181 11,167 34 114,393 21,508 - 41,383 — 1,000 585,436
—_ - - - 8,392 — — — — 8,392
— — — — 96,510 - - - — 96,510
4,348 7.584 837 1,078 1,792 - 18,165 — 1,794 146,403
- — — — 123,108 25,000 — 50,413 17,592 666,909
— . — _ — — — 139,972 — 224,944

Inter-segment revenue are charged at market rates.
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Investment
in
Tolt Pharma- securities
highway Heavy Consumer Electronic  ceutical Property Hotel Newspaper and
operation Tires industry goeds products products investment operation publication receivables Others Elimination Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
(Note)
For the year
ended
31st December, 2000
REVENUE
External sales — 2,680,155 107.965 209,248 92,797 30,241 19,678 38,469 9,818 — 58,841 — 3,247,208
Inter-segment
sales — — — — - - - — — — 2519 (2,519) —
Total revenue — 2,680,155 107,965 209,248 92,797 30,241 19,676 38,469 9,818 — 61,360 (2,519) 3,247,208
RESULT
Segment result — (35,382) (18,572) 5,467 (73) 30,241 2,743 (4.191) {7.626) (765,356) 12,993 (780.7586)
Unallocated
corparate
8Xpensses {52,718)
Finance costs (88,487)
Interest income 114,714
Dividend
income 6,509
Share of
resuits of
associates — — — — — — — — - 6,968 (18,115) (12,147)
Loss before
taxation (812,883)
Taxation {6,608)
Loss before
minority
interests (819,491)
Minority
interests 88,809
Net loss for
the year (730,682)
Assets and
liabilities at
31st December, 2000
ASSETS
Segment
assets 1,101,600 3,049,173 51,009 175,658 55,113 — 699,072 233,261 163,644 948,731 165,884 6,643,145
Interest in
associates — 89,889 — — - - -— - - - 25,863 115,752
Unallocated
total
assets 973,437
Consolidated
total
assets 7,732,334
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Toll
highway
operation
HK$'000

LIABILITIES
Sagment
liabilities (638,906)
Unallocated
corporate

liabilities

Consolidated
total

liabilities

Other
information
for the
year ended
31st
December,
2000

Capital
expenditure
— Property,
plant
and
equipment 873,273
— Properties
under/held
for
davelopment —
— Investment
proparties —
— Intangible
assets —
Depraciation
and
amortisation -
impairment
loss —
Othar non-cash

axpenses —_

Inter-segment revenue are charged

Note:

Tires
HK$'000

(742,576)

65.086

79.441

42,277

11,382

Heavy Consumer Electrenic
industry
HKS§'000

(51,651)

32,352

18,227

goods products
HKS$'000

(61,970)

8,609

8,420

Pharma-

ceutical Property

HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
(15,973) —  {194,552)
3,302 — 458,205

— — 200,410
— — 71,818
3,426 — 1,430

at market rates.

investment

in

securities

Hotel Newspaper and

products investment operation publication receivables

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{Note)
(21,722) {44,295) -—_
225,000 — —
- 107,656 —
- 448 —
— — 46,000
— — 482,656

Others Elimination Consolidated

HK$'000 HK$'000

(10,186)

2,118

26,724

HKS'000

(1,781,831)

(1,401,273)

(3,183,104)

1,667,943

200,410
71,818

107,656

111,382
115,001

494,038

In December 2001, the Group's interest in Actiwater Resources Limited (“Actiwater”), which is mainly engaged
in newspaper publishing, was disposed of to Sing Pao Media Group Limited (“Sing Pao Media”, formerly
STAREASTnet.com Corporation). The gain on disposal of Actiwater was approximately HK$93,806,000.

Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group held approximately 27.97% interest in S8ing Paoc Media and the
business segment of newspaper publishing was regarded as discontinued operation in 2001.
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Geographical Segments

The foliowing provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographic market, irrespective of the origin

of the goods/services:
Contribution to

loss from

Turnover operations
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
PRC, other than Hong Kong 3,006,346 3,144,185 (168,095) (55,713)
Hong Kong 228,058 13,873 (673,894) (647,819)
Overseas — — (59,699) (8,717)
3,234,404 3,158,058 (901,688) (712,249)
Finance costs (81,462) (88,487)
Share of results of associates (17,997) (12,147)
Loss before taxation (1,001,147) (812,883)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and capital additions analysed by
the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of

segment assets Capital additions
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
PRC, other than Hong Kong 4,799,836 5,554,164 676,251 1,837,167
Hong Kong 1,052,700 1,614,158 14,087 110,660
Overseas 402,040 564,012 — —
6,254,576 7,732,334 690,338 2,047,827
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6.

OTHER REVENUE

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net gain on disposal/dilution of interest in subsidiaries/business (note a) 26,057 16,892
Add: Goodwill previously credited to reserves 25,262 3,958
Exchange reserve realised 650 691
Non-distributable reserves realised 11,078 3,151
63,047 24,692

Gain on disposal/dilution of interest in associates (note b) — 15,436
Add/(Less): Goodwill previously written off against reserves — (3,751)
Exchange reserve realised — 2,735
Non-distributable reserves realised — 557

— 14,977

Interest income 71,725 114,714
Dividend income from listed investments 5,509 6,509
Write-back of allowance for bad debts 10,390 9,754
Others 17,507 39,727

168,178 210,373

Notes:

(a)

The net gain on disposal/dilution of interest in subsidiaries/business in 2001 comprises (i) the gain on
disposal of the Group’s interest in Actiwater of approximately HK$93,806,000; disposal of Gold Brilliant
Limited of approximately HK$3,309,000 and disposal of other subsidiaries of HK$16,035,000 and (ii) the
net loss on disposal of the Group’s interest in Dalian C.S.1. Metal Containers Co., Ltd of approximately
HK$8,812,000; Ningbo Zhonghua Electronics Co., Ltd of approximately HK$255,000; dilution of the
Group’s interest in China Land Group Limited (“China Land”) of approximately HK$30,038,000 and the
loss on disposal of certain business in Double Happiness Tyre industries Corporation Limited of
approximately HK$10,998,000.

The net gain on disposal/dilution/partial disposal of the interest in subsidiaries in 2000 comprised (i) the
net gain on disposal of the Group’s interest in China Estate (Holdings) Limited of HK$12,444,000; Yantai
C.S.1. Pharmaceutical Company Limited of HK$30,241,000; and partial disposal of other subsidiaries of
HK$5,036,000; and (ii} the net loss on disposal of the Group’s interest in Wuxi C.S.l. Mechanical and
Electrical Equipment Company Limited of HK$5,673,000 and Ningbo C.S.1. Power & Machinery Group
Company Limited of HK$17,356,000,

The net gain on disposal/dilution of interest in associates in 2000 comprised (i) loss on disposal of the
Group’s interest in China Packaging Equipment {H.K.) Company Limited of HK$2,488,000; (ii) the net gain
on dilution of the Group's interest in Asia Fiber Holdings Limited of HK$7,407,000; and (iii} the net gain
on dilution of the Group’s interest in Pacificnet.com, Inc. (“Pacificnet” formerly known as Creative Master
International, Inc.) of HK$10,058,000.
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7.  OTHER EXPENSES

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000

Impairment and revaluation loss on (note a):
— toll highway 360,272 —
— properties under construction 63,257 —
— construction in progress (note b) 61,493 —
— hotel property 25,000 —
— machinery and equipment 17,863 -
— motor vehicles _ﬂ =
529,041 —
— properties under/held for development 28,793 —
— properties held for sale 11,081 —
— investment properties 19,977 —
— goodwill of subsidiaries and associates 14,005 26,724
— interest of an associate 3,587 —
Unrealised holding loss on investments in securities 139,972 482,656
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 84,972 11,382
Loss on disposal of investments in securities 15,182 260,946
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,827 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories 10,012 42,277
Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan and interest receivables 50,413 46,000
909,862 869,985

Notes:

(a)

{b)

During the year, the directors of the Group reviewed the carrying amount of the property interests of the
Group in light of the current market condition, and with reference to the valuation report made by
independent firms of professional property valuers, the directors identified impairment and revaluation
loss on the property held by the Group. Accordingly, the impairment and revaluation loss has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year. Details of these are set out in notes 14, 15
and 16 to the financial statements.

Since 1993, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, Double Happiness Tyre Industries Corpaoration Limited
(“DH”) has undertaken the construction of a radial tire factory (the “Project”). In 1995, the Project was
temporarily suspended and the total costs incurred for the Project up to 31st December, 2000 were
approximately RMB257,844,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$242,107,000). These costs have been
included in construction in progress. Managements of DH and its immediate holding company, China
Enterprises Limited (“China Enterprises”, formerly China Tire e-commerce.com Limited and China Tire
Holdings Limited) are in the process of formulating and compromising on a financing plan for the Project.
A major reassessment on the capacity and technical specifications for the facility was carried out in 1999
and an appraisal (“the Appraisal’) of the replacement costs of the facilities was also conducted by a third
party PRC asset appraiser based on an assumption that the construction of the Project will be resumed.
In the absence of a definite financing plan, the directors of China Enterprises also performed an
assessment (“the Assessment”) of the value of the assets of the Project as at 31st December, 1999.
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Based on the resulis of the Appraisal and the Assessment, an aggregate potential impairment loss
provision was made to write down the carrying value of the assets of the Project by approximately
RMB122,400,000 (equivalent to HK$114,887,000) during the year ended 31st December 1999.

A further assessment (“Second Assessment”) on the assets of the Project was performed and a valuation
of the fair market value of the assets was conducted by American Appraisal Hongkong Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuer. Based on the resuits of the Second Assessment, the directors
considered no further provision is required for the carrying value of the assets of the Project for the year
ended 31st December 2000.

As at 31st December, 2001, management of DH and China Enterprises have reviewed the carrying
amount of the Project with reference to its estimated selling price. An impairment loss of HK$61,493,000
representing the difference between the estimated selling price and the carrying amount of the Project,
has been identified and has been recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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8.

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:

Staff costs
— directors remuneration (note 9(a))
— other staff costs (note 9(b))
— retirement benefits scheme contributions, excluding directors

Total staff costs
Less: amount capitalised in toll highway, properties under/held for
development and properties under construction

Auditors’ remuneration
Current year
Overprovision in prior year

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment:
— owned assets
— assets under hire purchase contracts

Less: amount capitalised in toll highway

Amortisation of intangible asset included in
administrative expenses

Amortisation of goodwill included in administrative
expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of investment properties

and after crediting:

2001
HK$'000

2,696
302,566
37,050

342,312

(6,565)

335,747

6,521
(2,135)

140,967

(231)

140,743

4,934

495
2,827
50

Net rental income in respect of premises after outgoings of HK$28,000

(2000: HK$36,000)
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11,886

2000
HK$'000

10,593
304,254

38,750

353,597

353,597

5,908
(21)

110,944

110,944

448

310

11,406
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

(a) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

2001 2000
HK$000 HK$'000
Fees
— Executive directors — 7,398
— Non-executive directors 295 50
— Independent non-executive directors 216 345
511 7,793
Qther emcluments
— Executive directors
Salaries and other benefits 2,185 2,800

2,696 10,593

The number of directors whose remuneration falls within the bands set out below is as follows:

2001 2000

Number of Number of

HK$ directors directors

Nil to 1,000,000 12 10
1,000,001 to 1,500,000

1,500,001 to 2,000,000 — 1

3,500,001 to 4,000,000 — —

7.000,001 to 8,000,000 — 1

13 13

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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(b) EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

The five highest paid individuals in the Group included two directors (2000: three directors) of the
Company, details of whose remuneration are set out above. The aggregate remuneration of the remaining
highest paid individuals, who are employees of the Group, is as follows:

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'600
Remuneration, salaries and other benefits 3,595 2,948
2001 2000
Number of Number of
HK$ employees employees
Nil to 1,000,000 1 —
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 2 . 1
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 — 1
3 2
10. FINANCE COSTS

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within five years:
Bank borrowings 81,423 89,709
Other borrowings 198 51
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 9 —
81,630 89,760
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly repayable within five years 39,605 26,728
121,235 116,488
Less: Amount capitalised in toll highway (39,773) (28,001)

81,462 88,487
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11. TAXATION

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
The (credit) charge comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax Overprovision in prior years — (183)
— (183)

Taxation in other jurisdictions 12,982 6,791
Overprovision in prior years (7,000) —
Taxation attributable to the Company and its subsidiaries 5,982 6,608

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. As the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are Sino-foreign joint venture enterprises, they are eligible for certain tax holidays and
concessions. Accordingly, certain of the PRC subsidiaries were exempted from PRC income tax or subject to tax at
reduced rates. PRC income tax is calculated at the applicable rates relevant to the PRC subsidiaries.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.

12. DIVIDEND

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000

Final dividend in 1999 at HK$0.01 per ordinary share as a result of
adoption of revised SSAP 9 described in note 2 — 46,098

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the net loss for the year of HK$598,730,000 (2000:
HK$730,682,000) and on the adjusted weighted average of 460,978,942 (2000: 459,375,955) ordinary shares in issue
during the year, after adjustment for the effect of the consolidation of the Company's shares as set out in note 30.

No disclosure of the diluted loss per share has been calculated for both years as the exercise of the share
options would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

VALUATION

At 1st January

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries
Disposal

Deticit arising on revaluation

At 31st December

THE GROUP

2001 2000
HKS$'000 HK$'000
71,818 51,954
96,510 71,818
(84,510) (51,954)
(14,500) —
(19,977) —
49,341 71,818

The Group's investments properties were revalued at 31st December, 2001 by CB Richard Ellis Limited and RHL
Appraisal Limited, independent firms of professional property valuers, on an open market value basis. Deficit arising
on the revaluation of HK$19,977,000 has been charged to the consolidated income statement.

The Group’s investment properties are held for rental under operating leases.

The carrying value of the investment properties comprises:

Properties held under medium-term leases in Hong Kong

Properties held under medium-term land use right in the PRC
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THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
12,000 14,500
37,341 57,318
49,341 71,818
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture Machinery Properties
Land and and and Motor under Toll Construction Hotel
buildings fixtures equipment vehicles construction highway in progress property Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THE GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
At 1st January, 2001 485,396 19,779 1,073,381 44,511 385,832 897,273 196,906 225,000 3,328,078
Acquired on acquisition
of subsidiaries 16,598 15,714 13,871 1,709 — - 29,179 — 77,071
Additions 3,236 14,087 97,175 3,050 18,257 273,565 98,995 - 508,365
Transfer 119 — 168,918 3,825 — — (172,862) — —_
Disposals (1,370)  (4,733) (12,416)  (5,743) — — — —  (24,262)
Deficit on revaluation — — — — — — — (25,000) (25,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries (47,829) (17,862) (206,950) (6,414) — - (238) —  (279,293)
At 31st December, 2001 456,150 26,985 1,133,979 40,938 404,089 1,170,838 151,980 200,000 3,584,959
Comprising:
At cost 456,150 26,985 1,133,879 40,938 404,089 1,170,838 151,980 — 3,384,959
At valuation — — — — — — — 200,000 200,000
456,150 26,985 1,133,979 40,938 404,089 1,170,838 151,980 200,000 3,584,959
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION
At 1st January, 2001 115,771 14,110 432,211 31,399 - — —_ — 593,491
Provided for the year 22,532 4,294 110,404 3,744 —_ — - — 140,974
Impairment loss — — 17,863 1,156 63,257 360,272 61,493 — 504,041
Eliminated on disposals (448) (3,946) (8,138) (3,085) — - — — (15,817)
Eliminated on disposal
of subsidiaries (13,838) (2,973) (67,378) (5,940) - - - — (90,129)
At 31st December, 2001 124,017 11,485 484,962 27,274 63,257 360,272 61,493 — 1,132,760
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2001 332,133 15,500 649,017 13,664 340,832 810,566 90,487 200,000 2,452,189
At 31st December, 2000 369,625 5,669 641,170 13,112 385,832 897,273 196,806 225,000 2,734,587
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(a)

(d)

Toll highway represents the Group’s interest in a toll highway under construction in Shenzhen (“Shenzhen
Highway”). In view of the fact that the toll rates approved by relevant PRC government authorities were
lower than their budgeted rates, the Group has recognised impairment loss with reference to the valuation
made by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional property valuers under a
discounted cash flow method, using a discount rate of 20% and taking into consideration the expected
future cost to complete the Shenzhen Highway and of the traffic projections and studies conducted by
Scott Wilson (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent traffic consultant of the Shenzhen Highway. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$360,272,000 has been identified which has been recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the current year. A subsidiary of the Company has been granted the
right to operate and manage the Shenzhen Highway for a period of 25 years up to 30th November, 2022.

The Group’s hotel property was revalued at 31st December, 2001 by CB Richard Ellis Limited, an
independent firm of professional property valuers, on an open market value basis.

The hotel property is situated in the PRC, other than Hong Kong, is held under medium-term fand use
right. The Group has been granted the right to operate and manage the hotel for a period from January
1987 to January 2017, and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled, the operating pericd may be
extended for a further period of 20 years.

The properties under construction are situated in the PRC, other than Hong Kong, and are held under
medium-term land use right. In view of the market condition, the Group has recognised an impairment loss
with reference to the valuation made by CB Richard Ellis Limited, an independent firm of professional
property valuers, on an open market basis. An impairment loss of approximately HK$63,257,000 has been
identified which has been recognised in the consolidated income statement in the current year.

The Group reviewed the carrying amount of machinery and equipment and motor vehicles using the
estimated selling prices of the machinery and equipment and motor vehicles in the proposed agreement
entered into between the Group and the potential purchaser. An impairment loss of approximately
HK$19,019,000 representing the difference between the estimated selling prices and the carrying amount
was identified which has been recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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(e)

At 31st December, 2001, included in net book value of toll highway is

HK$77,719,000 (2000: HK$37,946,000).

interest capitalised of

Land Furniture Machinery
and and and Motor
buildings fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY
COST
At 1st January, 2001 6,824 2,511 3,274 — 12,609
Additions — 71 231 541 843
Disposals — (922) (1,862) — (2,784)
At 31st December, 2001 6,824 1,660 1,643 541 10,668
DEPRECIATION
At 1st January, 2001 191 983 2,775 — 3,948
Provided for the year 170 308 208 68 754
Eliminated on disposals — (920) (1,837) — (2,757)
At 31st December, 2001 361 371 1,146 68 1,946
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st December, 2001 6,463 1,289 497 473 8,722
At 31st December, 2000 6,633 1,528 499 — 8,660

The net book value of the land and buildings shown above comprises:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Properties held under medium-term land
use rights in the PRC, other than Hong
Kong 332,133 369,625

THE COMPANY

2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$'000
6,463 6,633

The net book value of motor vehicle as at 31st December, 2001 included an amount of approximately

HK$263,000 in respect of assets held under hire purchase contracts. No assets were held under hire

purchase contracts as at 31st December, 2000.
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16. PROPERTIES UNDER/HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
COSsT
At 1st January 157,401 —
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiaries — 173,869
Development costs incurred during the year 8,392 26,541
Impairment loss (28,793) —
Transfer to properties held for sale — (43,009)
At 31st December 137,000 157,401
Comprising:
2001 2000
HK$°000 HK$'000
Properties held under medium-term land use rights
in the PRC, other than Hong Kong 111,000 131,086
Properties held under long-term land use rights
in the PRC, other than Hong Kong 26,000 26,315

137,000 157,401

Included above is the Group’s interest in development projects of the Hong Kong Macau Square under
medium-term land use right in Huizhou and of Lang De Dong under long-term land use rights in Taishan. In view of
the market condition, the Group has made impairment losses, with reference to the valuation made by CB Richard Ellis
Limited and BHL Appraisal Limited, both of which are independent firms of professional property valuers, on an open
market basis. An impairment loss of approximately HK$28,793,000 has been identified which has been recognised in
the consolidated income statement in the current year.

17.  PAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND DEVELOPMENT RIGHT
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

During the year, an agreement was entered into between the Company and ItERIEEESEEARRN (the
“People’s Government of Li Qiac Town”) for the joint development project of a piece of land which is adjacent
to the eastern side of Beijing Capital Airport, the PRC, under which the Company agreed to make an aggregate
payment of approximately HK$216,981,000 (equivalent to RMB230,000,000) to the People’'s Government of Li
Qiao Town for the land development right of the project.

As at 31st December, 2001, a partial payment of approximately HK$2,727,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,000,000) was paid by the Company.

— 49 —




APPENDIX | FINANCIAL INFORMATION

18. INTANGIBLE ASSET

THE GROUP
2001 2000

HK$000 HK$'000
COST
At 1st January 107,656 —
Addition — 107,656
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary (107,656) —
At 31st December — 107,656
AMORTISATION
At 1st January 448 _
Provided for the year 4,934 448
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary (5,382) —
At 31st December — 448
NET BOOK VALUES

At 31st December — 107,208

The intangible asset represents the rights to publish newspaper under the trademarks and tradenames of “Sing
Pao” and was amortised over a period of 20 years.

19. GOODWILL

THE GROUP
HK$'000

COSsT
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries during the year 53,112
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries (19,909)
At 31st December, 2001 33,203
AMORTISATION
Provided for the year and at 31st December, 2001 495
NET BOOK VALUES

At 31st December, 2001 32,708

At 31st December, 2000 —

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis and the amortisation period for goodwill is 20 years.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/RECEIVABLES DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES/PAYABLES DUE TO

SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries
Shares listed overseas, at cost
Unlisted shares, at cost

Market value of listed shares

Receivables due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Less: Impairment loss recognised

Payables due to subsidiaries
Amounts due to subsidiaries

2001
HK$000

228,703
100,483

329,186

23,868
3,598,640
(2,083,185)

1,615,455

709,918

2000
HK$'000

228,703
99,486

328,189

56,935

3,051,781

(871,870)

2,179,911

866,109

The receivables due from and payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

During the year, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying amount of the interests in subsidiaries of
the Company in light of the current market condition, the directors identified impairment and revaluation losses on
properties and unrealised loss on other investment held by the subsidiaries with reference to professional valuation

report and market value of shares an impairment loss of approximately HK$1,211 million has been identified in respect

of the receivables due from subsidiaries. Accordingly, the whole amount has been recognised in the income statement

as impairment losses for the year.
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2001 are as follows:

Proportion of

Issued nominal value of
Place of and fully issued share
incorporation/ paid ordinary capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
and registered held by Principal
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company activities

Directly Indirectly

% %
Australia Net.Com Limited Australia A$31,184,118 — 57.26  Investment holding
(“Australia Net.Com”) (note a) (note a)
China Land Bermuda US$27,248,386 — 65.56  Investment holding
(note b) (note b)
China Pharmaceutical Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 — 57.26  Investment holding
China Enterprises Bermuda Supervoting 33.27 24.84  Investment holding
(note ¢) Common Stock (note ¢) (note c)
US$30,000
Common Stock
US$60,173
DH (note f) PRC RMB280,684,311 — 55 Inactive
(note ¢)
Dazhai C.S.I. Cement Co., Lid. PRC RMB17,000,000 51 —  Manufacture of
(note f) cement
Rosedale Hote! Guangzhou Co., Ltd. PRC HK$89,700,000 — 81  Hotel operation
{formerly known as Guangzhou Jiang
Nan Hotel Co., Ltd.} (note )
Guang Zhou Jiang Nan Property Co., Ltd. PRC HK$68,000,000 — 75  Property
(note €) development
Hangzhou Zhongce Rubber PRC RMB469,748,777 — 51 Manufacture of
Company Limited (note ¢) tires
(“Hangzhou Rubber”) (note f)
Huizhou World Express Property Ltd. PRC HK$109,200,000 — 70  Property
(note e) development
Ningbo Zhonghua Taifeng Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB89,004,566 — 51 Production of flour,
(note f) monosodium

glutamate and
related food
products
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Proportion of

Issued nominal value of
Place of and fully issued share
incorporation/ paid ordinary capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
and registered held by Principal
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
% %

Shenzhen Longchen Xinyuan Industrial PRC RMB100,000,000 — 60  Construction and
Co., Ltd (“Longchen Xinyuan”) operation of toll
(note {) highway

Shenzhen SEZ Development Centre PRC HK$290,000,000 — 86  Development,

Co., Ltd. (note e) holding and
trading of
properties

Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited British Virgin US$10,000 — 100  Manufacture and
("Tung Fong Hung") (note d) Islands trading of

Chinese and
western
pharmaceutical
products

Yantai C.S.I. Rubber Co., Limited PRC RMB60,000,000 —_ 51  Manufacture of
(note f) (note ¢) tires

Yinchuan C.S.1. (Greatwall) Rubber PRC RMB667,833,000 — 51  Manufacture of
Co., Ltd. (note f) (note ¢) tires

Notes:

a. Australia Net.Com operates both in Australia and Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Australian

Stock Exchange. Australia Net.Com and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the investment holding
activities.

b. China Land operates in the PRC and Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

c. China Enterprises operates in the PRC and its shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. The
Group holds a 55.2% effective equity interest and an 88.8% voting interest in China Enterprises. China
Enterprises is a holding company which owns a majority stake in DH, Hangzhou Rubber, Yantai C.S.I.
Rubber Co., Limited and Yinchuan C.S.1. (Greatwall) Rubber Co., Ltd. at 31st December, 2001.

d. Tung Fong Hung operates in Hong Kong.

e. This is a PRC Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture.

f. This is a PRC Sino-foreign equity joint venture.
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None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the yeatr.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

21. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES/RECEIVABLES DUE FROM ASSOCIATES/PAYABLES DUE TO ASSOCIATES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Interest in associates
Share of net assets 156,132 115,752 — —
Goodwilt 20,136 — — —
Unlisted shares, at cost — — 2 2
176,268 115,752 2 2
Receivables due from associates
Amounts due from associates 13,517 5,323 473 1,083
Payables due to associates
Amounts due to associates 9,625 — — —

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The amount of HK$20,136,000 mainly represented goodwill arising on acquisition of Sing Pao Media in
December, 2001.

— 54 —




APPENDIX | FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Particulars of the principal associates at 31st December, 2001 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

capital/
registered
Place of capital held
incorporation/ Place of indirectly by the
Name of associate registration operation Company Principal activities
%
Hangzhou Zhongce Land PRC PRC 50 Property development
Co., Ltd. and investment
Hangzhou Sunrise Rubber PRC PRC 49.2 Manufacture of tire
Co., Ltd. (“Sunrise”)
Pacificnet Delaware, Hong Kong 29.52 Development,
United and marketing and
States Singapore supporting full
of America services of business
to business
e-commerce
solutions
Sing Pao Media Cayman Hong Kong 27.97 Media and publishing
Islands business “Sing Pac
Daily News" and
“Wide Angle

Magazine”, provision
of multimedia
entertainment and
life-style information
to the Chinese
community
worldwide

In 1998, the Group invested in Sunrise through Hangzhou Rubber for a total investment and registered capital
of US$29,980,000. The investment commitment was satisfied by the contribution of a radial tire factory under
construction. The radial tire factory commenced operations during the year.

During the year, the entire interest in Actiwater was disposed of to Sing Pao Media at a consideration satisfied
both by cash and shares issued in Sing Pao Media. Following the completion of the disposal, the Group held
approximately 27.97% interest in Actiwater.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, constituted a substantial
portion of the share of results or of net assets of the associates. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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22. RECEIVABLES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 » HK$°000
Loan and interest receivables (note a)
— secured 270,474 — — —
— unsecured 189,039 50,000 41,457 31,153
Receivables due from related companies
(note b) 534 — 28 —
Receivables due from PRC entities (note ¢) — 65,212 — —
460,047 115,212 41,485 31,153
Less: Impairment loss recognised (50,413) (46,000) — —
409,634 69,212 41,485 - 31,153
Less: Amounts due within one year and shown
under current assets (107,195) (50,217) (16,239) (4,673)
Amounts due after one year 302,438 18,995 . 25,246 26,480

Notes:

(a) Included in secured loan and interest receivables of approximately HK$123,491,000 and HK$110,583,000
were due from Danwei Limited (“Danwei”) and Lucklong Venture Limited (“Lucklong”) respectively. Mr. Lau
Ko Yuen, Tom, alternate director to Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna of the Group, is a director of the ultimate
holding company of Danwei and Lucklong. In addition, Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, director of the
Company, is also a director of Danwei and Lucklong. Shares of certain property holding companies held
by Danwei and Lucklong were pledged to the Group as securities to the loans.

Included in unsecured loan and interest receivables were amounts of approximately HK$51,701,000
(2000: Nil) due from investees of the Group and of approximately HK$45,183,000 (2000: HK$34,000,000)
advanced to China Development Corporation Limited, a former associate of the Group.

All the loan receivables carry interest at the prevailing market rate.
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(b)

(c)

Details of the receivables due from related companies are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Paul Y. — ITC Management Limited 24 — — —
Star East Bob Limited 160 — — —_
Star East Management Services Limited 157 — — —
Rosedale Hotel Management Limited 113 — — —
Star East Holdings Limited 80 — 28 —
534 — 28 —

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Paul Y. - ITC Management Limited and Rosedale Hotel Management Limited are wholly owned
subsidiaries of substantial shareholders of the Company.

Star East Management Services Limited and Star East Bob Limited are the subsidiaries of Star East
Holdings Limited, in which certain directors of the Company have beneficial interest.

Star East Holdings Limited is a company, in which certain directors of the Company have beneficial
interest.

Receivables from PRC entities as at 31st December, 2000 consisted primarily of a loan to a former joint
venture partner and was fully settled during the year.
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Equity securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Debt securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Club debenture

Total

Total and reported as:
Listed
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Unlisted

Classified under
Current
Non-current

Market value of listed securities

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Other investments Other investments
2001 2000 2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
261,403 316,375 — —
73,279 187,225 18,692 18,692
334,682 503,600 18,692 18,692
— 209,459 — —
177,188 110,400 — —
177,188 319,859 — —
1,538 1,538 825 825
513,408 824,997 19,517 19,517

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Other investments Other investments
2001 2000 2001 2000

HK%'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
214,248 207,671 — —

47,155 318,163 — —
252,005 299,163 19,517 19,517
513,408 824,997 19,517 18,5617

40,000 67,800 — —
473,408 757,197 19,517 19,517
513,408 824,997 19,517 19,517
261,403 525,834 — —
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The carrying value of listed securities in Hong Kong at 31st December, 2001 included an amount of
HK$71,005,500 and HK$60,834,000 (2000: HK$Nil and HK$74,178,000) representing 9.16% and 10% (2000: Nil and
10.01%) interest in Panva Gas Holdings Limited (“Panva Gas”) and Ming Pao Enterprises Corporation Limited (“Ming
Pao”), respectively. Panva Gas and Ming Pao are incorporated in Cayman Islands and Bermuda respectively and both
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The carrying value of the overseas listed debt securities at 31st December, 2000 represented PCCW convertible
bonds (“PCCW Bond”). The PCCW Bond is guaranteed by PCCW, carries interest at 3.5% per annum, matures on 5th
December, 2005 and will be redeemed at 120.12 per cent of the principal amount together with accrued interest.

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the PCCW Bond entitles the holders at any time after
5th January, 2001 up to 21st November, 2005 to convert the PCCW Bond into shares of PCCW at an initial conversion
price of US$1.0083 per share (equivalent to approximately HK$7.865 per share), subject to adjustment.

The PCCW Bond were fully disposed of during the year.

The carrying value of the unlisted debt securities at 31st December, 2001 included an investment of
HKS$52,585,000 in convertible bond (“G-Prop Bond") issued by G-Prop (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The G-Prop Bond is non-interest bearing and is due to redeem on 10th December, 2004
at HK$57,000,000. It entitled the holders at any time after 10th December, 2001 and up to 10th December, 2004 to
convert the G-Prop Bond into shares in G-Prop (Holdings) limited at a conversion price of HK$0.28 per share (subject
to adjustment).

The carrying value of G-Prop Bond at 31st December, 2000 of HK$50,400,000 carried interest of 7.5% per
annum and was fully redeemed by G-Prop (Holdings) Limited during the year.

The carrying value of the unlisted debt securities at 31st December, 2001 also included promissory note of
HK$40,000,000 (2000: HK$60,000,000) to a third party carries interest at prevailing market rate per annum, and
secured by shares in China Development Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

24. LOANS FROM/TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

THE GROUP

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and will not be repaid within one year and are therefore
shown as non-current.

25. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

THE GROUP

Properties held for sale were carried at net realisable value.

In respect of properties held for sale with a carrying amount of approximately HK$28,000,000, the transfer
of title to the land use right and property ownership has not yet been completed at the balance sheet date. The
Group has paid the full amount of the consideration in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement and
in the opinion of the directors, such transfer will be completed in due course.
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With reference to the valuation made by CB Richard Ellis Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, both are
independent firms of professional property valuers, on an open market basis. An impairment loss of

approximately HK$11,081,000 has been identified which has been recognised in the consolidated income

statement in the current year,

26. INVENTORIES

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$000 HK$'000
Raw materials 312,952 268,242
Work in progress 19,007 30,842
Finished goods 458,329 570,249

790,288

869,333

Included above are raw materials of HK$312,952,000 (2000: HK$268,242,000), work in progress of
HK$19,007,000 (2000: HK$30,842,000) and finished goods of HK$458,329,000 (2000: HK$568,099,000) which are

carried at their net realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was approximately HK$2,771,566,000 (2000:

HK$2,751,170,000).

27. TRADE DEBTORS

The Group allows its trade customers with credit period normally ranging from 90 days to 180 days. The aged

analysis of the trade debtors at the halance sheet date is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$000 HK$'000
0 - 90 days 330,169 323,133
90 - 180 days 93,564 244,787
Over 180 days 57,291 99,897

481,024
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28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

Included in creditors and accrued charges are creditors with the following aged analysis:

THE GROUP

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$ 000

0 - 90 days 278,148 322,077
90 - 180 days 43,876 82,623
Over 180 days 75,570 96,901
397,594 501,601

Add: Accrued charges 34,291 172,965

431,885

29. PAYABLES DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

Details of the payables due to related companies are as follows:

674,566

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Mass Success International Limited (i 594 — 594 —

Hanny Magnetics Limited (i) 1,234 — 151 —

ITC Management Limited (ii) 29,539 — 328 —

Paul Y. — ITC Management Limited ) 127 — — —
Paul Y. — ITC Construction Company

Limited (i 3,634 — — —

Tai Shan Paul Y. Construction Co., Ltd. (i) 1,364 — — —

36,492 — 1,078 —

Included in the amounts were payables due to Hanny Magnetics Limited and ITC Management Limited of
HK$1,083,000 and HK$26,267,000 respectively, which carry interest at prevailing market rate. The remaining amounts

are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Notes:

(i The companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of substantial shareholders of the Company.

(iiy ITC Management Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited, sharehaolder of the

Company’s substantial shareholder.
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30.

SHARE CAPITAL

Notes

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 31st December, 2000
and 1st January, 2001
Consolidation of shares (b)

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
Adjustment of nominal value (b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
Additions (b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 31st December, 2001

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1st January, 2000
Exercise of share options (a)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1st January, 2001
Consolidation of shares (b)

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
Adjustment of nominal value (b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 31st December, 2001

Notes:

Number
of shares Value
HK3$°000
8,000,000,000 800,000
(7,200,000,000) —
800,000,000 800,000
— (720,000)
800,000,000 80,000
7,200,000,000 720,000
8,000,000,000 800,000
4,480,289,420 448,029
129,500,000 12,950
4,609,789,420 460,979
(4,148,810,478) —_
460,978,942 460,979
— (414,881)
460,978,942 46,098

(a)  During the year ended 31st December, 2000, the Company issued and allotted 47,000,000, 32,500,000
and 50,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company for cash at HK$0.3, HK$0.344 and HK$0.405 per
share respectively as a result of the exercise of share options. The shares issued rank pari passu with

the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

(b)  Pursuant to resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting
held on 18th June, 2001, the Company carried out the following capital reorganisation (“Capitai

Reorganisation™):

— Every ten ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one ordinary share of HK$1.00 each (“Consolidated Share”)

(“Share Consolidation”);
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— Immediately following the Share Consolidation, the nominal vaiue of the issued and unissued
Consolidated Shares was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 each (“Capital Reduction”);

— The credit of approximately HK$415 million arisen as a result of the Capital Reduction was credited
to the special capital reserve account of the Company;

—_ Upon the Capital Reduction becoming effective, the authorised capital of the Company was
increased from HK$80,000,000 to HK$800,000,000 by the creation of an additional 7,200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

Details of the Capital Reorganisation were set out in the circular to the Company’s shareholders dated
23rd May, 2001 and were approved by the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
on 31st July, 2001.

31. SHARE OPTIONS

THE COMPANY

At 31st December, 2001, the options to subscribe for shares were outstanding under the Company’s share
option scheme are as follows:

Outstanding at

Exercisable period Exercise price 31.12.2001
HK$
21.7.1998 to 20.7.2002 6.060 36,750
12.01.2000 to 11.01.2005 3.440 50,000
14.02.2000 to 13.02.2005 4.050 290,000
376,750
SUBSIDIARY

China Enterprises

At 31st December, 2001, the options to subscribe for shares were outstanding under the share option
scheme of China Enterprises are as follows:

Outstanding at

Exercisable period Exercise price 31.12.2001
uss

3.2.2000 to 2.2.2010 9.9375 20,000

China Land

No options under the share option scheme were granted or exercised during the year and no options were
outstanding as at 31st December, 2001.
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32. RESERVES

THE GROUP
At 1st January, 2000
— as originally
reported
— Prior period
adjustment
(note 2)

As restated
Exchange
adjustment
Premium on issue of
shares
Arising on
acquisition of
interests in
subsidiaries and
associates
Impairment loss of
goodwill of an
associate
Realised on
disposal
of interest in
subsidiaries
Realised on
disposal/dilution
of interest in
associates
Share of net
reserves
movement of
associates
Appropriated from
retained profits
Net loss for the year
Dividend (note 2)

At 31st December,
2000

Exchange

" adjustment

Other
Special Capital Goodwill non-dis- Retained
Share capital redemption on con- Exchange tributable profits

premium reserve reserve solidation reserve reserves (deficit) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
1,844,149 — 233 30,693 16,844 34,368 1,002,159 2,928,446
— — — — — —_ 46,098 46,098
1,844,149 — 233 30,693 16,844 34,368 1,048,257 2,974,544
- - - — (1,223) — — (1,223)
32,580 — — — — — — 32,5680
— — — 157,581 — - — 157,581

— — — 26,724 — — — 26,724

— — — (3,958) (691) (3,151) — (7,800)

— — — 3,751 (2,735) (557) — 459

— — — (12,097) (7,317) 2,204 —  (17,210)

- — — — — 1,539 (1,539) —

— — — — — — (730,682) (730,682)

__ — —_ — — — (46,098) (46,098)
1,876,729 — 233 202,694 4,878 34,403 269,938 2,388,875
— — — — (7,277) — — (7,277)
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Other
Special Capital Goodwill non-dis- Retained
Share capital redemption on con- Exchange tributable profits
premium reserve reserve solidation reserve reserves (deficit) Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS000 HK$'000

Arising from Capital

Reorganisation

(note 30) — 414,881 — — — — — 414,881
Impairment loss of

goodwill of

subsidiaries and

associates — — — 14,005 — — — 14,005
Realised on

disposal/dilution

of interest in

subsidiaries — — — (25,262) (650) (11,078) —  (36,990)
Share of net

reserves

movement of

associates — —_— — — (72) — —_ (72)

Appropriated from
retained profits —_ — — — — 12,068  (12,068) —
Net loss for the year — — — — — — (598,730) (598,730)

At 31st December,
2001 1,876,729 414,881 233 191,437 (3,121) 35,393 (340,860) 2,174,692

Attributable to:
The Company

and
its subsidiaries 1,876,729 414,881 238 194,547 (3,111) 35,393 (245,191) 2,273,481
Associates — — — (3,110) (10) — (95.,669) (98,789)

1,876,729 414,881 233 191,437 (3,121} 35,393 (340,860) 2,174,692
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Special Capital Retained
Share capital redemption profits
premium reserve reserve (deficit) Total

HKE§’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY

At 1st January, 2000 1,844,149 — 233 145,713 1,990,085
Prior period adjustment (note 2) — — — 46,098 46,098
As restated 1,844,149 — 233 191,811 2,036,193
Premium on issue of shares 32,580 — — — 32,580
Net loss for the year — — — (569,315) (569,315)
Dividend (note 2) — — — (46,098) (46,098)
At 31st December, 2000 1,876,729 — 233 (423,602) 1,453,360
Arising from Capital Reorganisation

(Note 30) — 414,881 — — 414,881
Net loss for the year — — — (621,305) (621,305)
At 31st December, 2001 1,876,729 414,881 233 (1,044,907) 1,246,936

The other non-distributable reserves of the Group include statutory reserves required to be appropriated from
the profit after taxation of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries under PRC laws and regulations. The amount of the
appropriation is at the discretion of the PRC subsidiaries’ board of directors.

Iincluded in goodwill on consolidation as at 31st December, 2001, HK$19,316,000 (2000: HK$33,321,000) and
HK$210,753,000 (2000: HK$236,015,000) represented goodwill and negative goodwill arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates respectively.

The special capital reserve of the Group represents the amount arising from the Capital Reduction as described
in note 30(b).

During the year, the management of the Group reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill with reference to the
business operated by those subsidiaries and associates. Those subsidiaries and associates are mainly engaged in the-
provision of e-commerce solution services and in view of the current economic condition in these businesses, fuli
amount of impairment loss of HK$14,005,000 has been identified and recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

At 31st December, 2001 and 2000, the Company had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders.
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33.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The major components of the deferred taxation (credit) charge not recognised for the year are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tax effect of timing differences attributable to:
Difference between depreciation allowances
claimed for tax purposes and depreciation
charged in the financial statements 393 (216) 187 (6)
Tax loss (arising) utilised (109,097) (15,295) 1,273 18,665
Other timing differences (193) — (325,368) —
Impairment and revaluation losses on properties (476) — — —
(109,373) (15,511) (323,908) 18,659

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the deferred taxation asset (liability), not recognised in the

financial statements, are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tax effect of timing differences attributable to:
Excess of depreciation allowances claimed for
tax purposes over depreciation charged in
the financial statements (6,166) (5,773) (527) (340)
Unutilised tax losses 307,696 198,599 22,000 23,273
Other timing differences 5,462 5,269 333,000 7,632
Impairment and revaluation losses on properties 11,333 10,857 — —
318,325 208,952 354,473 30,565

The deferred taxation asset is not recognised because it is uncertain whether the tax benefit will be realised in

the foreseeable future.
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34. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank loans

Obligations under hire purchase contracts
(Note)

Bank overdrafts

Other borrowings

Repayable as follows:

Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Over five years

Less: Amount due within one year included
under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,515,206 1,932,970 20,000 -
187 — 46 -
— 11,902 — 8,798
— 1,886 — —
1,515,393 1,946,758 20,046 8,798
922,272 1,351,545 20,011 8,798
53,754 48,080 35 —
24,386 32,152 — —
514,981 514,981 - _
1,515,393 1,946,758 20,046 8,798
(922,272)  (1,351,545) (20,011) (8,798)
593,121 595,213 35 —

Of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group, HK$672,735,000 (2000: HK$1,298,298,000) are secured
by property, plant and equipment and bank deposits of the Group.
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35.

Note:

Minimum lease payments
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Amounts payable under
hire purchase contracts:

Present value of
minimum lease payments
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Within one year 24 — 14 — 14 — 1 —
in the second to fifth years

inclusive 189 — 47 — 173 — 35 —

213 — 61 — 187 — 46 -

Less: Future finance

charges (26) — (15) — — — — —
Present value of lease

obligations 187 — 48 — 187 — 46 —
Less: Amount due within one year (14) - (11) —
Amount due after one year 173 — 35 —

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under hire purchase contracts. The average

term of hire purchase contract is 5 years. Interest rate is fixed at the contract date. All hire purchase contracts

are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under hire purchase contract are secured by the lessor’s charge on the hired assets.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

THE GROUP

The amounts represent deposits received in connection with the pre-sale of certain properties under/held
for development. The deposits will be transferred to the income statement upon the execution of the binding sale

and purchase agreements.

In the opinion of the directors, the binding sale and purchase agreements are uniikely to be executed
within one year and the deposits are therefore shown in the balance sheet as non-current.
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LOSS BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2001 2000

HK$'000 HK$'000

Loss before taxation (1,001,147) (812,883)
Share of results of associates 17,997 12,147
Dividend income (5,509) (6,509)
Interest income (71,725) (114,714)
Interest expenses 81,462 88,487
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 140,743 110,944
Amortisation of intangible asset 4,934 448
Amortisation of goodwill 495 —
Unrealised loss on investments in securities 139,972 482,656
Loss on disposal of investments in securities 15,182 260,946
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 84,972 11,382
Impairment and revaluation loss of property, plant and equipment 529,041 —
Impairment loss of goodwill of subsidiaries and associates 14,005 26,724
Impairment loss of interest in an associate 3,587 —
Impairment loss of properties under/heild for development 28,793 —
Deficit arising on the revaluation of investment properties 19,977 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties held for sale 11,081 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories 10,012 42,277
Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan and interest receivables 50,413 46,000
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,827 310
Gain on disposal/dilution of interests in subsidiaries/business (63,047) (24,692)
Gain on disposal/dilution of interest in associates — (14,977}
Write-back of allowance for bad debts (10,390) (9,754)
Loss on disposal of investment properties 50 —
increase in inventories (57,621) (92,242)
increase in trade debtors (11,759) (53,815)
Decrease in properties held for sale 70,300 16,000
Increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (109,333) (160,084)
Increase in creditors, accrued charges and other payables 198,178 338,005
(Decrease) increase in other tax payable (7,614) 14,133
Decrease in deposits received — (3,447)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 85,876 157,342

— 70 —




APPENDIX | FINANCIAL INFORMATION

37. DISPOSAL/DILUTION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed of:
investment properties 84,510 51,954
Property, plant and equipment 188,164 109,152
Goodwill 19,909 —
Intangible asset 102,274 —
Investments in securities 26,262 —
Interest in associates 19,432 —_—
Inventories 197,426 15,548
Trade debtors 175,958 93,406
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 240,996 84,922
Bank balances and cash 76,490 22,503
Creditors and accrued charges (402,133) (136,735)
Income and other taxes payable (75) —
Bank loans and other borrowings (314,750) (61,465)
Minority interests (35,268) (76,472)
380,195 102,813
Goodwill reserve realised {25,262) (3,958)
Exchange reserve realised (650) (691)
Other non-distributable reserves realised (11,078) (3,151)
343,205 95,013
Gain on disposal/dilution 63,047 24,692
406,252 119,705
Satisfied by:
Cash 360,296 68,999
Other receivables — 32,015
Investments in securities — 18,691
Interest in associates 9,556 —
Receivables 36,400 —
406,252 119,705
Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection
with the disposal/dilution of subsidiaries/business:
Cash consideration received 360,296 68,999
Bank balances and cash disposed of (76,490) (22,503)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 283,806 46,496
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The subsidiaries disposed of during the year contributed cash outflow of HK$122,484,000 (2000: cash outflow
of HK$6,288,000) to the Group’s net operating cash outflow, paid tax liabilities of HK$1,721,000 in 2000, received
HK$5,994,000 in respect of investing activities (2000 paid HK$1,787,000) and received HK$98,504,000 in respect of
financing activities (2000: HK$12,217,000).

The subsidiaries/business disposed of during the year contributed HK$132,311,000 (2000: HK$30,241,000) to
the Group's turnover, and HK$31,663,000 (2000: HK$168,000) to the Group's loss from operations.

38. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS

2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets acquired:
Investment properties 96,510 71,818
Property, plant and equipment 77,071 1,428,425
Intangible asset — 107,656
Interest in associates 19,466 —
Property under development — 173,869
Properties held for sale 83,180 4,073
Investments in securities 54,599 35,563
Receivables 44,201 —
Inventories 70,771 1,205
Trade debtors 27,304 7,462
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 150,390 —
Loan to minority shareholders — 28,074
Tax recoverable 129 —
Advances to contractors — 169,082
Bank balances and cash - 52,568 177,325
Creditors and accrued charges (109,964) (138,636)
Deposits received — (80,085)
Bank loans and other borrowings (104,941) (457,665)
Obligations under hire purchase contracts (143) —
Minority interests (51,738) (549,164)
409,403 979,002
Goodwill arising on acquisition 53,112 (170,114)
462,515 808,888
Satisfied by:
Cash 407,018 703,637
Interest in an associate 37,032 92,711
Investments in securities — 12,540
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 18,465 —
462,515 808,888
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Analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection with the purchase of subsidiaries/

business:

2001

HK$'000

Cash consideration paid (407,018)

Bank balances and cash acquired 52,568
Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection with

the purchase of subsidiaries/business (354,450)

2000
HKE 000

(7083,637)

177,325

(526,312)

The subsidiaries/business acquired during the year contributed cash outflow of HK$26,486,000 (2000:
HK$107,130,000) to the Group’'s net operating cash outflow, paid HK$16,659,000 in 2000 in respect of net returns on
investments and servicing of finance, received refund of income tax of HK$1,213,000 in 2000, received HK$6,056,000
(2000: utilised HK$139,959,000) in respect of investing activities and utilised HK$3,037,000 (2000: HK$177,088,000)

in respect of financing activities.

The subsidiaries/business acquired during the year contributed HK$99,967,000 (2000: HK$66,208,000) to the

Group’s turnover, and HK$87,730,000 (2000: HK$9,074,000) to the Group’s loss from operations.
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39. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR

Share Payables Obligations
capital and Bank loans Amounts due to under hire
share and other Minority due to related purchase
premium borrowings shareholders associates companies contracts
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Balance at 1st January,
2000 2,292,178 1,272,327 1,356,532 — — —
Proceed on issue of new
shares, net of expenses 45,530 — — — — —
New borrowings obtained — 1,509,767 — — — —
Contribution from minority
shareholders — — 15,348 — — —
Purchase of additional
interest in subsidiaries — — (11,514) — — —
Repayments — (1,243,438) — — — —
Acquisition of
subsidiaries/business — 457,665 549,164 — — —
Disposal/partial disposal of
subsidiaries — (61,465) (76,472) — — —
Loss attributable to minority
shareholders — — (88,809) — — —
Non-cash related
movements — — 4,748 — — —
Dividends paid to minority
shareholders — — (23,140) — — —
A
Balance at
31st December, 2000 2,337,708 1,934,856 1,725,857 — — —
Capital Reorganisation (414,881) — — — — —
New borrowings obtained — 1,183,688 — — — 53
Contribution from minority
shareholders — —_ 42,602 — — —
Repayments —  (1,393,529) — — (16,917) (9)
Advance — — — 9,625 53,409 —
Acquisition of
subsidiaries/business — 104,941 51,738 — — 143
On disposal/partial disposal
of subsidiaries — (314,750) (35,268) — — —
Loss attributable to minority
shareholders — — (408,399) — — —
Non-cash related
movements — — (5,345) — — —
Dividends paid to minority
shareholders — — (4,124) — — —
Balance at
31st December, 2001 1,922,827 1,615,206 1,367,061 9,625 36,492 187
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40.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the major non-cash transactions are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(e)

Decrease in interest in associates of approximately HK$37,032,000 and other receivables of
approximately HK$18,465,000 were part of the consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiaries.

Additions to interest in associates of approximately HK$9,556,000 and loan receivables of approximately
HK36,400,000 were part of consideration received for disposal of certain subsidiaries.

Additions to toll highway of HK$188,331,000 were transferred from advances to contractors.

Hire purchase arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with a capital value of the
contracts amounted to approximately HK$53,000.

investment in securities of approximately HK$64,295,000 was reclassified as interest in associates
following the increase of the Group’s interest in the associate.

In 2000, the major non-cash transactions are as follows:

(a)

Addition to investments in securities of HK$18,691,000 and receivables of HK$32,015,000 were part of
the consideration received from the disposal of a subsidiary. Increase in investments in securities of
HK$7,542,000 was the settlement of an outstanding receivable.

Interest in associates of HK$4,817,000 was reclassified as investments in securities foliowing the dilution
of the Group’s interest in the associate.

Convertible note receivable from an associate of HK$232,110,000 was set off against the amount of
consideration required for the acquisition of interest in a company from the associate.

Properties under/held for development of HK$43,009,000 was transferred to properties held for sale.
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41. COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following capital commitments:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Contracted for but not provided in the financial

statements in respect of:

— Land development right 214,254 — 214,254 —
— Property, plant and equipment 18,005 —_ — —
— Properties under/held for development 26,902 23,640 — —
— Properties under construction 129,393 227,150 — —
— Construction in progress 10,849 173,848 — —
399,403 424,639 214,254 —

Authorised but not contracted for in respect of
property, plant and equipment 35,096 — - —

42. OQPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group has made approximately HK$17,432,000 (2000: HK$10,091,000) minimum lease payments under
operating leases during the year in respect of office premises.

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Within one year 26,429 4,802 992 142
In the second to fifth years inclusive 25,482 8,720 — —
Over five years 1,678 — — —
53,589 13,522 992 142

Lease are negotiated for an average term of two to three years and rentals are fixed for an average of two
to three years.
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The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$11,914,000 (2000: HK$11,442,000). Certain of the
properties have committed tenants for next three to seven years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted which tenants for the following future minimum lease

payments:
THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$°000 HK$'000
Within one year 9,479 11,413
In the second to fifth years inclusive 18,633 18,936
Over five years 994 2,775
29,106 33,124
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(a) Corporate guarantee given by the
Company for banking facilities
granted to subsidiaries — — 95,243 50,000
Extent of the Group’s share of facilities
utilised in respect of guarantees given to
financial institutions to secure credit

facilities granted to subsidiaries — - 13,000 71,500

Other guarantees issued to:
Associates 2,357 2,357 — —
Outsiders 180,725 278,689 780 780
183,082 281,046 109,023 122,280

(b} The Company granted a guarantee in favour of MTR Corporation Limited (“MTR") in respect of
outstanding rent and obligations under the tenancy agreement entered into between Tung Fong Hung
Medicine (Retail) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and MTR for the leased properties.

(c) In August 1999, the architect of Paul Y. Plaza (formerly known as Jiangnan Centre) initiated legal
proceedings against Eventic Limited (“Eventic”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Land in respect of
claim for payment of service fees and other expenses of HK$0.6 million and HK$6.6 million respectively.

Eventic has vigorously defended the claims and made a counterclaim for loss and damages suffered due
to insufficient supervision services provided.
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44,

(e)

In view of the counterclaim made by Eventic, the architect amended its total ¢claims to HK$7.7 million. At
the date of this report, the proceedings are still ongoing. After taking into consideration the advice of
China Land’s legal counsel, the directors consider the outcome of the proceedings will not have material
adverse financial effect on the Group.

In July 2001, Huizhou World Express Property Ltd. (“Huizhou World Express”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of China Land, initiated legal proceedings against the Huizhou Municipal Government
of the Guangdong Province the PRC, in its capacity as the guarantor of Huizhou Jia Cheng Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Huizhou Jia Cheng"}, the main contractor for the construction of Hongkong Macau Square, under
a guarantee letter dated 7th September, 1994 executed by the Huizhou Municipal Government in favour
of Huizhou World Express. The amount claimed by Huizhou World Express was approximately RMB243.6
million, being the construction costs of approximately RMB167.5 million paid by Huizhou World Express
to Huizhou Jia Cheng together with the damages for the amount of approximately RMB76.1 million.

As at the date of this report, Huizhou World Express is waiting for the hearing of the case. At this stage,
the outcome cannot be predicted with certainty. As the total construction costs of Hongkong Macau
Square has already been written off, the directors are of the opinion that there is unlikely to be any
material adverse financial impact on the Group in the event that the final judgement is not in favour of
Huizhou World Express.

in November 2001, the purchasers (the “Purchasers”) on certain properties of Hongkong Macau Square,
Huizhou according to the pre-sale agreements dated 7th September, 1994 initiated legal proceedings
against Huizhou World Express for failure to hand over the properties of Hongkong Macau Square to the
Purchasers. The amounts claimed by the Purchasers were approximately HK$76.6 million, being the
pre-sale deposit together with damages of approximately RMB64.2 million and relevant legal expenses.

In January 2002, Huizhou World Express filed in its defences alleging that in accordance with the terms
of the above-mentioned agreements, any disputes between the contractual parties should be resolved by
means of arbitration. As at the date of the report, the Intermediate People’s Court of Huizhou, Guangdong
Province, is still considering the cases. At this stage, the outcome cannot be predicted with certainty and
no further provision has been made in the financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2001, the following assets were pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the Group:

(a)

Bank loans and other borrowings — due after one year

Investment properties with a carrying value of HK$17,630,000 (2000: HK$32,130,000)

Certain property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$234,462,000 (2000: HK$238,033,000)

Investment in security of HK$5,244,000 (2000: Nil).

Certain shares in associates with carrying value of approximately HK$53,194,000 (2000: Nil}.

Bank loans and other borrowings — due within one year

Bank deposits of HK$83,520,000 (2000: HK$612,351,000).
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Longchen Xinyuan pledged its right to toll fee income to a bank to secure the credit facilities for the year ended

31st December, 2000 and 2001.

At 31st December, 2000, a subsidiary of China Land issued two debentures in favour of a bank by way of
creating a first floating charge on its entire interest in Longchen Xinyuan pledged with a carrying value of
HK$618,999,000 to secure the credit facilities. The debentures were released upon repayment of the bank borrowings

during the year.

45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related companies as follows:

Name of company

Pacificnet

Sing Pao Newspaper
Management Limited

Star East Management Limited

Lucklong

Danwei

Total Pacific Limited

Mass Success International
Limited

Hanny Magnetics Limited

ITC Management Limited

Paul Y. — ITC (E & M)
Company Limited

Nature of transactions

Management fee income
received
and receivable by the Group

Loan interest income received
and receivable by the Group

Loan interest income received
and receivable by the Group

Loan interest income received
and receivable by the Group

Loan interest income received
and receivable by the Group

Rental income received and
receivable by the Group

Rental expenses paid and
payable
by the Group

Building management fee paid
and payable by the Group

Management fee paid and
payable
by the Group

Loan interest expense paid and
payable by Group

Loan interest paid and payable
by the Group

Repair and maintenance fee paid
and payable by the Group

Purchase of fixed assets
by the Group

Mechanical and electrical
service fee paid and payable
by the Group
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Name of company

Paul Y. — ITC Construction
Limited

Super Park Development
Limited

Star East (Taishan Properties)
Limited

Gunnell Properties Limited

Cycle Company Limited

Tung Fong Hung

Cargill Private Limited

Notes:

Nature of transactions

Interest paid and payable
by the Group

Motor vehicles purchased
by the Group

Motor vehicles purchased '
by the Group

Rental expenses paid and
payable by the Group

Loan interest income received
and receivable by the Group

Proceeds on disposal of motor
vehicles received and
receivable
by the Group

(a) Pacificnet is an associate of the Group.

Notes 2001
HK$'000

) 151
(e) 400
(c) 216
) 2,386
(h) 105
0 1,826

2000
HK$ 000

(b)  Sing Pao Newspaper Management Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of an associate of the Group.

(c)  Star East Management Limited and Star East (Taishan Properties) Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Star East Holdings Limited, in which certain directors of the Company had beneficiary interest.

(d) Danwei and Lucklong are companies, in which certain directors of the Company are the directors of their

ultimate holding company and the directors of Danwei and Lucklong.

(e)  Total Pacific Limited and Super Park Development Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of a former

associate of the Group.

(f) Mass Success International Limited, Hanny Magnetics Limited, Paul Y. (E & M) Company Limited, Paul

Y. — ITC Construction Limited, Gunnell Properties Limited and Cycle Company Limited are wholly-owned

subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

{g) ITC Management Limited is the shareholder of the Company’'s substantial shareholder.

(hy  Tung Fong Hung is a former associate of the Group.

(i) Cargill Private Limited is an associate of Mr. Oei Hong Leong, an ex-director of the Company.
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Details of balances with related parties as at the balance sheet date are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet and in notes 22 and 29.

In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions were undertaken in the ordinary course of business
transactions and the terms were mutually agreed between the Group and the related parties.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant transactions with related parties during the year or
significant balances with them at the end of the year.

46. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not operate retirement schemes covering their local
permanent employees before 1st December, 2000. The amount of provision for long service payments and the related
charge to the income statement for the year ended 31st December, 2000 are immaterial.

With effect from 1st December, 2000, the Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contributions payables in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions relating to the MPF Scheme charged to the income statement
represent contributions payable to the scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The amount of contributions payable to pension schemes in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong are charged to
the income statement.

The employees in the joint venture subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-sponsored pension
scheme operated by the government in the PRC. The joint venture companies are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the pension scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

At the balance sheet date, there were no significant forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the scheme prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming fully vested and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group in future years.
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47. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The following events occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date:

(a)

(b)

(c)

China Enterprises, a subsidiary of the Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into
agreement to acquire approximately 4,800,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in Ananda Wing
On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Ananda Wing On”), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
for a consideration of approximately HK$123,600,000.

China Enterprises also entered into agreements with Ananda Wing On whereby Ananda Wing On agreed
to issue convertible note with principal amount of HK$120,000,000 to China Enterprises.

The transactions has not yet been completed at the date of this financial statements.

China Land, a subsidiary of the Company, announced that the agreement entered by the wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Land on 13th July, 2001 regarding the acquisition of certain properties in Beijing, the
PRC, at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$188 million has become null and void as the
results of the due diligence investigation of the properties were not up to the reasonable satisfaction to
China Land.

On the same date, China Land also announced that a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Land
renounced the options agreed to grant to that subsidiary on 13th July, 2001 to acquire the development
rights for up to 600,000 square meters, being the intended total gross floor area of Phase Il of Jiulong
Garden in Beijing, the PRC, at a consideration of RMB1,700 per square meter due to non-fulfilment of the
condition set out in the agreement in relation to the options.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a board of directors’ meeting of the Company held on 14th March,
2002, the Company proposed to issue not less than 921,957,884 new shares of HK$0.10 each by way of
rights issue ("Rights Issue™) at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per share to the existing shareholders, in
the proportion of two rights shares for every one existing share held, with the bonus issue of warrants.

The bonus issue of warrants will be issued to the sharehoiders under the Rights Issue on the basis of
three units of subscription rights with initial subscription price of HK$0.17 each of every ten new shares
taken up.

The transactions have not yet been completed at the date of this financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS
Borrowings

At the close of business on 30 June, 2002 (being the latest practicable date for the
purpose of this indebtedness statement prior to the printing of this prospectus), the Group had
outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$1,841 million, comprising secured bank loans of
approximately HK$725 million, unsecured bank loans of approximately HK$798 million and
other borrowings of approximately HK$318 million which included an amount due to a
substantial shareholder of the Company’'s shareholder of approximately HK$36.9 million,
amounts due to related companies of approximately HK$1 million, obligations under hire
purchase contracts of approximately HK$0.1 million and loan payables of approximately
HK$280 million. Included in the unsecured bank loans are amounts of approximately HK$581.1
million which are guaranteed by minority shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate of the
Company.

Debt securities
As at 30 June, 2002, the Group had no debt securities.
Securities and guarantees

The secured borrowings as shown above were secured by certain property, plant and
equipment of the Group with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$172.4 million,
the right to receive the toll fee income of a subsidiary of the Group which is engaged in the
operation of a toll highway, interests in associates with a carrying value of approximately
HK$53.2 million, investment properties of approximately HK$13.7 million, investment
securities of approximately HK$2 million, bank deposits of approximately HK$9.6 million and
all the assets of a subsidiary of the Company.

Contingent liabilities

At 30 June, 2002, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees in favour
of banks for facilities granted to an associate of approximately HK$180 million and third parties
of approximately HK$9 million.

Disclaimer

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities and the litigation as set out under
the section headed “Litigation” in Appendix lil to this prospectus, the Group did not have, at
the close of business on 30 June, 2002, any loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to
be issued, bank overdrafts, ioans or other similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances
or acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, obligations under hire purchases
contracts or finance leases, guarantees, or other material contingent liabilities.

— 83 —



APPENDIX | FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Foreign currency amounts have been translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the close of business on 30 June, 2002.

The Directors have confirmed that there has been no material change in the indebtedness
and contingent liabilities of the Group since 30 June, 2002 and up to the Latest Practicable
Date.

WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors are of the opinion that based on available banking and other facilities and
the internal resources of the Group, together with the expected net proceeds of the Rights
Issue, the Group has sufficient working capital for its present requirements.

MATERIAL CHANGES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not aware of any material adverse
change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 December, 2001, the date to
which the latest published financial statements toc the Group were made up.

Proforma net tangible assets of the Group

The following is an unaudited pro forma statement of adjusted net tangible assets of the
Group after taking into account the Rights Issue, placement of new shares and acquisition of
34.6% interest in Ananda Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Ananda”) by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company in April 2002. It is based on the audited financial statements
of the Company as at 31 December, 2001 adjusted to reflect the Rights Issue and certain
adjustments since 31 December, 2001.

HK$'000
Audited consolidated net assets value of the Group as at
31 December, 2001 2,220,790
Less: intangible asset
— Goodwill (32,708)
Audited consolidated net tangible assets value of the Group as at
31 December, 2001 2,188,082
Add: Negative goodwill arising from acquisition of interest in an
associate (Note 1) 76,791
Net proceeds of placement in June 2002 17,400
Unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible assets value of
the Group before Rights Issue 2,282,273
Estimated net proceeds from Rights Issue 40,000
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Unaudited proforma consolidated net tangible assets value of
the Group upon completion of Rights Issue
Estimated proceeds from exercise of Bonus Warrants

Unaudited proforma consolidated net tangible assets value of the
Group upon completion of Rights Issue and Bonus Warrants

Unaudited adjusted consolidated net tangible assets value per
Share before Rights Issue

Unaudited proforma consolidated net tangible assets of the Group
per Share based on 829,468,413 Shares in issue upon
completion of Rights Issue

Unaudited proforma consolidated net tangible assets of the Group
per Share based on 995,362,095 Shares in issue upon
completion of Rights Issue and Bonus Warrants

No. of Issued Shares before Rights Issue
No. of Issued Shares upon completion of Rights Issue

No. of Issued Shares upon completion of Rights Issue and Bonus
Warrants

HK$'000

2,322,273
26,543

2,348,816

HK$4.13

HK$2.80

HK$2.36

Shares

552,078,942
829,468,413

995,362,095

Note 1: Negetive goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Ananda at 31 March, 2002 plus proceeds of approximately HK$129.6 million arising from the
subscription of 4,800,000,000 new shares by a non-wholly cwned subsidiary of the Company in April 2002

over the cost of acquisition.

Note 2: Assumed that underwriting agreements become unconditional at the Record Date.
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The Bonus Warrants will be issued subject to, and with the benefit of, a separate
instrument by way of a deed poll (the “Instrument”) to be executed by the Company. The Bonus
Warrants will be issued in registered form and will form one class and rank pari passu in all
respects with each other.

The principal terms and conditions of the Bonus Warrants will be set out in the Bonus
Warrant certificates and will include provisions to the effect set out below. The following is a
summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Bonus Warrants which are subject to the
detailed provisions of the Instrument. Warrantholders will be entitled to the benefit of, be
bound by and be deemed to have notice of all such terms and conditions and of the provisions
of the Instrument, copies of which will be available from the registered office in Hong Kong for
the time being of the Company.

1. EXERCISE OF SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS

(a) Each Warrantholder shall have, in respect of the Bonus Warrants of which he/she/it
is the registered holder for the time being, rights (“Subscription Rights”) which may
be exercised in whole or in part, but not in respect of a fraction of a Share, at any
time between 29 August, 2002 (being the date when dealings in the Bonus Warrants
on the Stock Exchange are expected to commence) and before 4:00 p.m. on 31
December, 2003 (both dates inclusive) (“Subscription Period” and the date on which
any of the Subscription Rights are duly exercised being called a “Subscription Date”)
to subscribe in cash the whole or part, in integral multiples of HK$0.16, of the amount
stated on the certificate for such Bonus Warrants (“Exercise Moneys”) which a
Warrantholder is entitied to subscribe for Shares upon exercise of the Subscription
Rights represented thereby, for fully-paid Shares at a price of HK$0.16 per Share,
subject to adjustment as referred to below (“Subscription Price”). Any Subscription
Rights which have not been exercised upon the expiry of the Subscription Period will
lapse and thereupon the Bonus Warrants and the Bonus Warrant certificates will
cease to be valid for any purpose whatsoever. References in this summary to
“Shares” are to the Shares or any shares in the capital of the Company resulting from
a sub-division, consoclidation or re-classification of the Shares.

(b) Each Bonus Warrant certificate will contain a subscription form (“Subscription
Form”). In order to exercise his/her/its Subscription Rights, a Warrantholder must
complete and sign the Subscription Form and deliver the same and the Bonus
Warrant certificate to the share registrar for the time being of the Company and such
delivery shall constitute an irrevocable commitment by such Warrantholder to
exercise such Subscription Rights, together with a remittance for the reievant portion
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(c)

(d)

of the Exercise Moneys, being the amount of the Subscription Price for the Shares
in respect of which the Warrantholder is exercising his/her/its Subscription Rights. In
each case, compliance must also be made with any exchange control, fiscal or other
laws or regulations applicable for the time being.

No fraction of a Share will be allotted but any balance representing fractions of the
Exercise Moneys paid on exercise of the Subscription Rights represented by the
Bonus Warrant certificate will be refunded by the Company to the Warrantholder,
provided always that, if the Subscription Rights attaching to the Bonus Warrants
represented by one or more Bonus Warrant certificates are exercised on the same
Subscription Date by the same Warrantholder then, for the purpose of determining
whether any (and if so, what) fraction of a Share arises, such Subscription Rights
shall be aggregated; and regard shall be made, where applicable, to the provision of
Clause 6(C) of the Instrument.

As soon as practicable after the relevant allotment and issue of Shares (and in any
event not later than 28 Business Days after the relevant Subscription Date) there will
be issued free of charge to the Warrantholders to whom such allotment has been
made upon his exercise of any Subscription Rights:

(i) certificate(s) for the relevant Shares in the name(s) of such Warrantholder(s);

(ii) (if applicable) a balancing Bonus Warrant certificate in registered form in the
name(s) of such Warrantholder(s) in respect of any Subscription Rights
represented by the relevant Bonus Warrant certificate(s) remaining
unexercised; and

(iiiy (if applicable) a cheque representing fractions of the Exercise Moneys in
respect of the Warrantholder’s fractional entitiement to Shares as mentioned in
sub-paragraph (c) above.

The certificate(s) for Shares arising on the exercise of Subscription Rights, the balancing
Bonus Warrant certificate (if any) and the cheque in respect of fractions of the Exercise
Moneys in respect of the Warrantholder’s fractional entitlement to Shares (if any) will be sent
by ordinary post at the risk of the said Warrantholder(s) to the address of such
Warrantholder(s) (or, in the case of a joint holding, to that one of the joint Warrantholders
whose name stands first in the register of Warrantholders). If the Company agrees, such
certificate(s) and cheque may, by prior arrangement, be retained by the share registrar for the
time being of the Company to await collection by the relevant Warrantholder(s).
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2. ADJUSTMENTS OF SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The Instrument contains detailed provisions relating to the adjustment of the Subscription
Price. The following is a summary of, and is subject to, the relevant provisions of the
Instrument:

(a)

The Subscription Price shall (except as mentioned in sub-paragraphs (b) and (c)
below) be adjusted as provided in the Instrument in each of the following cases (but
shall however not be adjusted below the nominal value of the Shares until the
Subscription Right Reserve (as defined in the Instrument) is maintained pursuant to
Clause 6 of the Instrument):

(iif)

(iv)

(vii)

an alteration of the nominal amount of each Share by reason of any
consolidation, subdivision or reclassification;

an issue (other than pursuant to a scrip dividend scheme in lieu of a cash
dividend) by the Company of Shares credited as fully paid by way of
capitalisation of profits or reserves (including any share premium account or
contributed surplus account);

a capital distribution (as defined in the Instrument) being made by the
Company, whether on a reduction of capital or otherwise, except pursuant to a
purchase by the Company of Shares, to Shareholders (in their capacity as
such);

a grant by the Company to Shareholders (in their capacity as such) of rights to
acquire for cash assets of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

an offer of new Shares for subscription by way of rights, or a grant of options
or warrants to subscribe new Shares, at a price which is less than 90% of the
market price (calculated as provided in the Instrument) being made by the
Company to existing Shareholders (in their capacity as such);

an issue wholly for cash being made by the Company or other company of
securities convertible into or exchangeable for or carrying rights of subscription
for new Shares, if in any case the total Effective Consideration per new Share
(as defined in the Instrument) is less than 90% of the market price (calculated
as provided in the Instrument), or the conversion, exchange or subscription
rights of any such issue are altered so that the said total Effective Consideration
is less than 90% of such market price;

an issue of Shares being made wholly for cash at a price less than 90% of the
market price (calculated as provided in the Instrument); and
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(b)

(c)

(viii) a repurchase by the Company of Shares or securities convertible into Shares or
any rights to subscribe Shares in circumstances where the Directors consider
that it may be appropriate to make an adjustment to the Subscription Price.

Except as mentioned in sub-paragraph (c¢) below, no such adjustment as is referred
to in sub-paragraph (a) above shall be made in respect of:

(i) an issue of fully-paid Shares upon the exercise of any conversion rights
attaching to securities convertible into Shares upon the exercise of any rights
(including the Subscription Rights) to acquire Shares;

(ii) anissue by the Company of Shares or by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
of securities wholly or partly convertible into or carrying rights to acquire
Shares, in any such case in consideration or part consideration for the
acquisition of any other securities, assets or business;

(iii) an issue of fully-paid Shares by way of capitalisation of all or part of the
Subscription Right Reserve (as defined in the Instrument) (or other profit
reserves) to be established in certain circumstances pursuant to the terms and
conditions contained in the Instrument (or any similar reserve which has been
or may be established pursuant to the terms of issue of any other securities
wholly or partly convertible into or rights to acquire Shares);

(iv) an issue of Shares pursuant to a scrip dividend scheme in lieu of a cash
dividend where an amount of not less than the nominal amount of the Shares
so issued is capitalised and the market value (calculated as provided in the
Instrument) of such Shares is not more than 110% of the amount of dividend
which holders of Shares could elect to or would otherwise receive in cash; or

(v) anissue by the Company of Shares or by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
of securities convertible into or exchangeable for, or carrying rights of
subscription for, Shares pursuant to a Share Option Scheme (as defined in the
Instrument).

Notwithstanding the provisions referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above, in
any circumstances where the Directors shall consider that an adjustment to the
Subscription Price provided for under the said provisions should not be made or
should be calculated on a different basis or that an adjustment to the Subscription
Price should be made notwithstanding that no such adjustment is required under the
said provisions or that an adjustment should take effect on a different date or with
a different time from that provided for under the said provisions, the Company may
appoint either the Auditors (as defined in the Instrument) or the approved merchant
bank (as defined in the Instrument) to consider whether for any reason whatever the
adjustment to be made (or the absence of adjustment) would or might not fairly and
appropriately reflect the relative interests of the persons affected thereby and, if the
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Auditors or the approved merchant bank shall consider this to be the case, the
adjustment shall be modified or nullified, or an adjustment made instead of no
adjustment, in such manner (including, without limitation, making an adjustment
calculated on a different basis) and/or such adjustment shall take effect from such
other day and/or time as shall be certified by the Auditors or the approved merchant
bank (as the case may be) to be in its opinion, appropriate.

Any adjustment to the Subscription Price shall be made to the nearest one cent
(HK$0.005 being rounded up). No adjustment shall be made to the Subscription
Price in any case in which the amount by which the same would be reduced would
be less than one cent and any adjustment which would otherwise then be required
shall not be carried forward. No adjustment shall be made (except on a consolidation
of Shares into shares of a larger nominal amount each or upon a repurchase of
Shares) which would increase the Subscription Price.

Every adjustment to the Subscription Price shall be certified to be fair and
appropriate by the Auditors {(as defined in the Instrument) or the approved merchant
bank (as defined in the Instrument) and notice of each such adjustment (giving the
relevant particulars) shall be given to the warrantholders. In giving any certificate or
making any adjustment under the Instrument, the Auditors or the approved merchant
bank shall be deemed to be acting as experts and not as arbitrators and in the
absence of manifest error, their decision shall be conclusive and binding on the
Company and the Warrantholders and all persons claiming through or under them
respectively. Any such certificates of the Auditors or the approved merchant bank will
be available for inspection by the warrantholders at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong, where copies may be obtained.

3. REGISTERED WARRANTS

The Bonus Warrants are issued in registered form. The Company shall be entitled to treat
the registered holder of any Bonus Warrant as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly
shall not, except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, be
bound to recognise any equitable or other claim to or interest in such Bonus Warrant on the
part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof.

4. TRANSFER, TRANSMISSION AND REGISTER

(a)

The Subscription Rights conferred by the Bonus Warrants shall be transferable in
integral multiples of HK$0.16 by instrument of transfer in any usual or common form
or such other form as may be approved by the Directors or, where the transferor
and/or the transferee is HKSCC Nominees Limited or its successor thereto, by an
instrument of transfer executed under the hand of the authorised person(s) or by
machine imprinted signature(s). The Company shall accordingly maintain a register
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5.

6.

of warrantholders in Hong Kong (or in such other place as the Directors consider
appropriate, having regard to applicable rules governing the listing of Bonus
Warrants). The Instrument contains provisions relating to the transfer, transmission
and registration of the Bonus Warrants.

Persons who own the Bonus Warrants and have not registered the Bonus Warrants
in their own names and wish to exercise the Subscription Rights may incur additional
costs and expenses in connection with any expedited re-registration of the Bonus
Warrants prior to the transfer or exercise of the Bonus Warrants, in particular during
the period of commencing ten Business Days prior to and including the last day of
the Subscription Period.

Since the Bonus Warrants will be admitted to CCASS, so far as applicable laws or
regulations of relevant regulatory authorities, terms of the Instrument and
circumstances permit, the Company may determine the last dealing day of the Bonus
Warrants to be a date at least three Business Days before the last day of the
Subscription Period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF WARRANTHOLDERS

The registration of transfers of Bonus Warrants may be suspended and the register of
Warrantholders may be closed for such period as the Directors may from time to time direct,
provided that the same shall not be closed, or registration may not be suspended, for a pericd,
or for periods together, of more than 30 days in any one year. Any transfer, or exercise of the
Subscription Rights attached to the Bonus Warrants made while the register of Warrantholders
is so closed shall, as between the Company and the person claiming under the relevant
transfer of Bonus Warrants or, as the case may be, as between the Company and the
warrantholders who have so exercised their respective Subscription Rights attached to their
Bonus Warrants (but not otherwise), be considered as made immediately after the reopening
of the register of Warrantholders.

PURCHASE AND CANCELLATION

The Company or any of its subsidiaries may at any time purchase the Bonus Warrants:

(a)

in the open market or by tender (available to all Warrantholders alike) at any price;
or

by private trealy at a price, exclusive of expenses, not exceeding 110% of the closing
price of the Bonus Warrants for one or more board lots of Bonus Warrants on the last
day on which Bonus Warrants were traded on the Stock Exchange prior to the date
of purchase thereof, but not otherwise.

All Bonus Warrants purchased as aforesaid shall be cancelled forthwith and may not be
reissued or re-sold.
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7. MEETINGS OF WARRANTHOLDERS AND MODIFICATION OF RIGHTS

(a)

(c)

The instrument contains provisions for convening meetings of Warrantholders to
consider any matter affecting the interests of Warrantholders, including the
modification by Special Resolution (as defined in the Instrument) of the provisions of
the Instrument and/or of the terms and conditions endorsed on the Bonus Warrant
certificates. A Special Resolution duly passed at any such meeting shall be binding
on the Warrantholders, whether present or not.

All or any of the rights for the time being attached to the Bonus Warrants (including
any of the provisions of the Instrument) may from time to time (whether or not the
Company is being wound up) be altered or abrogated (including, but without
prejudice to the generality thereof, by waiving compliance with, or by waiving or
authorising any past or proposed breach of, any of the terms and conditions
endorsed on the Bonus Warrant certificates and/or the Instrument) and the prior
sanction of a Special Resolution shall be necessary and sufficient to effect such
alteration or abrogation.

Where the Warrantholder is a recognised clearing house (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures (Clearing Houses) Ordinance (Chapter 420 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)) or its nominee(s), it may authorise such person or persons as it thinks
fit to act as its representative (or representatives) or proxy (or proxies) at any
Warrantholders’ meeting provided that, if more than one person is so authorised, the
authorisation or proxy form must specify the number of Bonus Warrants in respect of
which each such person is so authorised. The person(s) so authorised shall be
entitled to exercise the same power on behalf of the recognised clearing house as
that recognised clearing house or its nominee(s) could exercises as if such person
were an individual Warrantholder.

8. QUORUM

The quorum of a meeting of Warrantholders shall be two or more Warrantholders, present
in person or by proxy, representing in aggregate not less than 10% in value of the Subscription
Rights for the time being outstanding and exercisable and no business (other than the
choosing of a chairman) shall be transacted at any meeting unless the requisite quorum be
present at the commencement of business.

9. REPLACEMENT OF BONUS WARRANT CERTIFICATES

If a Bonus Warrant certificate is mutilated, defaced, lost or destroyed, it may, at the
discretion of the Company, be replaced at the office of the Company’s share registrar on
payment of such costs as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to
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evidence, indemnityand/or security as the Company may require and on payment of such fee
not exceeding HK$2.50 (or such higher fee as may from time to time be permitted under the
rules prescribed by the Stock Exchange) as the Company may determine. Mutilated or defaced
Bonus Warrant certificates must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

In the case of lost Bonus Warrant certificates, Section 71A of the Company Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) shall apply as if “shares” referred to therein included
Warrants.

10. PROTECTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS

The Instrument contains certain undertakings by and réstrictions on the Company
designed to protect the Subscription Rights.

11. CALL

If at any time the amount of the Bonus Warrants outstanding is equal to or less than 10%
of the total amount of the Subscription Rights attached to the Bonus Warrants, the Company
may, on giving not less than three months’ notice, require Warrantholders either to exercise
their Subscription Rights or to allow the Bonus Warrants to lapse. On expiry of such natice, all
unexercised Bonus Warrants will be automatically cancelled without compensation to
Warrantholders.

12. ISSUE OF FURTHER WARRANTS

The Company shall be at liberty to issue further warrants or other securities convertible
into, exchangeable for, or carrying rights to subscribe for Shares in such manner and on such
terms as it sees fit.

13. UNDERTAKINGS BY THE COMPANY

The Company has undertaken in the Instrument, inter alia, that so long as any of the
Subscription Rights remain exercisable:

(a) upon the exercise of any of the Subscription Rights it shall within 28 Business Days
after the relevant Subscription Date allot and issue the Shares falling to be issued
upon such exercise which shall rank pari passu in all respects with Shares in issue
on the relevant Subscription Date and shall accordingly entitle the holders to
participate in all dividends or other distributions declared, paid or made after the
relevant Subscription Date other than any dividend or other distribution previously
declared or recommended or resolved to be paid or made if the record date therefor
shall be on or before the relevant Subscription Date;
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(b)

(d)

it will send to each Warrantholder at the same time as the same are sent to the
holders of Shares, its audited accounts and all other notices, reports and
communications despatched by it to the holders of the Shares generally;

it shall pay all stamp and capital duties, registration fees or similar charges in
respect of the execution of this Instrument, the creation and issue of the Bonus
Warrants in registered form, the exercise of the Subscription Rights and the issue of
Shares upon exercise of the Subscription Rights; and

it shall keep available for issue sufficient Ordinary Capital (as defined in the
Instrument) to satisfy in full all rights of subscription for and conversion into Shares
for the time being outstanding.

14. LISTING

So long as the Shares remain listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company shall use its
best endeavours to procure that:

(@)

at all times during the Subscription Period, the Bonus Warrants may be dealt in, on
the Stock Exchange (save that such obligation will lapse in the event that the listing
of the Bonus Warrants on the Stock Exchange is withdrawn following an offer for all
or any of the Bonus Warrants); and

all Shares allotted upon exercise of the Subscription Rights may, upon allotment or
as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, be dealt in, on the Stock Exchange
(save that such obligation will lapse in the event that the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange is withdrawn following an offer for all or any of the Shares where a
like offer is extended to holders of the Bonus Warrants).

15. OVERSEAS WARRANTHOLDERS

The Instrument contains provisions giving certain discretion to the Directors in the case
of any Warrantholder who has a registered address in any territory other than Hong Kong
where, in the opinion of the Directors, the issue of Shares upon exercise of any of the
Subscription Rights represented by any Bonus Warrants held by such Warrantholder may be
unlawful or impracticable.

16. RIGHTS OF WARRANTHOLDERS ON WINDING-UP

The Instrument contains provisions relating to the winding-up of the Company to the
effect that:

(a)

in the event a notice is given by the Company to the Shareholders to convene a
Shareholders’ meeting for the purposes of considering, and if thought fit approving,
a resolution to voluntarily wind-up the Company, the Company shall forthwith give
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(b)

notice thereof to each Warrantholder and thereupon, every Warrantholder shall be
entitled by irrevocable surrender of his/her Bonus Warrant certificate(s) to the
Company (such surrender to occur not later than two (2) Business Days prior to the
proposed shareholders’ meeting referred to above) with the Subscription Form(s)
duly completed, together with payment of the Exercise Moneys (or the relative
portion thereof), to exercise the Subscription Rights represented by such Bonus
Warrant certificate(s) and the Company shall as soon as possible and in any event
no later than the day immediately prior to the date of the proposed shareholders’
meeting allot such number of Shares to the warrantholders which fall to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Subscription Rights represented by such Bonus
Warrant certificate(s) to the extent specified in the Subscription Form(s); and

if an effective resolution is passed during the Subscription Period for the voluntary
winding-up of the Company for the purpose of reconstruction or amalgamation
pursuant to a scheme of arrangement to which the Warrantholders, or some persons
designated by them for such purpose by Special Resolution (as defined in the
instrument), shall be a party, or in conjunction with which a proposal is made to the
Warrantholders and is approved by Special Resolution, the terms of such scheme of
arrangement or (as the case may be) proposal shall be binding on all the
Warrantholders. Subject to the foregoing, if the Company is wound up, all
Subscription Rights which have not been exercised at the commencement of winding
up shall lapse and Bonus Warrant certificate(s) will cease to be valid for any
purpose.

17. NOTICES

The Instrument contains provisions relating to notices to be given to Warrantholders.
Every Warrantholder shall register with the Company an address in Hong Kong to which
notices to be given to such warrantholders are to be sent.

18. GOVERNING LAW

The Instrument and the Bonus Warrants are governed by and shall be construed in
accordance with the laws of Hong Kong.
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1. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised and issued share capital of the Company following completion of the
Rights Issue (assuming no Share Options are duly exercised before the Record Date) will be
as follows: N

HK$
Authorised: (Nominal Value)
8,000,000,000 Shares 800,000,000
HK$
Issued (and paid up) and to be issued; (Nominal Value)
552,978,942 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date 55,297,894
276,489,471 Shares to be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue 27,648,947

(assuming no Share Options are duly exercised

before the Record Date)

829,468,413 82,946,841

All the Shares currently in issue rank pari passu in all respects with each other, including
dividends, voting rights and capital. 92,000,000 Shares have been issued since 31 December
2001 (the date to which the latest audited financial statements of the Group were made up) to
the Latest Practicable Date.

Share Options

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 20 July, 1992, as at the
Latest Practicable Date, the Company has outstanding Share Options to subscribe for up to an
aggregate of 340,000 Shares, at exercise prices of HK$3.44 or HK$4.05 per Share.
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According to the terms of the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 20 July,
1992, the exercise price of the outstanding Share Options as at the Latest Practicable Date will
be adjusted as a result of the issue of the fully-paid Rights Shares. The number and the
exercise price of the Share Options will be adjusted as follows:

Subscription Adjusted Adjustment

Number of price per subscription  number of
Share Share before price per share the
Date of grant Options adjustment Share options Exercise Period
HKS$ HKS
12 January, 50,000 3.44 3.145 75,000 18 January, 2000 to
2000 17 January 2005
14 February 290,000 4.05 3.702 435,000 16 February 2000 to
2000 15 February 2005

Save as disclosed above, the Company has no other outstanding convertible securities,
warrants, options, and derivatives in respect of the Shares. The Company has no founder or
management or deferred shares.

2. DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND OPTIONS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and their associated corporations in the Shares within the meaning of the SDI
Ordinance which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
section 28 of the SDI Ordinance (including interests which they are deemed or taken to have
under section 31 of, or Part | of the Schedule to, the SDI Ordinance) or which are required
pursuant to section 29 of the SDI Ordinance to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Shares

Number of Shares

Personal Family Corporate
Interests Interests Interests
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles {Note) — — 80,440,000
Lien Kait Long 632 — —
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Note: Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr. Chan”) is deemed to be interested in 80,440,000 Shares held
by Calisan by virtue of his interest in Chinaview International Limited (“Chinaview”). Dr. Chan
owns the entire interest of Chinaview which in turn owns the entire interest in Galaxyway
Investments Limited (“Galaxyway”). Galaxyway owns more than one-third of the entire issued
ordinary share capital of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC"). ITC owns the entire interest of ITC
Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”). ITC Investment owns the entire interest in
Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”). Hollyfield owns more than one-third of the entire issued
share capital of Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings Limited (“Paul Y.”). Paul Y. owns the entire
interest of Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings (B.V.l.) Limited (“PYBVI”) which in turn owns the
entire interest in Paul Y. - ITC Investments Group Limited (“PYITCIG”). PYITCIG owns the entire
interest of Great Decision Limited (“GDL”) which in turn owns the entire interest in Calisan.
Accordingly, GDL, PYITCIG, PYBVI, Paul Y., Hollyfield, ITC Investment, ITC, Galaxyway,
Chinaview and Dr. Chan are deemed 1o be interested in 80,440,000 Shares which are held by
Calisan.

(i) Share Options

No. of Exercise

Share Options price

(HK$)

Chan Ling, Eva 50,000 3.44

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had, or was taken or deemed to have under section 28
of the SDI Ordinance or under section 31 of, or Part | of the Schedule to, the SDi
Ordinance, any interests in the Shares or Share Options of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance which is required to be
notified, or which is required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 29 of the SDI Ordinance or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies of the Listing Rules.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors
was materially interested in any contract or arrangement to which any member of the
Group was a party and which was significant to the business of the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any interests, direct or
indirect, in any assets which have been acquired or disposed of by or leased to any
member of the Group, or which are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased
to any member of the Group since 31 December, 2001, the date to which the latest
published audited financial statements of the Group were made up.
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3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, each person, other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying voting rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company
is as follows:

Approximate % of the
issued share capital

Name No. of Shares of the Company
Well Qrient (Note) 80,440,000 14.5
Powervote Technology Limited (Note) 80,440,000 14.5
Hanny Magnetics (B.V.l.) Limited (Note) 80,440,000 14.5
Hanny Holdings Limited (Note) 80,440,000 14.5

Note: Well Orient is wholly owned by Powervote Technology Limited (“*PTL”) which is in turn wholly owned by
Hanny Magnetics (B.V.l.) Limited (“Hanny Magnetics”). Hanny Magnetics is wholly owned by Hanny
Holdings Limited (“Hanny”). PTL, Hanny Magnetics and Hanny were deemed to be interested in
80,440,000 Shares which were held by Well Orient.

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to any Director, there was no person who,
as at the Latest Practicable Date, was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
issued share capital or of any options in respect of such capital of the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, no person (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company), other than
those whose interests are set out below, was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any member of the Group (other than the Company) or held any options
in respect of any such capital:

Approximate % of interest

in share capital held by:
Other Name of other

Name of subsidiary The Group shareholder(s) shareholder(s)
Best Glory Limited 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(Note e) (Note b) incorporated
BRI R E IR A H] 60 40 YHEBEERMEAT
(China Telecom (China IT Development
Information Corporation)

Network Technology

Service Ltd.)
China Telecom 51 49 China Telecom Investment

International Limited Corporation
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Name of subsidiary

P AZEFHARERA
{Shanxi Dazhai CS!
Cement Co., Ltd)

Shanxi Dionysus
Investments Limited

SERETERDERAE

{Double Happiness Tyre
Industries Corporation
Limited)

Earnfull Industrial
Limited

Exburg Limited

Gladly Development
Limited

Goldsmith Assets
Limited

BN LB EERRAFE

{(Guang Zhou Jiang Nan
Property Co., Ltd.)

MMNERILLTERAE
(Hangzhou Fu Chun
Jiang Chemical
Industrial Co., Ltd.)
WP HEEBRRAE
(Hangzhou Zhongce
Rubber Co., Ltd.)
Holburn Properties
Limited
BINEREEERAR
(Huizhou Best Glory
Property Ltd.)
BINEFEEGRAHE
(Huizhou Gladly
Property Ltd.)
BB EEaRATE
(Huizhou World Express
Property Ltd.)

Approximate % of interest
in share capital held by:

Other

The Group shareholder(s)

51

70
{Note e)
55
(Note a)

90

70
(Note e)
70
(Note e)
70
(Note e)
75
(Note e)

51
{Note f)

51
{Note a)

70
(Note e)
70
(Note e)

70
{Note e)

70
(Note e)
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49

30

(Note b)
45

10

30
{Note b)
30

(Note b)
30

{Note b)
25

49

49

30
(Note b)
30
(Note b)

30
(Note b)

30
(Note b)

Name of other
shareholder(s)

REERIBHRRE L]

{Dazhai Economic
Development
Corporation)

Chips Plus Development
incorporated

KEBER

{Taiyuan Rubber Factory)

Wang Ming Jian

Chips Plus Development
Incorporated

Chips Plus Development
Incorporated

Chips Plus Development
Incorporated

NSRBI TR R AR AR

(Guangzhou Haizhu City
Construction
Development Co.)

HBTHIEERLT

(Fu Yang Shi Industrial
Group Co.)

LIS RES

(Hangzhou Rubber
Factory)

Chips Plus Development
Incorporated

Chips Plus Development
incorporated

Chips Plus Development
Incorporated

Chips Plus Development
Incorporated
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Name of subsidiary

MBK China Strategic
Limited

Nice Home Properties
Limited

B pE R R EIRAR

(Ningbo Zhongce
Taifeng Food Co.,
Lid)
REGFEAH

(Ningbo Bao Shui Qu
Ben Ye Tractor
& Automobile Co.,
Limited)

Orion (B.V.l.) Tire
Corporation

Orion Tire Corporation

Principal Diamond
Limited

Ruby Uniforms Limited

SR EREREARAT

(Shenzhen Longchen
Xinyuan Industrial
Co., Ltd.)

FIREREERTVERAT

{Shenzhen SEZ Development

Centre Co., Ltd.)

World Express Limited

TN PHREBRBBERAF
(Yinchuan C.S.1. (Greatwall)
Rubber Co., Ltd.)
—HE(EE) PN S E R A
(Yituo (Ningbo) C.8.1.
Tractor & Automobile
Co., Limited)

Approximate % of interest

in share capital held by:
Other Name of other

The Group shareholder(s) shareholder(s)

60 40 Mitsui & Co., Limited
78 22 Sung Chai
{Note e)
51 49 ERCKEIIME
(Ningbo Taifeng Flour
Factory)
69 31 EREMRENEER
(Note g) (Ningbo Tractor

Manufacturing Factory)

60 40 Coronada Holding Limited
{Note a)

60 40 Coronada Holding Limited
(Note a)

80 20 Wonder Wealth Limited

90 10 Frederick Poon Chuan Ki

60 30 WHEIRERBEROERAE
(Note e) (Note ¢) (Shenzhen Huayu

Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.)

86 10 HIRBERBZRERAH
(Note d) (Shenzhen Special
(Note e) Economic Zone

Development
(Group) Company)

70 30 Chips Plus Development
(Note e) (Note b) incorporated
51 49 R
(Note a) (Yinchuan Rubber
Manufacturing)
55 40 B—HEABEDERAH

(Di Yi Tractor Corporation)
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Notes:

a. These shareholdings are held by China Enterprises Limited (“CEL”), which operates in the PRC and its
shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. The Group holds approximately 55.2% effective equity
interest and approximately 88.8% effective voting interest in CEL.

b. Chips Plus Development Incorporated directly owns 30% interest in Dionysus Investments Limited which
in turn directly owns 100% interest in Exburg Limited, Goldsmith Assets Limited and Holburn Properties
Limited. Exburg Limited directly owns 100% interest in Gladly Development Limited which in turn directly
owns 100% equity interest in Huizhou Gladly Property Ltd. Goldsmith Assets Limited directly owns 100%
interest in Best Glory Limited which in turn directly owns 100% equity interest in Huizhou Best Glory
Property Ltd. Holburn Properties Limited directly owns 100% interest in World Express Limited which in
turn directly owns 100% equity interest in Huizhou World Express Property Lid.

c. The remaining 10% interest in Shenzhen Longchen Xinyuan Industrial Co., Ltd. is held by two minority
shareholders, the ultimate interests of which, so far as were known to the Directors and chief executive
of the Company, were neither held by the Group nor the other substantial shareholder of Shenzhen
Longchen Xinyuan Industrial Co., Ltd. One of the minority shareholders has agreed to dispose of its 5%
equity interest in Shenzhen Longchen Xinyuan Industrial Co., Ltd. to Shenzhen Huayu Investment &
Development Co., Ltd. Such transfer of interest is still in process.

d. The remaining 4% interest is indirectly held by minority shareholders through an intermediate holding
company of Shenzhen SEZ Development Centre Co., Ltd., the ultimate interests of which, so far as were
known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company, were neither held by the Group nor the other
substantial shareholder of Shenzhen SEZ Development Centre Co., Ltd.

e. These shareholdings are indirectly held by China Land Group Limited (“China Land"), its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Group holds approximately 65.6% equity interest in China Land.

f. These shareholdings are held by Hangzhou Zhongce Rubber Co., Ltd.

g. These shareholdings are held by Yituo (Ningbo) C.S.I. Tractor & Automobile Co., Limited.
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4. DIRECTORS
Name
Executive Directors

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(Chairman and chief executive
officer)

Dr. Yap, Altan (Vice chairman)

Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna

Mr. Lien Kait Long

Mr. Li Wa Kin

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva

Address

33/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

7/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

31/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

8/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

8/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

8/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. David Edwin Bussmann

Ms. Choy Hok Man, Constance

Alternate Directors

Mr. Chan Kwok Hung
(Alternate Director to Dr. Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles)

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
(Alternate Director to Dr. Yap, Allan)

Mr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
(Alternate Director to Ms. Chau Mej
Wah, Rosanna)

Senior management

Mr. Chu Chin Lin, Simon

Ms. Law, Dorothy

47 Conduit Road,
Apartment 7A,
Mid-Levels,

Hong Kong

49/F., Bank of China Tower,
1 Garden Road,

Central,

Hong Kong

27/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

7/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

31/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong

8/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

8/F., Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong
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Executive Directors

Dr, Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 47, is the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company and the chairman of China Enterprises Limited (“China Enterprises”), a company
whose shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan holds an Honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws and a Bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering and has over 22 years’
international corporate management experience in the construction and property sectors as
well as in strategic investments. Dr. Chan is also the chairman of ITC Corporation Limited
(“ITC”), Paul Y. and Hanny, companies whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
is also a non-executive director of Downer ED! Limited (“Downer”), a company whose shares
are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange and an executive director of Ananda Wing On
Travel (Holdings) Limited (*Ananda”), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Dr. Yap, Allan, aged 46, is the vice chairman of the Company and China Enterprises. He
obtained the Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and has over 20 years’ experience in finance,
investment and banking. He is the managing director of Hanny. Dr. Yap is an executive director
of ITC and Ananda. Dr. Yap is also the chairman and chief executive officer of Burcon
NutraScience Corporation, a public listed company on the TSX Venture Exchange; a director
of Provisions Suppliers Corporation Limited (“PSC”), a public listed company in Singapore;
and a director of Ding Ing Technology Co., Ltd (“Ding Ing”), a public listed company in Taiwan.

Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, aged 47, is an executive Director. She has over 22 years’
experience in international corporate management and finance. Ms. Chau holds a bachelor’s
degree and a master’'s degree in commerce and is a member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, CPA Australia and the Certified General Accountants’ Association of Canada.
She joined the Company in 2000. She is the managing director of ITC and an executive
director of Paul Y., Star East Holdings Limited and China Land Group Limited (“China Land”),
companies whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange. She is also a director of
Burcon,

Mr. Lien Kait Long, aged 54, is an executive Director. Mr. Lien holds a bachelor’s degree
in commerce and is a member of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore and
CPA Australia. Mr. Lien joined the Company in 1998. He has over 31 years’ experience in
finance, accounting, investment and banking. He is a director of Australia Net.Com Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange and a non-executive
director of China Development Corporation Limited, a company of which its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Wa Kin, aged 46, is an executive Director. Mr. Li joined the Company in July 1998.
He is the President of the Greater China division of the Company. Mr. Li has more than 21
years’ experience in international trade, investment and management. He is very familiar with
PRC investment environment and legal system.

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 36, is an executive director. Ms. Chan has over 14 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and finance in both international accounting firm and listed
companies. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan joined the Company in 1996. She is also the Senior Vice
President — Finance of Ananda.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. David Edwin Bussmann, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in February 2000. Mr. Bussmann has more than 21 years’ experience in the
investment and finance field, and is very familiar with investment issues related to the PRC,
as well as with sectors such as technology, real estate, and direct investments. He previously
worked at Salomon Brothers, Citibank, Bank of America and Prudential Asia.

Ms. Choy Hok Man, Constance, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in April 2001. She holds directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.
She is a practising solicitor in Hong Kang and England and is a partner of Sidley Austin Brown
& Woad, an international law firm.

Alternative Directors

Mr. Chan Kwok Hung, aged 483, is an alternate Director to Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
He holds a Diploma in Arts and has over 19 years’ experience in trading business in the PRC.
Mr. Chan joined the Company in 2000. He is the chairman of China Land, an executive director
of ITC and Hanny. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, the
chairman and chiet executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 46, is an alternate Director to Dr. Yap, Allan. He is a
qualified accountant and worked for an international accounting firm for over 11 years and has
previously held senior financial positions in both private and public listed companies. Mr. Lui
joined the Company in 2001. He is the deputy managing director of Hanny. Mr. Lui is an
executive director of Ananda, a director of PSC and Ding Ing.

Mr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged &1, is an alternate Director to Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna.
He has over 29 years’ international corporate management experience in the construction
industry. Mr. Lau joined the Company in 2000. He is the deputy chairman of ITC and Paul Y.
and a director of New World CyberBase Limited, a company whose securities are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is also the chairman of Downer.

Senior management

Mr. Chu Chin Lin, Simon, aged 36, is a vice president of the Greater China division of the
Company. He studied China Europe International Business School MBA M. Engineer of
S.I.S.M.L.T. at Taiwan and Marketing at Kingston College in Vancouver, Canada. He has over
9 years’ experience in ISO system management, logistic management in the PRC. He is
responsible for the management, business development and special project in the PRC. Mr.
Chu joined the Company in 2000.

Ms. Law, Dorothy, aged 32, is a director of China Enterprises, a subsidiary of the
Company. She received her Bachelor of Commerce and Bachelor of Laws degrees from the
University of British Columbia in Canada. Ms. Law is a barrister and solicitor licensed to
practice law in British Columbia, Canada and has also been admitted as a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong. Ms. Law is also a director of Burcon NutraScience Corporation and
corporate counsel of Hanny. She joined the Group in 2000.
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5. PARTIES INVOLVED IN THE RIGHTS ISSUE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

Underwriters

Legal adviser

Registered office

Company secretary

Authorised representatives

Auditors

Share registrars

Principal bankers

BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Limited
35th-36th Floors, Asia Pacific Finance Tower,

3 Garden Road,
Central,
Hong Kong

Kingston Securities Limited
Room 2801, 28th Fioor,

One !nternational Financial Center,

1 Harbour View Street,
Central,
Hong Kong

Sidley Austin Brown & Wood
49th Floor,

Bank of China Tower,

1 Garden Road,

Central,

Hong Kong

8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre
51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Ms. Chan Yan Yan, Jenny,
Chartered Secretary

Mr. Lien Kait Long
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
26th Floor,

Wing On Cenire,

111 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Standard Registrars Limited
5th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Bank of China {(Hong Kong) Limited

3rd Floor, Bank of China Tower,
1 Garden Road,

Central,

Hong Kong
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6. LITIGATION

a. In August 1999, the architect of Paul Y. Plaza located in Guangzhou, the PRC initiated
legal proceedings against Eventic Limited (“Eventic”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in respect of a claim for payment of service fees and other
expenses of HK$0.6 million and HK$6.6 million respectively. Eventic engaged the
architect for architectural services in respect of Paul Y. Plaza.

Eventic has vigorously defended the claims and made a counterclaim for loss and
damages suffered due to insufficient supervisory services provided by the architect.

In view of the counterclaim made by Eventic, the architect amended its total claims to
HK$7.7 million. At the Latest Practicable Date, the proceedings are still ongoing and are
at the stage of the exchange of documents. After taking into consideration the advice of
the Group’s legal counsel, the Directors consider the outcome of the proceedings will not
have material adverse financial effect on the Group.

b. in July 2001, B/N@EEERRLE (Huizhou World Express Property Ltd.) (“Huizhou World
Express”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as the developer,
initiated legal proceedings against the Huizhou Municipal Government of the Guangdong
Province, the PRC, in its capacity as the guarantor of BINTFREESRAF (Huizhou Jia
Cheng Group Co., Ltd.) (“Huizhou Jia Cheng”), the main contractor in the construction of
Hongkong Macau Square, under a guarantee letter dated 7 September, 1994 executed by
the Huizhou Municipal Government in favour of Huizhou World Express. The amount
claimed by Huizhou World Express was approximately RMB243.6 million, being the
construction costs of approximately RMB167.5 million paid by Huizhou World Express to
Huizhou Jia Cheng together with the damages for the amount of approximately RMB76.1
million.

At the Latest Practicable Date, Huizhou World Express is awaiting for the hearing of the
case. At this stage, the outcome cannot be predicted with certainty. As the total
construction costs of Hongkong Macau Square has already been written off, the Directors
are of the opinion that there is unlikely to be any material adverse financial impact on the
Group in the event that the final judgement is not in favour of Huizhou World Express.

c. In June 2002, Lee Pak Wai trading as Edwin E&M Engineering Company, being a
sub-contractor of Paul Y. Plaza located in Guangzhou, the PRC, initiated legal
proceedings against Eventic, in respect of a claim for payment of sub-contract works for
approximately RMB5.2 million.

Eventic has vigorously defended the claim as there was no contractual relationship
between Eventic and the sub-contractor. Eventic has also made a counterclaim for the
balance of unused advance payment and overpayment of approximately RMB4.2 million
and RMBO0.8 miilion respectively paid to the sub-contractor.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the proceedings are still ongoing and the sub-
contractor is required to file a Reply and Defence to Counterclaim in Court.

The Directors are of the opinion that there is unlikely to be any material adverse financial
impact on the Group in the event that the final judgement is not in favour of Eventic.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as the Directors are aware,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any litigation or arbitration or
claims of material importance and no litigation or claims of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened by or against any member of the Group.

7. SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed
service contract with any member of the Group, save for contracts expiring or terminable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

There are no contracts entered into or commenced or amended in the past six months.
8. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following are particulars of all material contracts (not being contracts entered into in
the ordinary course of business) entered into by any member of the Group within two years
immediately preceding the date of the prospectus in respect of the Rights Issue with the Bonus
Issue:

(a) anagreement dated 8 August, 2000 entered into between the Company as purchaser
and Paysoda Limited as vendor (“Paysoda”) pursuant to which the Company agreed
to acquire or procure its wholly owned subsidiary to acquire and Paysoda agreed to
sell 41,783,750 shares of Kerry Group Limited, 5,130,970 shares of Kuok Brothers
Sdn. Berhad, 8,490,560 shares of Kuok (Singapore) Limited and 1,000,000 shares
of Ban Thong Company Limited at an aggregate consideration of HK$533 million.
The agreement has become null and void and of no further effect since the condition
set out thereunder was not fulfilled.

(b) an agreement dated 2 November, 2000 entered into between Sing Pao Newspaper
& Publications Limited as vendor and Optima Media Holding Limited (“Optima”), a
65% owned subsidiary of the Company at that time, as purchaser in relation to the
acquisition of the publishing business under the name of Sing Pao Newspaper (“Sing
Pao”) for a consideration of HK$150,000,000. Completion of the transaction took
place in December 2000;

(¢) an agreement dated 17 November, 2000 entered into between Simultronics Limited
as vendor, Win Allied Holding Inc. as vendor, Chan Boon Ho, Peter as vendor, Gold
Brilliant Limited (“Gold Brilliant”), a company owned as to 65% by the Company at
that time as purchaser, Star East Holdings Limited (*SEH”) as guarantor for the
purchaser and the Company as guarantor for the purchaser in respect of the
acquisition of approximately 38.65% of the entire issued share capital of Huey Tai
International Limited (“Huey Tai”) (now renamed Premium Land Limited with the
stock code of 164) for a consideration of HK$133,060,984.32. Completion of the
transaction took place in January 2001;

(d) an agreement dated 17 November, 2000 entered into between Good Trend
Enterprises Limited (“Good Trend”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as
vendor, Capital Deal investments Limited (“Capital Deal”) as vendor, Actiwater
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()

Resources Limited (“Actiwater Resources”) as purchaser, the Company as guarantor
for Good Trend, SEH as guarantor for Capital Deal and Huey Tai as guarantor for the
purchaser in respect of the disposal of all the issued and outstanding shares of
Optima together with all the issued and outstanding shares of two other whoily
owned subsidiaries of the Company, which are engaged in the magazine and media
businesses respectively for a consideration of HK$110,000,000. Comgpletion of the
transaction took place in January 2001;

a share purchase and option agreement dated 10 November, 2000 entered into
between Tung Fong Hung (Holdings) Limited (“TFH") (now renamed Hamson
Eastern (Holdings) Limited) which was and still is an independent third party and See
Ying Limited (“See Ying"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in respect of
the acquisition of 49% interest in Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited (“TFH
Investment”) for a consideration of HK$44,100,000 with an option granted by TFH to
See Ying to exercise a right to acquire the balance of the shareholdings, being 51%
interest in TFH Investment, at the option price of HK$45,900,000 during a period of
two years commencing on the date of such agreement. Completion of the transaction
took place in January 2001;

an agreement dated 18 May, 2001 entered into between Good Trend as vendor,
Capital Deal as vendor, the Company as guarantor for Good Trend, SEH as
guarantor for Capital Deal, Upland Profits Limited (“Upland Profits”) as purchaser
and Capital Strategic Investment Limited (“CSI”) as guarantor for purchaser in
relation to the disposal of the entire issued share capital of Gold Brilliant, a holding
company of Sing Pao Media (“Sing Pao Media”) (formerly known as Huey Tai and
now renamed as Premium Land Limited) and the assignment of the shareholder
loans due from Gold Brilliant by Good Trend and Capital Deal to CSI for a
consideration of HK$206,000,000. Completion of the transaction took place in July
2001;

a disposal agreement dated 18 May, 2001 entered into between Expert Solution
Limited (“Expert Solution”), a 65% owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser,
Sing Pao Media as vendor, in relation to the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of and the shareholder loan to Actiwater Resources by Sing Pao Media to
Expert Solution for a consideration of HK$110,000,000. Completion of the
transaction took place in July 2001;

a placing and subscription agreement dated 4 July, 2001 entered into among the
Company, China Land Group Limited and Tai Fook Securities Company Limited
whereby the Company agreed to subscribe 226,000,000 shares of US$0.02 each in
China Land Group Limited placed under the same agreement at HK$0.40 per share
which amounts to a total consideration of HK$90.4 million. China Land Group
Limited is a company owned as to 65.56% by the Company;

an agreement dated 24 September, 2001 entered into between Expert Solution as
vendor and STAREASTnet.com Corporation (“STAREASTnet”} (now renamed as
Sing Pao Media Group Limited with the stock code of 8010) as purchaser in respect
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(k)

of the disposal of the entire issued share capital of and assignment of shareholder
loan due from Actiwater Resources by Expert Solution to STAREASTnet for the
consideration of HK$210 million. Completion of the transaction took place in
December 2001;

a subscription agreement dated 1 February, 2002 entered into between Million Good
Limited ("Million Good”"}, a wholly owned subsidiary of China Enterprises Limited
(565.2% owned by the Company), as subscriber, Ananda Wing On Travel (Holdings)
Limited (*Ananda”), Chan Yeuk Wai and CEL as subscriber guarantor in respect of
the subscription of 4,800,000,000 shares in Ananda at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.027 per share by Million Good for a consideration of HK$129,600,000, CEL is
a company owned as to approximately 55.2% effective equity interest and
approximately 88.8% effective voting interest by the Company. Completion of the
transaction took place in April 2002. Further details of the transaction are set out in
the announcement dated 8 February, 2002;

a subscription agreement dated 1 February, 2002 entered into between Ananda, CEL
as subscriber and Hounslow Limited in respect of the subscription of convertible note
in the amount of HK$120,000,000 attaching with conversion rights to convert the
note into shares of Ananda at the conversion price of HK$0.032 per share by CEL.
Completion of transaction took place in April 2002. Further details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement dated 8 February, 2002;

an underwriting agreement dated 14 March, 2002 entered into between Well Orient
and the Company in relation to a rights issue of two rights shares for every one then
existing Share held on 4 June, 2002 of which the transaction did not proceed as one
of the conditions precedent of the agreement, being the passing of a resolution, by
way of poli, by the shareholders of the Company were voted down at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4 June, 2002. As a result the
proposed underwriting commission of 1% of the total issue price of the rights shares
underwritten was not required; ’

an underwriting agreement dated 14 March, 2002 entered into between Calisan and
the Company in relation to a rights issue of two rights shares for every one then
existing Share held on 4 June, 2002 of which the transaction did not proceed as one
of the conditions precedent of the agreement, being the passing of a resolution, by
way of poll, by the shareholders of the Company were voted down at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4 June 2002. As a result the
proposed underwriting commission of 1% of the total issue price of the rights shares
underwritten was not required;

a subscription agreement dated 4 June, 2002 entered into between the Company as
the subscriber and Companion Building Material International Holdings Limited
(“Companion Building”) in relation to the subscription for 20,000,000,000 shares in
Companion Building at a total subscription price of HK$200,000,000. Completion of
the transaction is expected to be effective on August 2002. Further details of the
transaction are set out in the announcement dated 7 June, 2002;
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(0) a subscription agreement dated 6 June, 2002 entered into among the Company,
Calisan and Well Orient as subscribers, whereby each of Calisan and Weil Orient
agreed to subscribe for 50% of the shares of the Company placed under the placing
agreement dated 6 June 2002, entered into among Calisan, Well Orient and Tai Fook
Securities Company Limited subject to a maximum of 46,000,000 new shares of the
Company and 46,000,000 new shares of the Company respectively at the price of
HK$0.20 per subscription share. Completion of the transaction took place in June
2002. Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcement dated 7
June 2002;

(p) a project management services agreement dated 9 July, 2002 entered into between
the Company and Paul Y. Project Management International Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Paul Y. — ITC Construction Holdings Limited, in respect of the
provision of project management services for the development of the Ligiao
Industrial Park at Shunyi District, Beijing, the PRC for a term of five years and for a
total remuneration of not more than HK$9,000,000. Further details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement dated 9 July, 2002; and

(q) the Underwriting Agreement.

9. EXPENSES

The expenses in connection with the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue, including
financial advisory fee, underwriting commission, printing, registration, translation, legal and
accounting charges are estimated to amount to approximately HK$1.5 million and are payable
by the Company.

10. DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

A copy of this prospectus, together with copies of the PAL and the EAF, have been
delivered to the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong for registration as required by section
38D of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) of Hong Kong.
11. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during normal business
hours at the office of the Company at 8th Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong up to and including 21 August, 2002 and at the forthcoming EGM:

(a) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

(b) the material contracts referred to under the section headed “Material Contracts” in
this appendix;

(c) the audited financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 December,
1999, 31 December, 2000 and 31 December, 2001;

(d) the instrument constituting the terms of the Bonus Warrant; and
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(e) the following documents issued by the Company pursuant to the requirements set
out under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules since 31 December, 2001 being the date
to which the last published audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
were made up:

— a discloseable transaction circular dated 4 March, 2002;

— a circular dated 10 May, 2002 containing, inter alia, certain information
regarding the previously proposed rights issue with bonus warrant and the
notice of the extraordinary general meeting; and

-— a circular dated 22 July, 2002 containing, inter alia, certain information
regarding the Rights Issue with Bonus Warrant and the notice of the EGM.

12, GENERAL

The correspondence address of Calisan is 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong and the registered office of Calisan is P.O. Box 71, Cragmuir
Chambers, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin islands.

The correspondence and registered address of Well Orient is 7th Floor, Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The directors of Calisan are Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, Mr. Chan Fut Yan and Mr. Lau
Ko Yuen, Tom.

The directors of Well Orient are Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard.

The directors of Paul Y. are Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna,
Mr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr. Chan Fut Yan, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, Mr. Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent
and Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest.

The directors of Hanny are Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Dr. Yap, Allan, Mr. Chan Kwok
Hung, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wah, Ken, Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, Mr. Fok Kin Ning, Canning, Mr.
Yuen Tin Fan, Francis, Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond, Ms. Ma Wai Man, Catherine, Mr. Tsang Link
Carl, Brian and Mr. Cheung Hon Kit.
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FH T T HA
RA&E
#—A—H 107,656 -
R — 107,656
& WA B 8 (107,656) -
W+_HA=+—H — 107,656
e
E/{\_"ﬁ —f 448 _
CNE T 4,934 448
H B BB 4 T R B (5,382) -
w+_HR=+—8H — 448
RERE
wW+_A=+—H - 107,208
EREEEUMER I EERBRERREZER > EREES _+F#H -
19. B8
rE®
T+ ¥ T
RAE
ER L B A R AT E A 53,112
) B 0 ) R 4 (19,909)
R_FEZ—F+_A=+—8 33,203
ey
ERNBEERR _FE—F+_H=+—8 495
RRERE
RoEZF-F+_A=+—H

RoBETE+ZAS+—H

TR AR — R

— 50~

32,708
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20, RMBMARZRE BKHEQRREHEAHERRRE

—BE-—F —SZEF

F A T

REBATZRE
AN LT Bty - A E 228,703 298,703
F LT BAAE 100,483 99,486
329,186 328,189
LRz HE 23,868 56,935

. PE U B B R FRE
WEA R Z R 3,598,640 3,051,781
W EHEREEER (2,083,185) (871,870)
1,515,455 2,179,911

FEATR A T RRIE
R o H 2 IR 709,918 866,109

FEUC R AT B B 0 Bl 2 SRR A B ARAT - B REE 2B -

FR - ARFEFRBEEAMTHFERALAMNBLAAEREREE  EE2FHRMEERSE
EBRBYREABERESAER  WBARSAZHMEENARERER - LA HE LR XK
TR AR T 2 E R 401,211,000,000% 5 - EIt - BRERBECHERZERNER A EERHMEE
B
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By 8% — % AENs

MNoFEE—FE+_A=+—H EFTEWBLATZFHHEUT :
b N
A1 IV BT BEC®R7T
SRR EBEZ A M
REEEE EBBERRES EXHME
MEATRRE 2t B FMER 2Bl FTEER
E# E:
% %
Australia Net.Com Limited 8 ¥ 31,184,11618 7T - 57.26 AR
([ Australia Net.Com ) (W iz a) (M 2ta)
B & BEREE 27,248 3863 7T - 65.56 BWEZER
(W zb) E)
TRMETEER i p¥ - 57.26 REER
HRAF
China Enterprises EE-3<3 MEHREHE 3327 24.8¢ REHER
(Wzxc) LMAL30,0005ETC (Mikc) (Miko)
EIE 60,173 T8
BE (B + & PNGEY: = 55 g
280,684,311 7C (B zzc)
K EEFRIKE R D o ARE 51 - EEKE
ERAA (W) 17,000,0007C
BN IABE JE A RAF] + 5 89,700,000% 7T - 81 HIEXK
(FREMNTEREE
BHIRATE) (Mize)
BEMIEEEARAF el 68,000,000% 7T - 75 YIEBE
(P zze)
BUM A SR AR B (R AY) e allE ANE® - 51 HiEERAR
HIRAT (THMBED 469,748,7777C (Bt 3tc)
(W 2z
HMNBEREEARAF o 109,200,000 75 - 70 YERRE
(W 32e)
B P R R R S ARy &+ & NG - 51  BUgEEEA -
AR HE 89,004,5667C BRAE R
(B 226) HEEM
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Bt &2 — B E R
PN
EMR BT BEOR7T
S &R EBZz i H
RiBEXK TERRE BAEE
HEAIBRE = 25 FREXR 2 B ETEER
HiE &
% %

I EE 38 2 VB o AR % - 60 HE#EK
HEEHRAE 100,000,0007% REWE
(TREWMEED BN
(M 3£ 6)

FEIBEERER # 290,000,000% 7T - 86 HEIERE -
L R F HEREE
(M 32 e)

Tung Fong Hung =B 10,0003 7T - 100 WERESH
Investment Limited BB i A
(THRHFA]) (Bizd)

BERRBBARAA R INY - 51 HEwmik
(M 326) 60,000,0007C (W 3kc)

S|P (B BB o B ANE# - 51 HiE&HK
HR AT 667,833,0007C (% 2xc)

(B} 31)

[

a. Australia Net.ComAE M R EFB MR EETE > EMONBEMNESEZ ST LT » Australia
NetComREMB AR FTENRER EIERERK -

b, FEHEMRFEMMEERE > KROVEEHCHF LR -

c. China Enterprisesft B & EE » HERMUBHESFZSF LT o 2L BEFH China
EnterprisesZ 55.2% 8 B g A< 1 25 % 88.8% X 52 2 © China Enterprises’ —HZER AR >
BR_EEF-FF_A=Z+—HHEEE  WMBE  EaTRBEBHERLF KB %
(R BBAERA R Z KM IR -

d. RFTARFBEERE -

e. WIHIMEIER
f. WA EER

mE I

1
1
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B % ER

5]

21.

EWBAARERIENTMFHBMETANRFEIELEELR -

LRIFINEERATERBAFEZERAREARBEERELIERBHZIALHARBL

EFDAEIIHMMEL A ERE S HRANTE -

RBELARZES RBUBEQTRE HEABRELTAMNE

TRE b /N
—2%-F —SBBRF ZB%-F - 3. 3 33
FEL +H AT THA T A
REE AT 2%
b &g E 156,132 115,752 - —
Sk 20,136 — - —
TR BRAE - - 2 2
176,268 115,752 2 )
BEWEBE R IRE
| 2 - /NEINE Y 13,517 5,323 473 1,083
PEAS B QT FE
RIEHE N E A 9,625 - - -

BEARRH/ RBELAFAREREEN 2B REEEENY -

20,136,000 L2 HEFEL _EE—F T _AWBREEHEELZHE -
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M & — BB aE N

R-EF—F+-A=+—H BZEBE/FAZHFNT

EQTHEEE
SR/ WaER BRITRE/3M
BENARE T i B 2 EXEEZLH FTEEE
%
MM RERERAF HE 5 50 YERBRHRE
MMM BA R A el R 499 BEBK
([EFE )
Pacificnet B PR ZE EERHMHA 2952  HBE- MEEE
ST T ESEE S
ETHERRFE
LEERE
B E HEHE & 2797 REHERLRER
IET MR HR
RIBEAES B
BERENMEH
BitZHBRER
EEB RGN

B—AANE > REBERFONBBRERE > BAEERGEMEARS29,980,000% 5T - REX
BH-HEZF TFHEIRZ BRI - ZTFHRIBAFEREAELE -

FW > ActiwaterZ 2HEHEEETHBREE > ABUINBRERBTEO THREEEZ TR X
T o REBN B EETETHNE R Activater£J27.97%HE 2 -

EXRFINEFAARANGHELAFERNEE LA EEFELERT R AEBMBE A -
EERHAHINEMABELTZLEHLBRAR TR -
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22, BUWER
EM ¥ YN

Y —EBEF —BZ-—F —BEEF
FH A T HA R A THEA

g%&ﬁ%q&%UAg\ (};H- Eia)
—F & 270,474 - - -
— K 189,039 50,000 41,457 31,153
P Wi B 38 1 B 3K IE (M 32b) 534 - 28 -
FE Wi = B B B BKTE (W 3o - 65,212 - -
460,047 115,212 41,485 31,153
B EHERB(EEE (50,413) (46,000) - -
409,634 69,212 41,485 31,153

o —E AR F

ERBEEZ A (107,195) (50,217) (16,239) (4,673)
—EBBH 7 HIE 302,439 18,995 25,246 26,480

i s A

(a) A IEHE K LIEYWF B FETES R I Danwei Limited ([ Danweil) & Lucklong Venture
Limited ([ Lucklong)) #7123,491,000% 7T & 110,583,000 T2 K 1E - A EHEF FXEL
T2 B AEEEBRIRELLE BDanwei R LucklongZ HEHE R AR ZEE - 4 » KAREE
JAZE#E L LR A Danwei X LucklongZ EE » DanweiX Lucklong$H 2 & THRER AT Z
BB TN (EAEEE M Danwei X Lucklongt? ft B 2 #EHH & o

BIEMERRBEFE P REERALEE 2 EZEEAFL51,701,000 T (ZFETEE
F)ZHERERAEBTBE A PREREETFR AT ZBFKA45,183,0008E 7T (ZF
FEAE 34,000,000 7T) °

BT A RE W B i AT S5 AR 2 -
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Bt I &M

FEWBRE A BRI

TEN PN

—BE-F —BEESF —gB2-F 3332

TR T#® T F B A F &AL

REEEERFRAE 24 - - —

REREFRAE 160 — - -

R BN ERERAE 157 — - -
Rosedale Hotel

Management Limited 113 - - -

KT BOEBERNE 80 — 28 -

534 - 28 _

FERIEL BT - RS REABERESR -

REELEEE B A K Rosedale Hotel Management Limited 5 AR EER K Z 2 E

B 2 3 -

RABNEBRARAARREREARLAAARTBAEEERLARAZMBAR » A7

HETEERARTBAEREAARLFHFATEMES -

RATBAEBERABE L —HALRETESEFFREEEREZAA -

REFFEFEFT_AZ1T-HRRTRERIEIZGARA -8B HERMZ 8 &

BERCRERNEE -
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23. BHERA
rEH AT
Hi & HtRE
—EE-F —Z22EF —F8-F —B2EF
F B FH A F# FHA
R A3 2
islye) 261,403 316,375 -~ -
EL 73,279 187,225 18,692 18,692
334,682 503,600 18,692 18,692
BB
il — 209,459 — —
Ei o) 177,188 110,400 — -
177,188 319,859 - -
g EH 1,538 1,538 825 825
st 513,408 824,997 19,517 19,517
TEE b /N
Htir& HibiRE
—EE-F —EZTEF C—TB8—F —22gF
FHA FH A F#H A FHA
BEr R IME
isthi]
T 214,248 207,671 - —
H At o7 47,155 318,163 — —
FET 252,005 299,163 19,517 19,517
513,408 824,997 19,517 19,517
B 40,000 67,800 - —
FEIE 473,408 757,197 19,517 19,517
513,408 824,997 19,517 19,517
EmEHEzTE 261,403 525,834 - -




By & — f1 % B #

FHITELER _BE—F+_R=T—HZEHEEEREIBRRERAERLE (THITHR
) RAHAERRAA ([BHH]) 5 A19.16%K10% (ZFEEFE  TR1001%) 2 E#HZ £H
71,005,500% 7T & 60,834,000 T (“FEEXE « Tt R74,178,000870) o H ILRAFE B2 Al
FHEHERARESME  MEHRFBB KA LT -

B LT EBEEEEN _BETET _A=Z+—BZREENREESTHaREER (BB THE
ER]) c RBTHARESHEHER > UEMNRISESHE s RA-FTRAFE VA FHEE > WHE%
120.12% 8 B A & R EFTFE -

BRERATERSBEE NGNS, RETREEFAKTFREEAFAERN oR _2F—F—HAH
FIREZAFEY—HAZA—H IR RS BRRESR].0083F T MHERLEAL7. 8658 TT)
(M FPHEB) SR URRELSEIE A BB RG -

BETRBESCRENREBE -

(T EEREEAN _BEE—E+ _A=Z+—HZEAEEFERHESERCELERAT NEBE
R LT BT TR RESR (S EHH]) 252,585,000/ THRE - ﬁ@fﬁﬁjﬁf*‘r@ WAR &
ZIWE+Z 1 HLI57,000,0008 cEE - &EEHEBFEHEFAERN . TR _FF—-F+_A1+H
FoRFENES A A G BTN > HREESRK.28E T (’ﬁf%%ﬁi% HeEBLEEARSED
EHEMRTE Z A o

CEBHR -EEZFE+AZ+—HZREEA50,400,0008 Tl IFEFRT 5EFE » £E
FEARARENSFERMELNSERESH -

(LT EEBAN _EE—E+ A=+ HZEREFREFNS=ERBZRALER
40,000,000 70 (ZFFEE © 60,000,00070) > ZAALEBFHERTHBENRFTE > THEFBBHR
rEfizhRERERERA R Z B ERE -

24, XA/ BRFLERERZER
TEE
FHFEREEN - RERBEAR—FRNMEE > S EEREHT S -
25. #EY%

rEE

MERTE{E A 528,000,000 T2 HEYENS > LHMEREZ FEEAEEHEENGE
HHRENEE - AEHERBEERE N 28RE > EE50 5 AHEEENTEERET
}ﬁ »]
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26.

2B B A (E AT HOR SR ) SR R IR A A BOK AT REE R M A R Rl%
NEETSHEEET 2 MEER > 11,081,000 T 2B EBECT THHIETEAFEE 255 Wi RFE

A=
TEMW

—22-F —E2EE
A FRA
JF AL 312,952 268,242
TER 19,007 30,842
B A A 458,329 570,249
790,288 869,333

TR EEETERIBEIEZ ER312,952,0008 T (ZEEETE ¢ 268,242,000%70) ~ EH G

19,007,000 T (ZFEEF4E © 30,842,000 50) X B A5 458,329,000 8 (ZEEZT4H ¢ 568,099,000
HIT) o

27.

RERNIHEZEERAL£2,771,566,0008 T (ZFEFEE: 2,751,170,00087T) °
FEWE B ERR

AEBE-BETHESEFHH0E180A 2RI - RER B Z BIE 5 IR Z Bk # A 10

FE®E
—28-F C—TEg®E
&L &L
0Z90H 330,169 323,133
90% 180H 93,564 244,787
180 H L £ 57,291 99,897
481,024 667,817
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28. BRERRREFNER
FEATERIK R FERT B S48 R HIBR 8% 2 FE A+ 2R 0H -

TEX
—EE-F —EEEF
FH T T %L
0ZE90H 278,148 322,077
90ZE 180K 43,876 82,623
180H KLk 75,570 96,901
397,594 501,601
hn o EEHE X 34,291 172,965
431,885 674,566

29. BREATRE
JEMBEARKEZFRWF -
P31 | p. N

W —2e-F “_T2EF “TT-F “ZTTEF
FEL FEA TR FEA

Mass Success

International Limited (1) 594 - 594 -
Hanny Magnetics Limited (1) 1,234 - 151 -
EHLCEEHEARAT (i) 29,539 - 328 —
REEFERERNA () 127 — - —
Paul Y. — ITC Construction

Company Limited (1) 3,634 - - -
Tai Shan Paul Y.

Construction Co., Ltd. (1) 1,364 - - -

36,492 - 1,073 -

JRE i ) B KB B35 4 Bl BE ff Hanny Magnetics Limited R R A EE WA RN 7 2 3HIE
1,083,000% 7T % 26,267,000 7C » B EZ ENMHEFIRE - BB EEW - 4 8 RARET
EOREE -

B

() ZELAFBARLRIEBRRZEZEWNBLA -

() EHCFEEHRARAALAEELXLAFRAAZEZEMBLR > EHCEEEFTRLF
BANA EERRZBR -
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30. B=E
B2 ROE H{E
F#% A
R
W_EEZEHE+_A=+—8xR

“EF-F—A—H

FREE 10T HER 8,000,000,000 800,000
e tn& 1 (b) (7,200,000,000) -
FREE].00M Tz L EA 800,000,000 800,000
AEmE (b) - (720,000)
FHEE0. 10 T2 LB 800,000,000 80,000
nE (b) 7,200,000,000 720,000
W_ZEE—F+_A=+—H

FREE 10T T iE K 8,000,000,000 800,000
EEBITRER
W_ZEEHE—HA—H

BRMEE. 10 T2 TR 4,480,289,420 448,029
7 B AR 1 (a) 129,500,000 12,950
HW_EE—F—HA—H .

BREMECI0ETZEER 4,609,789,420 460,979
& & 4 (b) (4,148,810,478) -
BREEE.00E T LHEAE 460,978,942 460,979
o B T {E (b) - (414,881)
W_EE—F+_RA=+—H

BREE10B T TEK 460,978,942 46,098

A

) BE_EZFRZF+_A=Z+—HIEEE > XOGHEBREETHTZER0.3HET > 0.344
W T X 0.4058 TTEAT M ELE 47,000,000 ~ 32,500,000A% 5 50,000,000/ 4 A 714G I @ (5
0.108 Tz B » IR E - Tz ROBRERREACETRG  ERASTEHER
FERER -

(b) WBALTABRRE_FZ-EAATNBETZBRREN ARG LBBZRER > A0FE
FUTRATAR ((RAEH]

— ARFEBITERBERATETHRERTEIOETZEERSGHN—BEREE
1LOOW T2 AR ([EHBRM]) (TBRBEH]D ;
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B &% — Bt &R
— EROTEHENE  EBTRABTEHROZEEBER1.00ETTHE. 10T
(THIWE A ]) 5
—  HIBBEARELEZEEA415,000,000E TEBALRANRZER EARERE
— FERAFEHANE  ARRZEERAER7,200,000,000E K EE0. 10T EH
H1 3 38 B H 80,000,000 T3 Z 800,000,000 7T ©
BABEAZHBERARNAIE_FE-FEE _+=BHREZEX - BRAFTHER T
F—FLAZT—HEFBEFIITRES S ERHHE -
31. BERE
b N
RZBEZE—F+ZF=1—H > REBEAAFABREFREESRTEZTRERGZE
FEMEUR ¢
R=-B8—F
+=A=+-H
AT EH RS TEE & ARITE
b
— W HINELAZ+—BEZ-FEZ-&#+H=+H 6.060 36,750
CEEFFE—-A+-BE_EFAE—H+—H 3.440 50,000
TEREF_ATHHBE_ZEERAE_A+=H 4.050 290,000
376,750
eop: PN

China Enterprises

WZEE—-F+ZHA=+—H > R China Enterprises R HI I HE M RITHEZ TR

MER A 2 B RE AN T

AT

EEEE_AZ=RAE_E—FE_-_H_-H

B Ed

R-_Z=E-F

+t=A=+-H

TEE CEEd
£

9.9375 20,000

RERTEMRE+EEM 2 BREFFREITETMERE MR -FZ-F+2AZ

+— B IR AL A 1 R AT AR o
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Mt & — B % E R
32. ik
ge
LD
£H X Btz Efpktt REEA

RORE E4R%F REREE BE ELRE SREER (BR) g

T4  FEL TRAL TBA FHAL FEA TEHRL TRA
TEE
RZEFF5—-A—H
—MEREH 1,844,149 - 253 30,603 16844 34,368 1,002,159 9,928,446
o LELIEEY - - - - - — 46008 46,098
mEY 844,149 - 933 30,693 16844 34,368 1048257 2974544
T - - - - (193 - - (1,209)
Bz E 32,580 - - - - - = 32,580
ERERHEL DR
BENRZEGTEL - - - 157,581 - - - 157,381
BELAAZHEHEERR - - - 96,74 - - ~ %%
HERKBAAZEGRER - - - (3,958) 691) (3,151 - (7,800)
B/ BEREELRZERREER - - - 3730 (2,733) (557) = 459
EEREAGZERERFH - - - (12,097 (1317) 2,204 - (17,210)
REARTEN - - - - - 1,539 (1,539) -
FEERER - - - - - — (730,682) (730,682)
A (Ki2) - - - - = = (46,098) (46,098
W_ZEFE+ZA=1—H 1,876,729 - 233 209,694 4878 34403 269,938 2,388,875
EiAE - - - - 72 - - 2
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Bt 48 — MBAER
)
EER
%5 &5 Btz Bttt RERN
RORE H4RE RORE BE ERRE 2NREE (B4 28
TRz tRA FRL FTREL FTEL  THEAL  TEAL  TEL
ARAZATES (K230 - 414881 - - - - ~ 414,88
WEBLARRKELRZ
BEREER - - - 14,005 - - = 14,003
b/ BENREA T2 ERRES - - - (25,262) 16500 (11,078) - (36,990
FEEBEAAZHERETE - - - - (72) - - (72)
AEERTER - - - - - 12,068 (12,068) -
AEEEREH - - - - - — (398,730) (598,730
RZZFF—4E+-A=+-H 1,876,729 414,881 233 191437 3,021) 35393 (340,860) 2,174,692
TR EE
ENEARENEAH 1,876,720 414.88] 233 194547 (3111) 35303 (245,191) 2,973,481
BgLd - - - [3,110) (10) — {95,669) (98,789
1,876,729 414,881 233 191437 (3,121) 35,393 (340,860) 2,174,692

—_ 65—




B &% — BB ES

5l ‘B REERN
BonE HxHEE RORE (5 4t M
FHL  FEA FEL FEL FHR
b N
R_EEZHE—~F—H 1,844,149 — 233 145,713 1,990,095
ATHATHE (8 322) - — - 46,098 46,098
WE% 1,844,149 - 233 191,811 2,036,193
FEBITRMmMELZ BE 32,580 - - - 32,580
REEEBRTH - - - (569,315)  (569,315)
BB (B322) - - ~ (46,098) (46,098)
R_EEEE
+=ZA=+—H 1,876,729 - 233 (423,602) 1,453,360
[ B 4% B 45 T B A
(M 3230) — 414,881 - - 414,881
AREFERBHR - - ~ (621,305)  (621,305)
MN_EE—F
+-A=+—H 1,876,729 414,881 233 (1,044,907) 1,246,936

AREEMEHEDRZBHEOERBTEEFARBAOABA LA Z FEMB LA ZRBAZEN
THBZEEME - ARSBE A TAMBLA I EFFRHRE -

RZBRF-E+_A=Z+—BRHhAHRZEES N ERNENEARRBEARAEAZHE
19,316,000% 70 (ZFFEFE © 33,321,000 70) XA 210,753,000 50 (ZEFFE ¢ 236,015,000
) o

FEEZAREABERRME O BRAELAELEZLHE -

ER AEAEEEELEMBAARBEATCE EBETEHEZREE - ZEWEL
FRBEANRZ T EERBEMRETHREMA T ERE  -THEECRNEZS£EENEHZ BERE
N EHEAWEERFHRR 214,005,000 T2 BEER -

MREBR-ER-EZREST_A=Z+—H > AL AL EAT RS RTRRZ FHE -
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Bt & &N

33. EEHRRA

FRAERBEEHIE BE) B2 ETZHAWT

R 2 BB R B W T 5
BTG

Bils L2 T BT
BMHRRPAOBRZITER
W 2 #% 8

B (5130 BY B 2 B 5 48

HoAth lhp 22

VIR EREMLER

REREH > REMBRRTHRIZ2EEHERTE (RE ZEEHEWT ¢

R 2 B HER T
T

MBLZTERHRERE
MBEHRRTHIBRZITEHE

REA BB ER

H Aty 5 2

YR E R E MR

MR AEEBREF G eE R T A2 HRER

TE®W Y N
—Eg-F . 34 23 —ZE2—F —EETF
F %L FEa T3 -
393 (216) 187 (6)
(109,097) (15,295) 1,273 18,665
(193) — (325,368) —
(476) — — -
(109,373) (15,511) (323,908) 18,659

TEM PN
—BE-F - 3 3 323 —g2—F —EEEF
F % A F %A F %A F %A
(6,166) (5,773) (527) (340)
307,696 198,599 22,000 23,273
5,462 5,269 333,000 7,632
11,333 10,857 — -
318,325 208,952 354,473 30,565
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Bt % &%

AT
AR EE (W)
M|ITEX
Hibfg g

AR UT S HEE -
—F R
—EME

—EHRE
A

B —FREIBIASIE
TSR 2 BUH

—ER BB 2 HIE

EASEZRITERREAER

TEE P N
—_2T-F —B8EF —2B-—-F —Z28eF
TR TR TR TR
1,515,206 1,932,970 20,000 -
187 — 46 -
— 11,902 - 8,798
— 1,886 - —
1,515,393 1,946,758 20,046 8,798
922,272 1,351,545 20,011 8,798
53,754 48,080 35 -
24,386 32,152 — —
514,981 514,981 - -
1,515,393 1,946,758 20,046 8,798
(922,272) (1,351,545) (20,011) (8,798)
593,121 595,213 35 -

B 672,735,000 50 (ZEEEF © 1,298,298,000%70) ALK
B -~ BB RSB ITFERIERRT -
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B & — Bt & & R
[
BERNAR BEANAAZEE
p:3-1.) b N L5HE PN
ZE%-F "B2%F -E%-% "Z%%f "9%-fF -“9TZEF "$%-F "EEBF
FEL F#L FEZ FEA FRL T FERL F#A
REHBAREMN2E:
—ER 24 - 14 - 14 - 1l -
B_EEIE BEEERSE 189 - 47 - 173 - 33 -
213 - 61 - 187 - 46 -
B ARBEIL (96) - (15) - - - - -
MHERRE 187 - 46 - 187 - 46 -
Ho-EREEzEE (14) - ) -
~ERHEIEH 173 - 35 -

35.

AREZBERARBEBECFAEERETRERRE HESFRTYAELE - BERTLE
FHMEE - TAEBEFRZECERFMIT LB ET I ARRAHBEN K & -

AEBZHEBEFREEUREAEEEEER L FRCIEREA

EWRE

rRE

EWEENRAEETRRY SREBYEMARZESE - FHESHRETRORIZ

EEHEREBARER -

EERA PAURE-FNETEARNZEEGRE  MHEZSELEERERIIAIER

& o
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36. RBABEEREXBZRERAFTR AR

—Bge-F5 C"28BF

F T T # 4
BB ATE A (1,001,147) (812,883)
B AL B2 N W 2 258 17,997 12,147
g Bl A (5,509) (6,509)
S WA (71,725) (114,714)
FE L 81,462 88,487
ME - BERREITE 140,743 110,944
ML ER 4,934 448
#Hes B 495 -
BEBEZ REHER 139,972 482,656
LEXFHRBREZER 15,182 260,946
REIRMIE 84,972 11,382
¥ BEAZREZBEXREMER 529,041 —
MEBARKBEA AR ZHBBEBR 14,005 926,724
RHEAT R BEER 3,587 -
VRS /FERYEZWEERR 28,793 -
EMBREYEELEZ B 19,977 -~
HREYEZCHERBEER 11,081 -
FEZOEREEER 10,012 42,277
EHRERHEZ ERZRERBR 50,413 46,000
HEWE - RERREZ BB 2,827 310
e/ MERMEAREHEERZ I (63,047) (24,692)
HE/EMEREEAT R 2R - (14,977)
IR E (10,390) (9,754)
HEREYWEZER 50 -
FEEM (57,621) (92,249)
FEWL & 5 BRFX 8 (11,759) (53,815)
HEHERD 70,300 16,000
HA BRI - e KB AT HIEE M (109,333) (160,084)
FEATRRER - FERT B S0 & H M FE £ SR IE K2 198,178 338,005
Bl A LI () H (7,614) 14,133
B E > - (5,447)
REEBHRSRANTE 85,876 157,342
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37 HE/BRHMBAT,EK
—2g-F - %% 33

F R F A
BEHEZEERE:
BEWE 84510‘ 51,954
I ERN &Y 189,164 109,152
GRS 19,909 —
BILEE 102,274 -
EHHRE 26,262 -
i =N X 19,432 -
FE 197,426 15,548
FEW & 5 BR3X 175,958 93,406
HACREIHIE - & REARE 240,996 84,992
MITHEBREAE 76,490 22,503
FEAT HR K B B2 A (402,133) (136,735)
FRE S BT A B I Ho At FE SR TR (75) ~
B|ITEREHMERK (314,750) (61,465)
DB R R (35,268) (76,472)
380,195 102,813
O 2 B BB (25,262) (3,958)
O 2 B SR (650) (691)
B SR 2 ARt IR (11,078) (3,151)
343,205 95,013
g RS 63,047 24,692
406,252 119,705
A FR
W . 360,296 68,999
oA W 3k IE - 32,015
HERE - 18,691
R EANFZ R 9,556 —
FE W AR 3R 36,400 -
406,252 119,705
EHEE BHRELR K
ZHERHASEEZRANFEZ W
EWREE 360,296 68,999
HEZRITER IR E (76,490) (22,503)
HERREEHZRABRH 283,806 46,496
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RERHEZHBARAREE BEHEG R K IFHEER122,484,0008 T (ZEEEF  He
6,288,000 ) 2 HEWHE > ZEZEFERBIEA EZAT1,721,000% 50 - #H E GBI
5,994,000 7T (ZFZTEF « 2471,787,0008 70) Kk B & 1% B W HR 98,504,000 7T (ZE X EF -
12,217,000 7C) °

RERBEZHMBAE EEAAEEZ EEEEHR132,311,0008 T (ZEFTFE ¢ 30,241,000
B REALEEZ CEHBEREN31,663,0008 T (ZEZTH @ 168,000%7T) -

38. BAKHBAR %%
285 —EEEF

FEA T+ H AT
EBATERE:
BEYE 96,510 71,818
L EN & 77,071 1,428,425
ELEE — 107,656
REEARZER 19,466 -
ERPYE - 173,869
HmEYE 83,180 4,073
BHERE 54,599 35,563
FE & iR 2K 44,201 -
rE 70,771 1,205
FEUNE & IR 27,304 7,462
HAOBWRE - e RERMHIE 150,390 -
BEFLEBRZ &K - 28,074
A i [2] 8% 8 129 -
BT RERBK - 169,082
|ITHEREEE 52,568 177,325
FEAT BRSNS FERT R (109,964) (138,636)
Ciiks - (80,085)
BITEREEMER (104,941) (457,665)
HEEe FMEE (143) -
S HUR R (51,738) (549,164)
409,403 979,002
WESRFE A 2 B & 53,112 (170,114)
462,515 808,888
AT HR
He 407,018 703,637
PEEARIZER 37,032 92,711
EBHEBE - 12,540
HEMBEWRHXE e XEBEMFFE 18,465 -
462,515 808,888
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FHBAMBALAR, EEZREABEEHEIRSMLFHEZ N

—ER-F C"2%F¥E

F# 1 T

EfRERE (407,018) (703,637)

EBAZRITHESRRRE 52,568 177,325
EHBAKRBAR (B 2HERHASEHZ

BemdiBH (354,450) (526,312)

RERNREZNBAR, EHEARERZ EEE W B FHEEH26,486,0008 T (Z“ETFE
107,130,000 70) ZHE&HE - R ERTERBREERFERREERZ1116,659,00087 ~ 2
ZEXETFCWHAEBIERL213,00087T - MEEBEFHIWIRG6,056,0008 T (ZEXEFE B FH
139,959,000% 70) KX Bt @l & i B8 3,037,000/ 70 (ZFEFE4E ¢ 177,088,000 7T) -

REREZMBAR, E£BARERZ S EHEH9,967,0008 T (ZEEEF 1 66,208,000
T RS ALER Z KEEEANG7,750,0008 T (BT EE 6,074,000 7T) o
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39. EAREBSBHIN
BERk STERER 2P8RR ECHE BEQJHE BESE
RAEE HtE" B®x AQFRE QFF%HE &
TEA T&A TEL TEA Fa& A FRA
RZZFFF-R-HZ&ER 2,292,178 1,272,327 1,356,532 - ~ -
BHHERGZ HERE
(EHREED 45,530 - - - - -
BEHEE ~ 1,509,767 - - - -
DYRFLE - - 15,348 - - -
KB AR ZHMER - - (11,514) - - -
E@3E — (1,243,438) - - - -
WERBAR,/ £% - 457,665 549,164 ~ - -
HE/ BhhERBAT - (61,465)  (76,472) - - -
HERRELER - - (88,809) - - -
FELERED - - 4,748 - - -
TASBERREE - o (23,140) - - -
BRoEERESZAZ1+—H
&% 9,337,708 1,934,856 1,725,857 - - -
RAEA (414,881) - - - - ~
REHEE —~ 1,183,688 - - - 53
PEBELE - - 42,602 - - -
R FUE ~ (1,393,529) - - (16,917) (9)
BYHHE - - - 9,625 53,409 -
W EA R EH ~ 104,941 51,738 - ~ 143
HE/H o EHEL T - (314750)  (35,268) -~ - -
DB EE - - (408,399) ~ - -
*HeFRED - - (5,343) ~ - -
IO BBRRR R - - (4,124) - - -
RoZEF—E+ZA=1+—H
ZHER 1,922,827 1,515,206 1,367,061 9,625 36,492 187
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40. X EHXBEXRS

FREEFEREZHMT ¢

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(&)

w=

(a)

(b)

(c)

PE AT Z R WD 457,032,000 7T K b FEICHIA R P £518,465,0008 70 - IR LLE
155 W BE B B 8 W Z BRASALAE -

REBENT 2R 2 IREA9,556,000 T R B B3 2 A3 4936,400,0008 T Y HEZE T
B 2 B BT R 2 A A fE -

WEEEARZRFE188,331,000 TE R T REF Z BRAHE -
EHYE BMERZEZHEBCRREZ SR EARELS53,0008TT -

#164,295,000 TZ EFFERALEEMER ~MBELRAZEEREN S EHRBE
NElZ R

TEFE > TEHRERHNT:

FHAEH B E18,691,000% 7T K A EIES2,015,0008 752 208 & 3t & — [ B 2 7 7 i
B2 AT - B EHM7,542,000 T A —EXRERBIIERZIEL -

MASBEEENBEA T ZEER  RBELFZHE4,817,0008 TEH S AEBHE
% .

e R~ F) 2 TR R R $8232,110,000% 7T B BB 1 2 8 40 B — R A FRE SR T ZE T
2 RABEHEH -

43,009,000 T2 BEP B EYECHEHBAGREDE -
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41, FAEE

REEH  ARBZEARRENT ¢

TER b N

—gT—F —EEgF —8g-—F —EBEF
TR AT T # A4 F# A F# A

BT REMBHRERF

HFFEIEE S BE
— MR 214,254 - 214,254 -
~¥%E - BEAK 18,005 — - —
~BESHERYE 26,902 23,640 - -
—TEEWE 129,393 227,150 - -~
~HEEITRE 10,849 173,849 - -
399,403 424,639 214,254 —

FHEYE BEX

HEZOHERRTAOZEHE 35,096 - -~ —

42. RBEHENEE

AEBPERNRBERERAZYEZ BEHNEIAZ BB AON R A 17,432,000 7T (ZF
FEHE 0 10,091,00087T) °

FEEEREEA

RERE > AREAXARLFAREAR LM EEFT 2 ATHEKERATMAARKRBEHEL
IR AYE  URARAEZEHBENT

EEM r /N
—EE—F —ETEF —Eg—F g3 3 -3
FH& A F# T FH®A T %
— R 26,429 4,802 992 142
B oEERE
(BHEEERE) 25,482 8,720 - —
A 1,678 — — —
53,589 13,522 992 142
HATHU _E=ZFHPETEN > HeTHUU_E=ZFAPTFLUEE -
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EEEAEREEA

MAEEBRRZYERS A R11,914,0008 50 (ZETFE © 11,442,000850) - HTH%E
ERRZ=ZZELECDHHFAM -

RERE  AFEEBFITLZER/Y  HE ZREREREBLHAZFDT

xEME
2T —E2ER
T # T &AL
— K 9,479 11,413
FOEENE (AFEEREWE) 18,633 18,936
WA 994 2,775
29,106 33,124
43, HAEE
TEM P /N
—BEE-F —EBEE —BE—-F ot 3 -3 323
TR BT %A FRA
@) EAFIRBETHE
ABZHTRE
Rty AR ER - - 95,243 50,000
AER GRS T
BBt 2 B R LU
EHEMTHBAE
ZIEEREFREHEZ
BEEME - - 13,000 71,500
e L At BEAV A W 2 BB AR
R /N 2,357 2,357 - -
SNFR N+ 180,725 278,689 780 780
183,082 281,046 109,023 122,280

(b) AREHALNFERENE /A R Tung Fong Hung Medicine (Retail) Limited5& #0488 &
MRAA ((H#]) st EYEMET ZHEHFRET 2 R H e TR IEE T M g 4tE
{7 -

() —ARAFENA > REES GIBILRETL) ZEEMATRERZ 2EMBEATHEER
pE (THEE]D BERERF > oAl REREE &KE M 2600,000% 71 % 6,600,000 7 °

Kz hre b RE > TZERmMrRtz EERBERENIBHBRERBERER
B
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MR ESRRR - BRAMAREFEETH7,700,00087T - BEAFREM - HFEHE
REFMEET - BEXEAEEERERAMBERE  EEARBFZEREAERZ MBI
UAEEERAFEE -

MoEFE—-FLE > THENHNEBEEEZE2EWMBAAEBEMNBEEREARLAR (EMNE
WD DEWHEMERARAT (EMERD ENERRSEETR QUKER) 28
BRAZES  mPEEES ENTERREEERF - RBEMTEAAEMNEER -
FMEAACHELZEBEE  BMNEEREZSEO B ARH243,600,0007T » BIE N
BN E AT A AR 167,500,000 2 BEMAER LA RH76,100,000T2BE -

BEAFHRIY  BMNSALSHRAETERN - EHEEBRETRMATRUER - 0B
MESEEERACEMY  FF IR HMBREHRAFRENEE  TREeHARHE
ZERBRAERATFAERAFZE -

RoBE—F+—F > EMNBRESZETYEZER (AR RE-ANWNEAALH
TZHEEHRE RBENGELERERES 2 YEXMHERME BN BEREERE
F o BREBZ&EHN 576,600,000 T > HEEZRSEMNBENARN64,200,0000CRF
LR -

MRZBEZE—F > BMEERGHHE  HERBLEBRZHGE > TOETZETFR
FELLMFE T KRR - BEAFHRAY  BERGEMTHRARKBENESELR - EHRIE
BRBUELEHNER  HETHECHBRERRBE-PEE -

44, BEEER

MoFEFE—FE+ZH=Z+—H UTHECHEEN  FAFEEIEZHERFEERZER

(a)

WOTERREMMESE - —FRIM

MR E 5 17,630,0008 T (ZFFTE © 32,130,000 70) L BHEYE -

BE T {8 5 234,462,000 70 (ZEFFF ¢ 238,033,000870) X & TR ~ BEXRHE -
5,244 000 T (“EEEE /) ZHEHFHE -

RE{EA /53,194,000 T (ZEEEE - 8 2ETRHELA KL -
BITERREMEE ——FNEW

83,520,000 T (ZEZTEF 612,351,000 70) ZB/ITHFHK -

78 —




By 8% — ft % & H

REE_TTFER_FFT-E+AZ+—RALEFEE > BHREFECHHRRESEZ RAER
R F-HRTELAERFEREZEMN -

N_EEZEST_AZ+—8, FEERZ —HHBLAA AERGERE N — BHRTHTHR
B MZEEFTIUEWHB AR RFEYENE RO IRITIER(E5618,999,000 T2 2 ER
F—FEHCEREN ZEESFCNERNEESETEEETUER -

45. BMEALRZS

FR > AEBBETIHEQBTLUTRS

ARER XEHE Wi —BE-F —2B%H
TR tH#A
Pacificnet AERD R RBRZEEREA (a) - 1,200
Sing Pao Newspaper AEBD IR EERZ B3 A {b) 37 -
Management Limited
RABNEEFRAF AREEREBRZEFAELA  (© 88 -
Lucklong AEBEWEBRZERXFEIRA (d) 8,212 -
Danwei FEB R Bz E5F Bl A (d) 9,171 —
Total Pacific Limited AEED K EERZARIRA (e) 280 -
Mass Success AEBEMREMZASTS f 1,109 -
International Limited FEBEARENZEFERE 277 -
Hanny Magnetics Limited AEBESREMZEEE (f) 151 -
AEECHREMNZERFIE T H 171 -
REESETHEAMAFA AEBCNEEMZERFE (g) 246 -
REEHBELR FEEDAREMZEERES (f) 33 -
BRAH FEBBE ECEE 8 -
AEECNEEMNZBEREE 702 -
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LEER REHE Mz ZRB-F _—S8¥F
FEL T %
REEHES AEEEA REMZME ® 151 -
BR2 A
Super Park AEEBEZRE (e) 400 -
Development Limited
R B (B LBE) AEBERZRE (c) 216 -
HIRAT
Gunnell Properties Limited AZBEMREMZHEZH 6 2,386 -
FER A R A
A AEBEURREZEFTFERA () 105 -
Cargill Private Limited AEBOW AL ERENFRE () 1,826 -
s
(a) PacificnetH A EEZ BEAH -
(b) Sing Pao Newspaper Management Limited A& BZ —HMBE LA Z 2 EMBE LA -
() RITBNEBERLFARRTEN BUHE)ARRXADARTBNEBERLBAZEENW
BAR - ARRAETEEHRERTBAEEARAFI 2 HAHA -
(d) BRFEEFADanweilLucklong R HHER AR ZEF » KA FEB I FDanwei X Lucklong
ZEE-
(e) Total Pacific Limited Super Park Development Limited 3 A £ BB & AR Z 2 E B
R
()  Mass Success International Limited * Hanny Magnetics Limited ~ RERETLRARLH -

REEHBEEF ML T - Gunnell Properties Limited RS AR AT AAL A FEREZ
EREMBELE -

REVHEEFRLGAARFAEIERRIBR -
RITAR/AERZAHELF -

Cargill Private Limited 3 A A B M A EZEREZHB AL -
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REFHHEBEATZSRFFRNGEEEREAREINE22R29
EERR LERGNEIEXEGZSBRETET KRG FARERMEATTARE -

Br ECBrdiE S > RERLEEREA LTI EMERERGE N AFELERGEMEAN AL
MTE R

46. BIKERE

AAFBEEEFRZBBLAANR _EEEE T A — B EA At RE{E & B R H -
HEZZFZEFT A= -HUEEEGUBERIRZIRUBBE S LFRER ZCBESETR -

HE-FFFFLA-HE > AEEMA-HEREAHREFH (BEEFE)) - BRESFH
ERBEFEAREHAHGEHZRAEN R LHETHERRETL - BEEFEZEERALE
ZEESHSE > FHRBUZHAERZES - REEHEEF IR ZHM > BEEREERYHE
HRRAmEZ WA EFAH SR  c A EEERREH T2 E—TELARBEFEEL TR HEZK - I
JEE A S T A SRR R U A R

FHEEe HEAERIR MR ZERBERFHERTAEE LR UREZ WA BARTHESY
M-

FEft & # LIS RIS E 2 BREF B 2 ke BAWE RME -

EFHGEMBLARAZEENSNATEBNER BXBEHABEH - GEAAAUER
TEREZAETELEAARETHEIT > UXNFHEMN - AEERLHEFEERBEIHE—F
£ AR g et #ET K -

REFH > PHERGRERFFEEAERTR2EESAEE I BTAREZEFHBMEESR
A AL BEA S BN B EENZ K -
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47. EEB&SE

THEREITRER B RELE

(2)

AN A Z B RlChina Enterprisesi® i@ — M2 E M4 75T LR » 4 494,800,000,000
MR KRR (R FRAR (REAR)) BAPEREECOMSTZIHEER - AE
#1%5129,600,000% 7T - REX LN EEEZHR LT -

China Enterprises/R /R EK LR LW Bl > REKKHEEBEITAE% £120,000,000
BT Z R F IR T China Enterprises ©

ZEZHRA BB ERE A BERERL -

ARXFZMBARTHEREMTRE®RZ —HE2EHBLARAR _FZ-FLATZER
LARE AR5 49188,000,0008 T BEEE PR EH 25 FY X HR S E BRR LY REA
FHEARESHEAZEYR I EREERR -

FE PHEMTSERPEESLZ -RE2EMBLARARER —FEF-FLAT=ZARE
RTFZMBLARZEE > FTEZPETIES L1 600,000°7 K 2 B R HE (B H B LR
Jiulong Garden® ZHIFH Bl 2 BB EM) - RELEFHIKARK7007T - HEZH
HE 2 R B SR BB HE AL R R T BT U R AR R A

REFNFAEFEN _TZFE-ATNAENZESSERIBRZIRE X070
PEEHBRFRIEER IS ITZ B mEBEFREETADRI21,957 884 B REE
0. 10 T2 AL (THEAL]) ST ALFI BT  UPABHE —REAROTERR
B B R R A -

HAFBTRRESHERBUERSBTTRE  HEAERRTRERAIES =ML REE
B0 17H T R o

IR B A B R R I RS -
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fE %5
&%

WZEEZZHFAAZTH BIRBHFINAT AR WA BB BH L BEEBTITH ) ¥
N R AL EE 41,841,000,0008 T2 MR EEMER > HPHFEABTERY
725,000,000% 7T ~ #EALHPERAT B 3K 47798,000,000% TT L HARfEF(#318,000,000% 7T - B1F
W R AN B Z BOR Z — i EE R A736,900,00045 70 ~ i K — M B 2 7] 491,000,000 70
HL B8 & 49 718 49 100,000% 7T & FE (8 18 & 3047 280,000,000 5C - HIEMB T ERBLEL
581,100,000 T2 FIH » AL R ZHWB AR XBE AR Z D BUIR R HIER -

BRES

WN_BEZHEANA=ZTH s AEE W BT ELEES -
BEHELER

EXH AR FRPERAAREERS TYE - B RRE REAEHEL 5 172,400,000
Jt) - AEE-HEEREREAKRER ZHNBARWBUEITEZERN - RNEEAR GRE
{E#753,200,000% 70) ZHEF - EPEEL13,700,000% 7 « HEBH42,000,0008 7T ~ 8
TR #79,600,0008 TT KX A Bl — I B AN B 2 BT B B EIEHP -
NREE

RZEZ_FEAAZTH AEBEAETRRERE B REAEEM VBB AL FE
SRATHAL49180,000,000 T2 5 S A E T 5 =& B HITIRML9,000,0008 T EEHE
M 6] B SR AT R AL IE R -
REEH

b - EEREARHZEABIAZTEM S = (F] —8 Rl Z5Fas > 1
TEZECEARNAZTERARMEHEE AT ETTERBTENERERNCRAEST

BRZHEEEL  RITEX - EREEMBEUER - RLBBRIAAFE - HH - %8B
EH - RS OSREHEARSE  BRIEMERIAAE -
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SMVERBEC I —FF FANAZTER AR EA R R E ST -

REHCHD > BFF_FAA=THHERZERUTRHL  AREZEH L
A B AR 3 AR R -

HEES

RB|ARRAZRTEEARMEERAREZ AN EEIR - & F R E & AT
[ZREFH > SESRAARERRW 2 EEESHBAMNE -

EX88

NEEERATAE  SEEHRA 2FF—FTZA=Z+t—H GEEBEHT
BZHMBHRERMREZ A R LL) PR REEZ BB EAEE R BT MTERSAEE -

BEFKRBEREERE

TIAAREETALEN R  EEHKRHEALA—HEEEMBAARFEZ
YA W R EARE RS (R ARAF ([REKE]) 34.60BREk s RABALEEFE
IRBEGHERER - WIRBALAR EFZ—F+ A=+ BZBELHBEHREX (B
RBEEHBELE _EE—F T A=+ —HURZETHEMELARE) -

FH A
AEEAR _ZEEF+T _A=ZT - HZEBREAEEFHE 2,220,790
B BYEE
— B (32,708)
AEENR _EE—F T _ AT HBZEBREAALEEFHE 2,188,082
o EREEHEARAEREEAZAEE (M2 1) 76,791
RZEFEZFANAREERM NG REFHE 17,400
AEBDERETRAIIZAEEZEARGESALEEFHE 2,282,273

fhEHBLE #T AR T8 SR IE R 3R 40,000
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B 8& —

ﬁ%@TEE%%mﬁ%Z%@%V%%Fuﬁﬁgﬁ@ﬁ
1 B AL B2 it RE 2 A #E BT A8 5K0H

FEREBEATHREEN R EAMNZTRESEZ
REEREEEEAVEERE

MEFRAMZERAEFEZEARGAARERRE

AL & # AX ST ALY > AR E BT 10829,468,4 1351 E
AEBRBEGELS G EERELEERE

Be 65 58 A B AT F ZR AL RE 3% 5E AL BF - R 18995,362,095 % B # AT B 1
SR AEBABECGIESFESEREREEEFE

AL TR 2 B 8T Ry B

BiC & 7 iz 52 iy 2 E BT IRID BB

B B 7 A R AL M B8 AW A8 52 LIRS 2 B B AT I B H

Mzl

[

F &

2,322,273
26,543

2,348,816

4.13% 70

2.80%: 7T

552,978,942
829,468,413

995,362,095

AHERARAR _FF - FEHAZRARA-HMAZENB AT RBREKER -
THEZA=ZTHZELERARZUSBEERREIAFE > B ME RS

4,800,000,000 % # f BT 18 3K JH 49 129,600,000 T E R g A E Z & -

B o £ 8 190 W MR R B H A B AR -
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AFREESEREALNFAREZB L FEEE () ZHERMEST > AZFZE
B R c AARREEFURETRETLEBN 8 ARZTERZARSHE

ﬁ [+]

AL BR IR A RE 2 F BGRB8 O AL A HEE%&%‘%&%W > ﬁ%@iﬁﬁ?i@?ﬁ%
BZBHRX e TXTIAARBBEE L TRERIEAEE > AIRBZFARIHAR -
REFHEANZANAZERF A R 2 Z 4 Eé/ A3 H ’J%jﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂéﬁﬁq
Ao RBEREFRAANERALFAEREFBEZEMBERERRRBEZAAE -

Ud

1. TEARE

(a) BAANZERESERCEATFEAN > BURRESIFEADFE (RBED 8
WEZFZFZHEANAZT IR (BHAMIRESERXMHAGEEEZH B2 2
FEEZFTZAZT-HTHAEKER (OFEEWAH) MM ([FREEE] > M
IR EXITHE BB ATREBES) A ATUREK0. 16 A BN (K
TEGE (BERE]) BEEANZRESSENEEZ 2R n KRN (R
AR R —BARG) BE o BARERSAANAETEROA R EEE M
RN RE R0 16T EA (TR T X 2 HE T URAE) (TFREE)
REEHE R B - AR S RE IR TEZ R B SR A
Bz aAMBRESAIMNABRESSEERBPNEREAEEMTEAEIATHE
EE S - AMEREZ IR T OB E KGR - eHREHRTEMEELZ
N E R A2 Ry o

b) BHAMEREZSEHMA —HRBERE (RERED - & Eﬁﬁé?’&%ﬁkﬁuﬁk
ITHERIENE - HIBEZRBERRBERS > HRBERB TR ESEZTERTHERE
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By &% — AANRBREE2HRIARKERE

MRBEMZAHTRIEZRN  —~HEZALFERZELE - w8 HER D
RS E R E R ZANE R - BB A IE B SR AL -

() AAFANGEHBLIEHFRMN  BATHEAMRRERERZZIEEZRBBEET M
ERDBBHEZIGIHEHEANTRERRESIFEA > MR — 2R REERR
BEAER—RBAMTHE -GS EZARRREBESN 2R > AIERE
EREGEERMERRMG HMELEZRRMG  WEABREZEFZTRRMHZEE)
B> ZERBESTEIRABERSSHTE EEAZBERT » TIRKEEEE
LEH6(CYRZFUE -

(d) AAFAMHREELETRME > R (EROTAFEREHEEIHE -+ AME
BRA) ATEEMZREEMERERTAREEREARBELEETISE

i) RBREBHAALTZHERBRMDZEE

) EEAZERT U2 7 ABRNERREERA AL T EMHEBRAFT
BEBEE I RETEZREEZ REAATREEEE S &

(Gil) AEAZERT » £ BTTRRER A A EEGERTRETHE
2 TSR -

FATEREREMET BT - RBEANRTREETEE AR RAHEREERAAS
R BTHRM ATEREZ R WA - AU EEEE R R ERE A A2 i %
RZERBREERAAN GHNEHLZTFEN » AIHFIRARZARESFAE AL M L2751
BUZRBRESHLAFAEAZ ML > MEFER > MAAHREEZHFAEANAE - WAL
HE ZERERZBETTEALEALAERZETERE > UFARIRESHEEA
FEHL -

— 87 —




B 82 —

AANRBEREBEZ2HERAREHEBE

RBEHE

REFRARARRBEIHE  UTHEARBRAEREAR ZHRE ¢

(@)

ETHNERT > RBEMKEZEERE TLURE (FXO)R)7FTBEFEZIERL
BRAb) - AT > AATABEEMNRGEE  EEREHERE (ERERER $raH
BRSO TR E Z K F B I

(i)

(vi)

BREGESH > FARER T ETNEREE

AL DBEMEFEES AFEARMBERREAEEFES B#RXERZ
FREET AR B SR BORZ B A GRBURAREF BB RA U RERER
BEBN

Aoy ) R B A A BB IR R 4% B A 24 R R () 1 BOR (LAEAE B
Rz J ) FEHEART IR (BERRE)

ARAFRTRFE (UHERREZ S6) LIRS WA 7 8 AR 7] H A ME A
FEEZRER

ARNEMBEARFEEETREATE EREFEHEETE) 90% 2 BB LEE
LIRS PR R TR R BRI RERE N RERE
HRE 5

AL A BAR AT H A A R 2R U S /E A AR RAT AT A - AT TS A A
AW RO ES > MERRGZHERNE ERARE BRTHE BRE
Fr#ii st ) 290% » BARMZ BT 2 hkiE KBRESEEEEE T EY
LABORT i BB AR E AR A B 22 90%

(vit) A% 20 AT 4 Ve 1% (90 9 T 1 RS0 R LR 3B 2 00% 2 (B 38

T s R

_ 88 —




By & — AANZREBZRRARGHEBRE

(viil) A2 A HE B LAy~ TR A D 2 R S U AT SR B R 2 PR M E R
FHRELTRSEcHRBEEF LA -

BR TS () B B Sb > FE TSI ULT BV AR £ o) BEFT L 2 SR %

(@) Ao B E A B RS AT R SRR O 2 R I R (R IR IR A (15 AR I ) S AT (R
BATRUE R

(i) Ao A EEAT B BUAR 2 R B AT MY B 4 R 3R AT T A s A R A R A B R
FHREHEZES  FHREEMHEEES EENEFZARIRBAE

(i) MRBEBHTEHZ BERRGAEETEALT R ZREERE (EEARR)
(R CHL At i 0] 48 B AR AR A ] o mT 400 R B M ) B AR 2 B 5 22 MR K
B Z AU 2 dR s Bt R A IR ITRUE R

(iv) AAFARBURARFHBETROEUABRRERE » AP IMRILBITZ K
GEEZHREBRES - MLEBRMAZHE RERBEFRTEFE FER
B RHAEANTERSEREURSKRZ REFEZ110% 5

(v) AAFRBERES S CEREEE) 87 R SO & 5 8048 2 7 SUE AT R
BARZ Kb A Sa TRERG AN FALASUEMH B AR 2 ERK
EE -

BEA £ (a) R(byr BB Z R - AN R AR A s B AR L SUR EME A
B BARARAZEEDNE  SEE EARESEFLABEALRARSEY
AR L AR - BURSRA B SR E UAN 2 R R B B SUR ) I R R
AREI A REZEA CGEERER S —HRITEAST (ERAER ZEEET
ZHE (AR BB FREEMEMZEBA L Z FRELS - LREFH
Bl o IZBREMBATHARITELEEAL T AR EREBIEHAE - s

~ 89 _




By 8% — AANARREIEZHRIARKERE

AR EARIT GEBRTNE) BHAEREEEZ FREHHEURE
HARE (OHEARRREARZEFETMIEHAR) L/ SEELMABEE 5
B [EIE AR -

d) REEZEAAREHEERZEZ UL DRFMWZEFTATFE > WS Rl
ZEFMFEUD - mRABELARFTFTRABZEELS R ULAIATHEE > mHAM
Bl AR IR A T 458 - BRI A& 1F 23 BOK T (B0 80 (R B (1 L4 41 > 4R
FMATRESREEZRAE -

() RWHMEZGHREAHZIEM (ERARE AR THARST (ERARE) THE
NFREE > WEARBXAEORBRESSAEARNAINERENZEN - £%
M AE T 58 B AR SR SR B AR LR (AR Iy > A AT EGR AT B A RAT M & g & L
BERZ B (MILFEUHBAZ M) ET > MERFHRERREZBRT > TR
BEEZREBAFERE > BELFARIBHEFAAERBWEFHERZ —
MALHEHRS - ABEMBGEAMARTRELZEMZERENE - EALF
REBZ ERERMB T HBBEE 5 AEHARREE -

3. RERRER

ALFIRR I HERB M LAGL A T REAT - AR A AR MANRRESZELHFEALRE
HEAA FHiL BRICHEARAEENZERARESIEMARE  FAwALFAER
W EI B T8 A0 B L AAE AN > AR o AR ARGRAT (] H A - 3 B2 SE AL A SR AR R 2 A R R
HitRER R -
4., BFR - -BFEER

(a) ALAIGBACRERE 2 sB M AT LUE T8 M U8 A A 2 SR SR S A0

2R A ZEESUF L0168 T2 SER B > T MBI AR BURENS R
BUUEN ARARISCREI AR > QIS A IRENE0& 77 SN B — (IR A

—90—




By 8 = ANRBERERE2RARKAERE

TREEE - ALF RN EEE QEERESZREELANEREZ LT ZER
MER  EXRABEZHAHE RITTRESHEALTM LBEHAERE
AL EMELBFZHRE

(b) HAAFZBREBELRUAZZARETHANTRIESHAEAZALETHE
KL B PSR o 2 I A A0 5 o 2O 7 0 8 AT (o P R A R R A O Bl 7E o B 1
EE— B (BHEZA)) T EERA ZHMA) 2 AR RE ST R F A S
ShE A RBES

(c) HIMALFIGIBCMERE M P RERE RSN FM CHREEREZEAEN
ER O BBZEREARELFAT  ARRAAMAMNZRRESIRERERS
RERELAZBAMRE A =M&xXA

5. EERARREZRAANEBEREFZLFHE

AMEREEZRAF SR FREAVAEAEEAFREZHH KNG FHHE - EHEHEE K
AEREEM—FRGHABBE=1TH - AEELARESHAANERFELTHEZ
BARIA > 7R 20 B BAR A A AR AT A 38 M B 1T 8 B 5 Bl AT FE AL P GRS HE 8 A I 2
RREETE > B (IR UL ) A R R AT AL FURR IR BT I 2 iR B (R B RS HoA) 2 3R
EESA ARBAFRRERETFRBF ST EAMBREB T AR > AR E
EEEH AR B EERE VAR BT T RERERELT -
6. MBEREH

A% ] B AT A0 Bt/ 2 134 AT B BRE LA T 21 77 =0 (] AL A B8 B HE RS

(a) HEMEBELARTEZRURETXER TERREBRAADTHRR =&

(b) LAFA AR 7 =% R 48 38 T B 2 BT B (R AL R R IR e B 2 A BT & (0 AL P RRU AR ME %
B Z B 110% 2 B4 CREHEF) B —F Ll b2 RREE - ERBL
H A 75 XA -

PR Bl AR 2 AL R MSLB P LAGESE - EABHETHELE -

—9] —




B 8 — ANIRESZCHAIAREABE

7. RAREBFREARERERN 2B

() ZHREALAFEREMEETREIRA ARG FEMNEHZBBREZIHEAKR
GZHE ATERERSIRAR (EERER BB ZHER, AR
EREEE I Z R R M UMERT - AR S KRG ERNBERZFRIRERHR
BEEFAEABRORS  FaEEEHRERE -

(b) ALFIERACHEE & WA 2 ZRREUE A (15 2B Z AR MHRE) W AR (AL
FRBHERER FUETRER (BREHAETAMNRREREE R SEZEH
FlZ BB R R I EEMUES RS ERE R AP ER &5
REISVRMEE 2RI MBI AR EAMUNZ — B8 > BrTsSUER L
HRE RIS R ERA -

() MRREEFANT MR (AEFEEAIF20EEFRBE (BE ) G+
ZERE RZEERTZAEN > TRERZABEZ ANLBEIARIBEEARAL
FARURBEESHAEARE  EHEZE A TBE— - IREEIAARER
RAEAFIH MR ERE AR RERRAFTRR AR EEETHR A
Fil o B OLRL LRI A LA A B IR S B Z AL FIRT R R B E R AT
(RS > BINE DA AR MR A ANER -

EORREBFAAGRIEEANES AWM R L2 BRETHA ARSI IERA
T BEHARADPRNERCEATMERTHEZIEEEEZ10% » TEREEEATZ
SFERLHRBEEERRA RHIEEAS THATREEEMED (EaEFBERI) -

9. WRANRKREZES

AR EREE AR B BARAS . AATTHWHBHES - B
BAMANFERZ RBERETERFERE BT EEAMTEHRA L RAA A

—92 .




By & — AANAREBEZCHRIRGHAME

PR E 2 R0 BE R SUR I AR EE - BRBIN AL E R E A i 500 T (S
LRRAEEAR AT I HMEREE 2B - B S BB ZAFRREEEEAZEHS
EHEHES - |

MERAFTREERE > BREEREEAEELRRGE7TIARZ A EHETA
W2 S E AT 2 TR | B R AL A S IR -

10. RBEZRE
MEHERANBAEEZEFREREALNGZETHRR  SEMBIHEE -

11. EETHE

ik AL AT BRF 45 18 SR AT 2 AL SR S °8 2 BB BRAR S5 D R AL ) BB AR RS AR AT Y 2 3%
BERELATENIELION  AIAARAAELADR=ZEABNERTREBSHAATER
BB S R AL G R R R - LIUEMIRE > TR MARTHZ AN REESED
AL 8H T 78 1 R R AE B 4R A AAE R A

12. BRIRER

ALEI A B R E R AT 207 X R R 5 R B R SR AT R B s R A
AR R ERG ZE S

13. B RE 2R
N AR PR (R R IE) A TR T EZ R ¢

(a) MAETREEMNTHEZ AL ALFAEERREEO RS/ EEXE R &
¥ LETRAG CIRELETEZBEMATEEE AR - LERMESET
EHAERAHEREAMHIOCBTROEZARASES > MZEROZFENGEE
FEALAEREREIBENER - RN SRFEZ —RERFAIIR (AEHE
UACERSERIGERRME TRNBMEL > MARZ TSR B UERAHEHE A
& H B B AR TR S SR A KD

—93_




B % — AANABRERBEZHKRARKEBRE

b) HARAZBECRER—REF TROHFAEAZ —MRMERN » HiE AN
TROFAAZFEE > RETRREERAEA

) BEIMEEERE  RULKUTLZ AR EERBITHRES - ITEZRHEERES
FRERERF ST M S XM — R - EX8 - B FEESHEMEELE
B &

(d) ALFMEREENZEERAE (EHRZE) DIEBREA& M RAT A 8 &
BB Z NI HEERE -

14. £™
FERMABEET LW 2 AN > RAFFEERKE LR

(a) AFRBEBEDEHRNEMERYTERZRER > EHLMNRREEE—
W EERN S EMAMBREZEZERMAFER LN 0 > MAQRAMHEER
AEEMER S &

by BEfTHEZEEMRENARMERER GERRGEINITZHILTER ATE
B EE - MM G E - E RS BB B T A PR R AT
b MARGIZ RFENA m A AR EREEZ ALRY > RIAL A HEFR
LR -

15. BHIRBERFEA

DBEAEERE  MEEERAAL A EER UL 57 W U Z AT R 2 AE 1 38 Ak
R AANTEARNZBEERN 2 ZBEM S RERTRETBERNSERANARE
AR EEARRERNEZEN L BITAFI B RAERE -

16. ARERRAEAELRQRTFEB ZER
TR AARARLFAEERZHE
(@) HEALFAMBREHBHEERRGZES  MEELH5EABEHRE-B/ES
ARBEERZRERIENT - AL G ED SR BREERA AN LA

ZBE B BAURBRREERA AT EE LU ERET 2 RAE KRG BITH
ARORBEERXE > UATRE T ML GEREESE HR IR BRBE

—94 _




By & — AANRBREZIZ2HRRARRGEBRE

FREREARTOBEALF > TEEZFAFRRESARAEE - m
ARFIABRER (MERIAAEBRBEZERETRRREGHZE) MERZE
BESHEAEALERETERZBERENIY > EZFAMNTRESTARIRE
HTREZRAEAE &

b) MERBMEABBRARRZREAALF EHER  MZEFRZ BN AHRE
—EWERETEAR S H > MRBREESAE ARBEENL USRI REAR (8
R BEZ AT HZEGEFI T SZ R B R REERFE AR
E—THARERLEBHHRERME > ALERES SR EFERmE B
ZHREE A BB SA AR o B EXTRERARRT > A0
FE > RIRIE B Z BRI — VIR B 5 R 88 - B RALF SRR
BEIE R -

17. BE

RBEAENAREERSSAABLESZIRE SE2RREBHANARLRE
REEERL > AEFRARZREEEFAABLZERN -

18. BEE %D

RERAMNTRES I ZEEEVEELRERE -



M & = - RES

1. BX

A FE TR 4T R E L T (IR 94 (T B EE A 8 B AT M E ST 00) 2o R
RARAGWT :

B
kR (& 14)
8,000,000,000  AX A& 800,000,000
7
BB (R g R B BMHTEHEF. (& 48)
552,978,942 MR - M EBEEMERITH B 55,297,894
276,489,471 B fn o MBEEIK 27,648,947

(R R0 AT (TS A REAE S0 8% H 370

B IE 3047 {#)

829,468,413 82,946,841

EHMBMEHTROHTHASTENZEARSELR > SRS  HEERBRASHEZ -
H_ZFE—F+_A=Z+—H FEEARIYHZEERUFRERFUEZALIL) BEEHEE
EBAATH# I > E8ITRME 92,000,0008% -

oA
MEBEALBAR—NWNA_FECAZTHRAZERERS - REEEETGTEH . &0

A A RES I HEL 340,000 M0 Z M RATIEERE  ERRMZITHEE R 3448 T
4,058 7T °

— 96 —




B & =

- RESH

RBANRR—NILZFLA T HBRABZ BRIET 8 6

REREEBRTFT A H

MARTHEIEREZTEE  AEEBETHERREERGMIELHE - BREHE X7

FEFETIFAEHFAE
AR "RR mRE
REBH BRESE SRIBE SRIEE BREZE THEEH
“EERE 50,0001 3.44 3.145 75,0004 “EFEXE-RA+NABZE
—H+ZH F-_ZEEFE—A++LH
“RERE 990,0001% 4.05 3.702  455,000%% “EERE_RATAAE
Z“A+WlAE “EZZAE_A+HA

B £ SCHER & Ah > AR Rl I SEAE o A ) R AR AT AR R
BBty 2 A3 TR o A% 7] 3 S A 3 A B4

AR - BEACHE -
EENR MG SELER A -

2. ESERRONRBREZESRKE

REBEEEENTEY  SEERTEBRRALE RAMEEE R REEER G2\
g 2Bhd > BERBEERRRASHEEMNEARLF LB F 2B (BERBHE
MERVIRIVREMRE - H RS UR SR EA IR - SURBHREERERIZ29
GEINAZGROI Tz BT MRz s SRBELEWARRAFTEH LT AR ERETIERLS
ZAREFAANEARNF LB 2 EHNT

(i) B#&
K&BEE
B8 AR RIKER DEER
BE B0 o 1 L (M 2) — — 80,440,000
ERR 632 — —

-97 —




B & = - KREHR

Bk mANBEERE L (B L) %% Chinaview International Limited ([ Chinaview]) » B
¥R B A H Calisan T F7H 2.80,440,0008 B Z #E 5% » BEIE L% A ChinaviewZ &
EH ML > M Chinaview®E A Galaxyway Investments Limited ([ Galaxywayl) Z 2 ¥ #E
5 > GalaxywayBE R B CEEEARLR ((EHLE]) BR=72 —DBITEER
B o B AZEBEFITC Investment Holdings Limited ([TTC Investment)) Z 2 & HE
#i o ITC Investment¥ & Hollyfield Group Limited ([ Hollyfield)) Z 2 & # 21 ©
Hollyfield# A REMHEREETER A (MREEE]) BB=02 — S BITRAE -
RZEFEHEFEA Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings (B.V.L) Limited ([PYBVI)) Z &
M > MPYBVI#EA Paul Y. - ITC Investments Group Limited ([PYITCIG)) Z &
' HEZE - PYITCIGHEH Great Decision Limited ([GDL)) Z 2 ##% > MGDLER
Calisanz 2z - E It - GDL » PYITCIG * PYBVI * fREZFEEH - Hollyfield ~ ITC
Investment * B %  Galaxyway ° Chinaview X BR1H -8 & A Calisan T 558
280,440,000 B fr < tE 25 -

(i) BRHE
BREZEA THEE
(&)
PR 2% 50,0005 3.44

REEREETTEH > BREXHEEIN > ARFASESHTHERMEREHE
S BRI 2 20 e I B HE AR AR U1 2B 3 L IR B M 3R 28 — WM B - BUBRE R A A
AR SCHALA ARG S B (R A MR R BE) ROSURRETHREEMATARZ
HiE > A ARBEBEER RIS 206ALFAEFZETMAZEMERE - SR
BETRAUFH ETAREEETERZTHZBEEFNARNF QR LB ARZAE
s -

REEEBRATTRYN  RAXHEESN,  FEFEAEBRTARE QA FTL
HARBEBHEREE N ZEMA ML T HERAETERELR -

REREERATTEY  FEFRERAEEATAREARAZFET -F1TH=

T—H REAEFEMTIRBEZREZ A TBARGEREE RERE
ABRHESHEE) 2EMEEFE RSN MERERETHELE -

—98 _




B & = —KREHR

3. FERK

REREEITHE AL REMEBEHTERARTAN > BAARZEFIATHA
UL - B2 BES RS WE 0% U EMAL AHEAEA A (MAEE—-1ERLTE
BAFRBRRREG ERESNEN) 2 ALWT

EERATERT

A HE A

28 gy 4= B (%)
Bif (M 3x) 80,440,000 14.5
Powervote Technology Limited (M 3£) 80,440,000 14.5
Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited (% ) 80,440,000 14.5
AL EARLA (K 22) 80,440,000 14.5

B3t @ B B Powervote Technology Limited ([PTL)) 2 & #%4 > M PTLH Hanny Magnetics
(B.V.I) Limited ([Hanny Magnetics]) 2 %5 #EH ° Hanny MagneticsH S B & B F R L
A ([$7 8 ]) 2&#HE - PTL > Hanny Magnetics R SFE B H R AHEFHEBITIFEZ
80,440,000 B 13 2 HE %2 -

PR E X BEES  BEMESFEFA > RREEEATESH > SR ETALREALALD
BT A B R A AT B RO B s B R 10% B Ll E 2 R AR -

REREETITAY  BAQRAEMEBENTHRARTN > LA AFEFRITHA
MZAEMAL (A T X EER ARSI - 8 E R R A WA A7 IE
W RAEBEMARA QA (BLFRIN ZBERE ERFE AR BRA Z T 10%3
PLEZ RS » B A E3%5% A Z AR B AL HE -

FERTER
ZBHE (%)
MERRRRE rHEE HeRR HMBRREE
BEFRAE 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(W 3ze) (M 32 b) Incorporated
o B 48 AR A A BT IR B A PR 60 40 FHREBEFEILLF
TR REEENEBREFRL A 51 49 China Telecom

Investment Corporation

— 99 _




Bt &% = —RESH

BFERTER
ZBHE D (%)
MWEARER FRE HMHBRR ReRRER8
78 R R KB PR A 51 49 REZFEFHFHLF
Shanxi Dionysus
Investments Limited 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(M 3xe) (B 3 b) Incorporated
BEHRTERBARLS A 55 45 KIRBIB R
(P 3za)
HEHEXARLA 90 10 EHifE
Exburg Limited 70 30  Chips Plus Development
(P 3Ee) (% 2£b) Incorporated
BHERARA A 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(% 2te) (B 22 b) Incorporated
Goldsmith Assets Limited 70 30  Chips Plus Development
(Wt ize) (W 3£Db) Incorporated
BN B EH RA A 75 25 JEMTTHERERTER
(Wt sxe) FA 3 o A
PN E BT THRA A 51 49 ERTIREELF
(Ff 221)
BN = A B A PR 7 51 49 HUMRB R
(% 2za)
Holburn Properties Limited 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(W 2xe) (B 22 D) Incorporated
BENBERERRLF 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(W sze) (W 2£b) Incorporated
EMEMEEARLA 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(B 32e) (M 22 b) Incorporated
EMREREEERALF 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(Bt 3te) (B 3£Db) Incorporated

— 100 ~




ft & = —KREHNR

BFEREER
ZEBHE DL (%) :
MEARRRE rEM HtlRER HMEKRREZHE
F SR MBKA R4 #] 60 40 Mitsui & Co., Limited
EHEREYREARAF 78 22 RHE
(B 3te)
B R ERER MR 51 49 EP KD K
FIRAA
HERRDE S B 69 31 EREIEREHRK
REARAA (P 32 g)
Orion (B.V.1.) Tire 60 40 Coronada Holding Limited
Corporation (W 3a)
Orion Tire Corporation 60 40  Coronada Holding Limited
(M 3xa)
Principal Diamond Limited 80 20 Wonder Wealth Limited
Ruby Uniforms Limited 90 10 Frederick Poon Chuan Ki
FYEMEFEEXERLA 60 30 FINEBRGHERN
(W 3z e) (P 32c) HRAA
FIE B EER AL 86 10 GIHBHZLFEERE
A PR A (B 32.d) (L) 22 7
(Ff 32 e)
HEA R 70 30 Chips Plus Development
(W 2xe) (Hf 3£b) Incorporated
SR SR (R B 51 49 SR)IR B
HRAF (M 32a)
— it (BB FORBAAEIRNE 55 40 R
AR A HFR2A ]

- 101 -




M 8% = e

a. %13 HChina Enterprises Limited ([CEL]) 8% - CELIRFE K% » KRG NALHE
HXGH LW - AEBMIFHCELA55.2% 2 BB AHERE R 4188.8% 2 TR LS -

b.  Chips Plus Development Incorporated B % # F Dionysus Investments Limited 30%# 3 >
i Dionysus Investments Limited E # # A Exburg Limited, Goldsmith Assets Limited X
Holburn Properties Limited 100%# 15 o Exburg Limited B3 A EF| B R A R L 7 100%
4 BMNBERARLFAUNEEFEFTEMNEFNFEEFRLA100%KAFERE © Goldsmith
Assets Limited B A BEF R AR 1000845 > BEARLAMNEEREEENBREE
BFR2 A 100%A A M2 - Holburn Properties Limited H B B A PR F 100%HE S -
BEARCTAEEAFENRESERRLA100%BAES -

c. GHIEBREREXEARLERTIOWESEHMUDERFIFA - BEFERF LA TEHER
TR ZELEER SRR AREIRYIERERERERAAS — M EEMR
KA - RPN BBRRERESEFE R EREREEARA A% i HET
FIUNEERERBRMERLH - ZEEERDEET S -

d. HRT4%ERNERFICEFERRETOARL R Z —MFMZERAFZ D BBORH R
H o BEERALEITBARRIA > Z% 0 BRI B A 1100 F b 4 B BRI R
EBERRFOERLAA I EBRRFEAE -

e. ZERGHTERBEHMEBRERAT ([FEEH) MESE > EROEBRXI LT - A4£H
BAETREMA65.6% KA -

f. ZEEOBEMPRBBERLAFE -

g EFERMGBE (ER FRETBRESRLAFE -

- 102 -




Bt & = — &S
4. EE
A b 11
BAAEF
B B 5 1 HH
EV- X FF: & E ) JLEE
s
PE B 51 5%
REAFEPLIIME
Yap, Allan{fi £ FH
(8] £ /%) JLEE
i
B EE5157
RESERLE
EFEELL EFH
JLEE
Bl
MBEES 15
PRESFEDLIIE
EnEkdt T
JLEE
ik
PEEES19E
fREMFE F L8R
RN A B
JUBE
YR
PBEES 15
RELEF.LSE
B4+ &
JLEE
HiE
M EES 15

RESEPLGE

- 103 -




B & =

- RESH

BIEMITESE
NERIAAE

BEEL L

FEEE

BREIE 4
(RE®REFIHEEF)

B IRR A
(Yap, Allantf + 2 42 & &)

217 B e |
(AAEkE2BEEF)

Law, Dorothy Z =&

Fi

* 0 [&@
FEE4758
TAE

Ei

HFR

e E 3 158
R K E 4948
W

JUEE

Bl
PEEES 15
RESEFL7HE
g

JUEE

Bl

VR 515
RESERLTE
i

JLEE

BlE

5 B 3B 51 5%

RESEF L3S

B

JURE

B

BIEES 198
REDFEFLGE
FHE

JUEE

Bl

¥ B E 5198
RELEF L

— 104 -



B & = - BRES

HITES

BRERE L RF4K > FABRZEFEIFTEAR > 75 A China Enterprises Limited
([China Enterprises)) (KRB EMMAEBERLHHF LT ZEF - BRELFAFEEEEE L
BURTATRELEN  EREX WEXNEABLETERERFRBLEETRL
B RELMAEEACEERMARAF ((BIEAR]) - REEERHHAZ IR (LRAFZ
&S ITE MRS AT =) o IR A Downer EDI Limited ([Downer)) (R HEBRMESRZ S
BT L) ZHRATEERRERLZIRE ER) FRAF ([REKEZ] - BRI TER AT L)
ZHTESE -

Yap, Allant§ & » 468K - A/ F X China Enterprises%ﬂifn%: TRFEEREEE T
B Witem RERROTEFTEME - TE8E - HAREZ EHEKH - Yapii £
FEHCERREKBZZHITESF » Yapl LI BETSX Venture Exchange E AT H LT 4
# Burcon NutraScience CorporationZ EFFRITBAER - MM AR ERBERRL
B (TER)) REEBLTARRENBAERAR (TREDZESE -

Ai#E%+ BFUR UTES  GREBRCEEERMBETERE2ERKK - &
TERHARMEE L RBELEL - UAFTBEHMAEEE  BNEFMAEEERMER
AWEEMHEER  BER-IEZTEMARLE - EHAEHLCEZEFFTHLE  FHRKR
EEE RABNEREERAALTEEMERARAF (TREM]) 2HITESR (LA
Bl ZBHFHERHZH L) o HIFBBurconZ EBE -

wE R A > BHEME > YITEF - BHIFARA2L20 > DAFNMEGMEsma
EREMNGFTMAEEER - BRR—NINEMAELRE > L&/ - g5 REXRBITRAE
E31F Y E KR - HAEL B Australia Net.Com Limited (KRB BMEB RS LT 2
FEFERTBEREBEAR AP (HRMEBZN LT ZFATESE -

FEgaL > BFEHR UOTESE - FRER-NUNANELAMAELE - HAELR
ARPEBBE -HHEANFREES  RERLEETRER AZTEMNBKERMR
BRI -

Bk BAE3CH > BITESE - BRETREBREHMTELELTARABE14FE2E

BRI AMBER  EARINSHEMTAEEE  REARA AR ENMACERERELTE
BHEGT - RL TR —IANEMARLE « WG REKEZ HRBBE— B -

- 105 -~




B & = - REHR

BUFHITES

FEMAL > HEE R_FTEFFE_ARZELABIAEITESE - NEMEER
BEREBAFRENFEEE  HRAREZEHFT02E  HERMK - BHEREE
BEEXBIEHYE - WERABM LR - FEHBAT - F B E M H 1T X Prudential
Corporation AsiafFHk o

BEEX+ BHENR R_ZZ2-FNABZELABLUANTES - REEEES
MEMARZESE - HATBREEAERN > Fe - HMEBRMTEERMEEFZE
BA -

BRES

RE&ALE BFSE RREBELZEEEE - WEARAXEXE  EFHE
SEETERBIVFERE - R _FFTFEMARLA - FATHEM IR - ERLER
HMAZATES - WAF LA EHERTEBRRE B E LK% -

BREAAE > BHELH > BYap, Alanfi 2 HITEE - FHAFEEHT > LB —%K
BEETMTEIE TEESHAARETARBEIMBE I EZEH 824N 8%
—EMAELT - WIFASE B EFTALCHE - BEANREKREZHUFTEELRERLR
BTEZR-

AERAeL RESIRK ARAEELLZEMLEE - HNBEELERE2FEELXE
HEE - BIAAR_EETEMALRLA - BREEHCERREER 2 ER LA
WEHARAA (HBHERBAAT LT Z2EE - BILETBDownerZ £ »

BREEE

RZREEE S BFIK > AELRRTERMZBBE - %A & ¥ China Europe
International Business SchoolZ M. Engineer of S.LS.M.LT.AH L2 K inE Kif %
Kingston CollegeZ TS5 2 24 - A BIFAEPE TIERNRE » EISORFEHLY
REMTHEHEEEN XFERIAEFINEBSEER REEVR-FEFTEMALLF -

Law, Dorothyx + » J{F 325% > A China Enterprises (HAXA T Z—HKBAR) Z
BEE -EHAMEREEFRIEREHEE T REFELEN - FAMEREFFMLIL
DEZAERBMLEN > TRAFERSFERZEN o LawX LI ABuron®EH MEEH 2 10
B ER_FEEEFMALEE -

- 106 —




M 8% =

- REH

5. BHEEHFRZEARLTER

B FHEREENESFRAF
i
IR
6 B 35
HERERKES5-361

SRUBHEARAA
B

3R

R
S A SR B
2842801 F

EEERB BR AR R S AT
ik
IR
fEEE 19
FERAE
4918

SMBEE it
' JLEE
BlE
PEEES 158
RELEPOIE

AARE B ok
FeEE A B

EEAR BRRELE
BRE Lt

B TEE) o« BE PR EETEAT
HEEHG
EH
TFEEF1115
K& L
261E

BABFEERE HEREEBTAERAF
&
TFrEEFRII15
K L5

TEEFREIT HERIT (B FRAF
‘ ik
i BR
TEEE 155
S ONERY:
~107 -




=
L
1l

- REH

i

g

>

R—HNEAR > MR FBEEMNZRERE S BEMMEA LR —KEEF2ENB
ANEIHERARAR (THED EREETE » RESAI5600,0009 76 /2 6,600,0008 7T Z
REEREMTE HERRERSERZEEMBHRELE TRERY -

HESHAERLBINN  UHEZEEMAREETEERRFTRERZ ZBRR
HRRME -

ERNHERIRERE  ZREAMMSERELFEMBETA7,700,0008 70 - REEEBEIT
HE > FHEERFEET > Y EERHRUHRE KBERBAEREEREZE
R BRI EZEERUNZERERSHAEEEERANZ B2 -

RZEZE—FtH AR -FRHMEFLEMBLRABNBBEEERRLR ([BEME
B EABER MYEBEREEMTBEN (EABEMTEREBAR LR ((HEMHE
1) Z AN BHEFE - WERENTBEMTERFR—UUME At B S %
E-BERABRE AEMNTER EABRESEREIREER ZEARRE mE M
BEEER  BENBEREZRELHARN243,600,00070 > B BN 4Z38 5 B 5%
WMF A NE 167,500,000t 2 BRI REE HEREHESHAE¥76,100,0007T -

REEEEENITELY > BMNEAESHRIBEHMERM - HIFERERE RS
R -pRBRAESL2MOETZANBEEIEEACERS > EFALREHEHR
BHEMBEAN > FAGHAREBAEMERFINZHHELE -

MZBFEZENA  FREUARTEBEMNZ RERGZRKEFHUBEEEIEL
A2 AELE > MERELERTE > REAARYES5,200,0007c2 70 A TEFIE -

MR EERRARERWET LTME4 > HEYHRERIBIIN  EHIF0HX
MFRARBZAEABEMHERBELL A RES B HAR4,200,000t X AR
800,000 TR MR RIE -

WREEE AT A ERTBOEEES . OREEARK - HEEEREE L
e E

BERL > MERERARAFVRESE BAFRESAERERTMERNSNSE
s,

— 108 -




M & = - REHR

Br EXCHEEEE SN > MERREM AT BN > MEFIA A0 7 R EATHE A7 RES &
R ERFBMRIRME > BMEEFH - AEELA NS LA I EAL H R T 58
REM R 2 ERFHRBRE -

7. REESH

REEERAT A EERBEALEBEMEE QAT LHEET L EMRYE S
2o MERNEIER —F R E B R R R LT AL A GEERERSN 2

2y o

A AT A& B EE /S8 A T 32 8RR 46 AR B BB R T -

8. EXEHY

REZTNEARREFREALFNETZERIBAIMER > 2E B KRE AR L
ZEHHEERGH LHRBAFEEBFRFMiTLE) ZFFWT

(a)

RZFFFZENANE » A4F (EF) KPaysoda Limited ([Paysodal) (B 77) 5] 12
ke B ANAFEEBARNREEXL2EMELREA - MPaysodadRF Z H &
Kerry Group LimitedZ 41,783,750 i&f3 ~ Kuok Brothers Sdn. BerhadZ
5,130,9708% B i+ ~ Kuok (Singapore) LimitedZ 8,490,5600% i+ X Ban Thong
Company LimitedZ 1,000,000 #& f5 » Z 4L ¥ B 2 #8418 74 533,000,0004# 7T i
REZBERHZEGHEAERT - ZRRBCEIEEEREEMRN -

RIEEZZFE+—AZH > RBRGEFRLE (BH) KARLEZME L F Optima
Media Holding Limited ([Optimal » A 5] ERF#EA H65% 2 (B ) fIL
& KA A B Sing Pao Newspaper ([ ]) & T Z B RERE - Bt Rz~
8 7%5150,000,000# 7T - AHRZHE R _FETEZF T+ AT

M_EEZZEHE+—H+LH » Simultronics Limited (H#) * Win Allied Holding
Inc (7)) - EXE(EFH) » 207 ZHE 2 A Gold Brilliant Limited ([ Gold
Brilliant] » AR R ERFEEA Hos% ) (B - RABHEEAERLF ([HFE
HD (BEHFBHREN RAELAR (BFERN FTI—ERS > REFBEW#EHuey Tai
International Limited ([EZE)) HREEHF LB R BEHARAT > HERY164)
2B BITRAEF438.65% > FLUW R ZMRIEE133,060,984.32% 7T > FHEX S
ERZFE—-F— AN

R_FEEEFFE+—HA+tH > ALFZ2EME 2 A Good Trend Enterprises
Limited ([ Good Trend)) (&) -~ Capital Deal Investments Limited ([ Capital

-~ 109 —




B &% = — R E SR

Deal]) (B7) ~ Actiwater Resources Limited ([ Actiwater Resources]) (E /) ~ &
A (Good TrendZ R AN) ~ A B (Capital Deal ZIEHRN) R E R (B HER

N) FIL—IEW = > RAR B 85 OptimaZ 2 8B T 8T R M KRBT Z Ity > 1]
AR FHIARESARERGLEREGZ2EMBLARZ 2R BT LM AR
TRy > Sy Rz REA110,000,0008 T FERAXSER_FEE—F—AF
i

N_EEFFT—A+H ERZ BB =ERTL ER FRLA (TR
A BOUENGAAERRTERERAE  MSNMEBIR=Z8) RELAFRZ—
W& Bt J& 2> 7 See Ying Limited ([See Yingl) 5737 —EA 0 i W R B IRRE ok -
WA H B L 44,100,0008 T Z VB W B Tung Fong Hung Investment Limited
(ITFH Investment)) Z 49%#E % » ZE[F] —IH B R AL [F)See Ying$Z i 7 BEARHE -
See Ying# b 7] i 2% A Rk A1 3 B BAEE 51 % SF HA R R AT (A BRER] > 12045,900,000
BLZ B ER WSS T 2 RHE (BITFH InvestmentZ 51%M %) - HHX S C
M_EFE—F— AT

WZEE—FEHAAT/AB > Good Trend (BEH) - Capital Deal (EFH) ~ &4 A
(Good TrendZ #EMRAN) ~ R 711 (Capital DealZ #E{R A) ~ Upland Profits
Limited ([Upland Profits]) (B 77) X EAKBRERRAF ([CS1]) (EHERA)
AL — IR E 0 NEARCST HEGold Brilliant (A AR (THEREE] >
AIMEER BLENGEZARBEMERAAZERLR) 22 BITRA LH
# B Gold Brilliantf7 X #H Good Trend K& Capital Deal#Z it 2 BB E K » FULH X
Z B £206,000,0008 70 - FHARSHER ZFF—FLH MK ;

R_FEFE—FRR+NB » BBl Z KB 7 Expert Solution Limited ([ Expert
Solution] » AL EEFFHEA He5% M) (B Rl (B flL—EHBEH
o NAF BB E 5 M Expert Solution ) # Actiwater ResourcesZ 27 T 817 A%
A Ko b 3R (3 85 ) Expert Solution% 38 H 6] Actiwater Resources#2 2 SRR E K »
B H R Z AE 110,000,000 7% - FEZZER -FF—FLAZH

WoZEFE—FLARHE > ALR - FEEHMERARAG XK EESFRARRT
NEEERRERR > B AXFCRERER — I REEER0.408T

% R B A B A R A ) 226,000,000 R TE (H0.02E T2 B Auﬁﬁé
90,400,000 - TR EBEHMEBER AR AR AT EH65.56%Z A 5

NZEE—HF A Z+HWHA : Expert Solution (E #7) X STAREASTnet.com
Corporation ([HEH]) HOCEHGLANBREELBAERALF  RERIES010)
(B) 7T —IHW 3 > WA H B Expert Solution [ 3 # 48 i & Actiwater Resources

- 110 -




By % = —REHR

Z &R 2 B AT A I Expert Solution [A] 3 % 49 #5338 B ] Actiwater Resources$2 it
ZHRER - B K2 AE5210,000,00087T  FHZXHER -FE—F+2
HSE s

WZEEZHET"H—H > Million Good Limited ([Million Good] » H 5 China
Enterprises Limited (/22 B #EH 55.2%) < —H 2 EMWMB AR GREEAN) ~ REKE
TR (R BRAR ([REKE]) -~ BMERERKCEL GREABMRAN 5Tz —EHRE
Wk > RAF BMillion Good & #1538 B E B IR I 170.027 # 7T 38 154,800,000,000A%
JREARLREAN » R E R Z1E5129,600,0008#7C  CELH AN R #EA £55.2%2
BRI #188.8% 2 AN B - FRLHOCN _FZ_FWATH - KHZHE
—PHERR _FFFANBZAE

MNZEE_F - H—H > REHKE - CEL (@A) ZHounslow Limited?] 32— &
R > NAAHCEL 5885120,000,000 #0227 # At 258 (A B ARHE) > 5
SRR B 170,032 T2 MRE - MAREBIARAREKEZ G BHEX
GER_ZEZ_FWATER - XHZE—SHFBEN _BEFZ_F_ANEBZA
fi s

REFFZF=ZATHA > BWEFRRFRMER _FF_FENAMBERE K
ERNZHEARMATERMREERGZEERENRMAT L —EEHEHRE - BR
SiE A — IR R G @R —ERER)  ROZFEAANBZAL
FIBRRFARE > SALRABRRURETTHR (i A S G RmEST - B
I BMAMNEHEERMHARTEIW . EREH A

MRZFEZEZFE=ZA+MH > Calisan BALAMER _FF_FEAANBERFAE—
MERZBEARGATEEMREERHZEEELENRMA L —HEHHZE - A
REEz K —EAeRES BB —ERER s RZEZE_FANANBEZA
SRR RE  HAARRRUBRETRBR » W F WS I T - J
I AT M EHEERMAERTEIWZERBHME

MWZFEFEZFEANAMA » RAF (REBN) BABERMEREREGRAA ([KE
) BT HE20,000,000,000 KB EM RO AT L —HREH®E > ARBES
200,000,000 70 - BHARBHZH MR _FXF_FNAZM - THZE—SFHFH
BB ENAEBZAM

- 111 -




By & = - REH

(0)

(q)

MZEEZHEFRNANE B EHPERE) KA - Calisan X B AR 7T L — HZL B
& B Calisan R B GRIEN) & BRI ERIESH P EH) Calisan » /ﬁ%&jﬁ
BESERABRBEZZFANAANHITLZRE RS  HERFBERH0.208T
ZAEMTBIA R A Z50% A RE Ao R RS AR 22 7] 46,000,000 8 B AL & AR 42 B
46,000,000/ # % > FEZHN_EE_EANARTH - XEZE—SHBERZE
FZENALBZAMH

RZFFZFELANLR  ALFAHEREBHERELAAFRLOAZEEWE A A
Paul Y. Project Management International Limited®] 37 —JE I8 B & 3 IR 5 1) &% -
NEFHAMRTRATIEXEEZERIERMZEREIRBEEEEHRE > &
B 4R R & SR IR 9,000,000 7T - XA ZIE— B HER _FF_F LA
NHZ oM K

LB 19 K -

9. BX

FRRENBERAMBIT MY CEMERNE - B@fs EDE'J% HRLE

B -

BEEEFEAS > BFA3E1,500,00085C - A B AR A AT o

0. Z2AFEMEERXIH

AER BERYEERFEENELBILEROERERE > CHBTEERENETE
N ARG DR Z R ER ZEFH A FAGZMERZRERT

M. BEXHF

UTFTXHEAREE —FEZ /A4 -+—Hit (BFEZA) Z-BBRLHFA > EX
NAEIZ PR it HEBENEBIEBEE 1 RRECET Lo WHEN . REFETZ
R AR K& LA AR

A Al 2w AR AR KA S A R
AWHRIEREGH] —HFTRZEBREL

AEBEE-NNANET+ A=+ —HEAZFFFFFT _A=+—HBLLEZF
F—F+_A=Z1T—HLFEEZKFERMHERE ;

WAL R AR R 2R . R

—-112 -




Bt & = —RE#

) B-BE—Ht-A=+— 0 (RNAEEHSEHTE CERGLUBEREY
HE9) BAZE - AR/ AR b A B S 14 BT B BT B R A S04

- RIRFTE-ZANBABEABATHRELSZER

- RIZFEZHERATHTERA (KPR FHE - RERE S REBLA
WEEEBEZE TEREBRFRFR RGBS ZEE 5 &

- MRIEZ-HELAZTZRTIEES RGOS A RS REA N ERE
BT ER BRI R EEE ZEK -

12. —REHR
CalisanZ B ML AN B JLEEBRERBEES 1SR R ELEF 0314 > M CalisanZ 31

ik Bz A P.O. Box 71, Cragmuir Chambers, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin

Islands
Bz AR R M R BB B R EES 19 RESE LI -
CalisanZ BEETIFE#E L+ - BHBALERPISRELE -

Bl Z EE T1Yap, AllantE - R BIKR 4L -

REBHEZEFHREBE L - ARFEL L BIRFEKE  BRHBBLE  REHES
& REMREAE LD EALE

BB ERLSREE ML - Yap, Allanf b - BREB A - SREERL - BRSE S -
ERERAE - RRLLE - BEREALE  BEHLL BO0FEEREREE -

-113 -




BHEH FHER

MTUHAEEARERRZADAEARA > Bl MTIRISLIERMESZLH - STEE - & BESFMNEMD
BEEMH -

BTHEHMETZARALARGELRERE  BUlAFERREN TERRENERAFSIEERGFHISE (EERRNO X
FREFABASEFRERYRZIRT - BRSO MAERD  LEGZHEIREA -

AR HRAYERHENERBIIEERGAFERS  CHBTBEMEEFTRLADRANIDRIREREFTR AT EME
BEREM - FHLAGMERREAEFRVEEFEEZAGHEAREXFZAFUARE -
FEBEXEFERLARBFRPRGEARLAFEAEE YERFANERFIREROMRABEBIAEHT AT  HHER
HREREEARAEREMEN ) TRBERIETREAER UEEEENENEIMNLE B A BRE 2 2R m REmE
EREREZFREM S B2 AAAMERARETTEL -

BEARFAZRHRBREETER T REERZWES (P REHERSRD W MABZEETRELRZELUEHEMALE
MFZRARERZHE . BN BTZRESENAGEMERTHE  RTEHE - £ - TREHMSEOEERM -

I
4

CHINA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREEBRRQF

(AR MR ZHBRAG)

BREFR
RELEREBREEAERAUTER —REERAZEE
RERRERBGOISETZER
B £ 276489471 R E R EEOC10E T 2 B E K &7
ERSLEIRBERVIBR=-ZDANIRERZESE
BROAANERE R

ZEEREEY JM[ SHEBEERA S

ENRERORAIRZBEERACSBEIFNAC+-BEN=-THFORE - BARERDRHGFZ FHEBREERF 4RE]S
BR Y RAR N -

MEHETIER  CEFRERTOHBRANIR2EH  dRECREEYBESFAFRLAT (EEERETEY]) (KREHE ST
WHRHEERAF (ALY REERRZBAENFEEE RSN T EXZ - SEAA TR R - LA ANERMMERUEEE
AAEEHBEN  ATE RS

(a) BETHE#H FrECEEESH (REXFSRSAE CEEARA SYFERMCBRL BN MERAIZIRAREANER

REFRADEBFEREATHEE  SEHAABEATERSARASBHERARAETREFRBFAERFTRE !

() WEHEAFEHARZIR FREZHRZER RETZERB)LREMLD  [IHREAREIRGEE .

(i) HEMEEBR -EE -¢8 %285 SF Q¥ QHuNE THETRINEFRAES GRS BRE@AELE
EXSERRLRAETARYREREEARER R AR 22ALY BEXNERSE4RB (FARETRREH
BETYAHZAR Rz ARER B ESEHABH 2 —H5) ' R

i) EAHR REAAEEHLREARDRLABR - SR (BEATRNESRRERANERS) 5

b) BHEFRELQTEN SECHBBAFMBEZCNRPNAREERTHEERTER A EZEERERETERITER . R
) FARREEEEAREATZERHEENSDMIAHEIEEERLABIUBLATERRAARERERTAEE ' R
d) FTLBBRARRFETRBZRCHGIASCANRRRZEAEERAR R

) BREECOHTEEBRATTHRZHZE4REFEH (BR(EFRRABFBRER -BL-FI - L4 8F kL RBERE
BT AAGATACHRIEIR)  TEECRAEY RRFEREFMND)ESERRATAR  FHEANERBHEER
ﬁ%gg*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁfﬁﬁZﬁ%Eﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ(@%@ﬁﬁ) CRARABRENRARBREBREHTER R
TERRBF -
HEZERETEY RREZFREAB AL OHDE  AEHRERANBTETEET -
RAERMECH-_ZE_FAE_HEHABEURENNETEE  MRAYBRAEERMUBR - BEZ_EFAANAENAE-EE
ZEAATSNEESE EEEERND I WMETEE - WEREHEEED AEFFARESFY L EHEE AAEREH
(RAHABMHERAEEHGR —8 SEEFRZ EAEGF RABRE3E I MENRZGE —8) fipEl > ATEHRRHR
BET - Bl REEWMEETRMGARERAGERD  HEFTRBLERR -REFNEEAREM  BEEGAAEEER -
RGN RE RO RAATR SRR T REEURTCEBEE B R RAEE - R R R
EERGRAFMZRETHETEEEZNEGERES  ARBFRAEIRTEERH RO AEESS EHEEETEEHNE
BHEBEEZEMABEE  TEFREERENGT  LFERTWR -BXHZ2EENIAXE B2 ZHRWARZHER _HXE
ARFREERGET - TETREERGZRBORBEENREUZFRERA RN —RB U R FRE R R SUEERFH A& -

~EHEEHENALEH




